
THIS DOCUMENT IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION. If you
are in any doubt about the contents of this Document or the action you should take, you are
recommended to seek your own financial advice immediately from an appropriately authorised
stockbroker, bank manager, solicitor, accountant or other independent financial adviser who, if you
are taking advice in the United Kingdom, is duly authorised under the Financial Services and Markets
Act 2000 (“FSMA”).

This Document comprises a prospectus relating to Non-Standard Finance plc (the “Company”)
prepared in accordance with the Prospectus Rules of the Financial Conduct Authority (the “FCA”)
made under section 73A of FSMA and approved by the FCA under section 87A of FSMA. This
Document has been filed with the FCA and made available to the public in accordance with Rule 3.2
of the Prospectus Rules.

The Acquisition (as defined herein) was classified as a reverse takeover under the listing rules published by
the U.K. Listing Authority under section 73A of FSMA as amended from time to time (the “Listing Rules”)
and, in accordance with the Listing Rules, the U.K. Listing Authority is expected to cancel the listing of all
the issued shares in the Company (the “Ordinary Shares”) immediately before 8.00 a.m. on 3 September
2015. Applications will be made to the FCA for the Ordinary Shares to be readmitted to the Official List of
the U.K. Listing Authority (the “Official List”) (by way of a standard listing (“Standard Listing”) under
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules and to the London Stock Exchange plc (the “London Stock Exchange”) for
such Ordinary Shares to be admitted to trading on the London Stock Exchange’s Main Market for listed
securities (together, “Readmission”). It is expected that Readmission will become effective at 8.00 a.m. on
3 September 2015.

THE WHOLE OF THE TEXT OF THIS DOCUMENT SHOULD BE READ BY SHAREHOLDERS.
YOUR ATTENTION IS SPECIFICALLY DRAWN TO THE DISCUSSION OF CERTAIN RISKS
AND OTHER FACTORS THAT SHOULD BE CONSIDERED IN CONNECTION WITH ANY
INVESTMENT IN THE ORDINARY SHARES, AS SET OUT IN THE SECTION ENTITLED
“RISK FACTORS” BEGINNING ON PAGE 19 OF THIS DOCUMENT.

The Directors, whose names appear on page 47, and the Company accept responsibility for the information
contained in this Document. To the best of the knowledge of the Directors and the Company (who have taken
all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case), the information contained in this Document is in
accordance with the facts and contains no omission likely to affect its import. Certain information in relation
to the Company has been incorporated by reference into this Document. You should refer to the part of this
Document headed “Relevant Documentation and Incorporation by Reference”.

Non-Standard Finance plc
(incorporated as a public limited company in England and Wales with registered number 09122252)

Admission to the Official List of 105,284,445 Ordinary Shares of £0.05 each (by way of a Standard
Listing under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules) and to trading on the London Stock Exchange’s

Main Market for listed securities

UBS Investment Bank
Financial Adviser

THIS DOCUMENT DOES NOT CONSTITUTE, AND MAY NOT BE USED FOR THE PURPOSES
OF, AN OFFER TO SELL OR AN INVITATION OR THE SOLICITATION OF AN OFFER OR
INVITATION TO SUBSCRIBE FOR OR BUY ANY ORDINARY SHARES BY ANY PERSON IN
ANY JURISDICTION.
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The distribution of this Document into certain jurisdictions other than the United Kingdom may be restricted
by law. Therefore, persons into whose possession this Document comes should inform themselves about, and
observe, any such restrictions. Any failure to comply with these restrictions may constitute a violation of the
securities laws of any such jurisdiction.

UBS Limited (the “Financial Adviser”), which is authorised by the Prudential Regulation Authority and
regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority and the Prudential Regulation Authority in the United
Kingdom, is acting exclusively for the Company and for no-one else in connection with Readmission and
will not be responsible to anyone other than the Company for providing the protections afforded to customers
of the Financial Adviser or for providing advice in relation to the contents of this Document, Readmission
or any transaction, arrangement, or other matter referred to in this Document or any matter referred to in it.

The Financial Adviser does not make any representation, express or implied, as to the contents of this
Document, for which the Company and the Directors are solely responsible. Without limiting the statutory
rights of any person to whom this Document is issued, no liability whatsoever is accepted by the Financial
Adviser for the accuracy of any information or opinions contained in this Document or for any omission of
information, for which the Company and the Directors are solely responsible. The information contained in
this Document has been prepared solely for the purpose of Readmission and is not intended to be relied upon
by any subsequent purchasers of Ordinary Shares (whether on or off exchange) and accordingly no duty of
care is accepted in relation to them.

Apart from the liabilities and responsibilities, if any, which may be imposed on the Financial Adviser by
FSMA or the regulatory regime established thereunder, neither the Financial Adviser nor any person acting
on its behalf makes any representations or warranties, express or implied, with respect to the completeness
or accuracy of this Document nor does any such person authorise the contents of this Document. No such
person accepts any responsibility whatsoever for the contents of the Document or for any other statement
made or purported to be made by it or on its behalf in connection with the Company, the Ordinary Shares or
Readmission. The Financial Adviser accordingly disclaims any and all liability whether arising in tort or
contract or otherwise (save as referred to above) which they might otherwise have in respect of this
Document or any such statement.

Neither the Financial Adviser nor any person acting on its behalf accepts any responsibility or obligation to
update, review or revise the information in this Document or to publish or distribute any information which
comes to their attention after the date of this Document, and the distribution of this Document shall not
constitute a representation by the Financial Adviser or any such person that this Document will be updated,
reviewed, revised or that any such information will be published or distributed after the date hereof.

Application will be made for the Ordinary Shares to be admitted to a Standard Listing on the Official List.
A Standard Listing will afford investors in the Company a lower level of regulatory protection than that
afforded to investors in companies with Premium Listings on the Official List, which are subject to additional
obligations under the Listing Rules.

It should be noted that the U.K. Listing Authority will not have authority to (and will not) monitor the
Company’s compliance with any of the Listing Rules and/or any provision of the Model Code which the
Company has indicated herein that it intends to comply with on a voluntary basis, nor to impose sanctions
in respect of any failure by the Company to so comply.

This Document is dated 28 August 2015.
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Notice to U.S. prospective investors

The Ordinary Shares have not been and will not be registered under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as
amended (the “U.S. Securities Act”), or the securities laws of any state or jurisdiction of the United States,
and may not be offered, sold, resold, transferred or distributed, directly or indirectly, within, into or in the
United States, except pursuant to an exemption from, or in a transaction that is not subject to, the registration
requirements of the U.S. Securities Act and in compliance with the securities laws of any state or jurisdiction
of the United States.

In addition, the Company has not been and will not be registered under the U.S. Investment Company Act
of 1940, as amended (the “U.S. Investment Company Act”), in reliance on the exemption provided by section
3(c)(7) thereof, and investors will not be entitled to the benefits of that Act.

Accordingly, the Ordinary Shares may only be sold (i) within the United States or to U.S. Persons as defined
in Regulation S of the U.S. Securities Act (“U.S. Persons”) (wherever located) in transactions exempt from
the registration requirements of the U.S. Securities Act and only to persons who are both qualified
institutional buyers, as defined in Rule 144A of the U.S. Securities Act, and qualified purchasers, as defined
in section 2(a)(51) of the U.S. Investment Company Act; and (ii) outside the United States to persons who
are non-U.S. Persons in offshore transactions within the meaning of, and in accordance with, Regulation S
under the U.S. Securities Act.

The Ordinary Shares may not be acquired by investors using assets of any employee benefit plan that is
subject to Part IV of Title I of the U.S. Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended, or
a plan that is subject to section 4975 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

Prospective investors should be aware that the Company is likely to be a passive foreign investment company
for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

The Ordinary Shares have not been approved or disapproved by the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”), any state securities commission in the United States or any other regulatory authority
in the United States, nor have any of the foregoing authorities passed comment upon or endorsed the merit
of the offer of the Ordinary Shares or the accuracy or the adequacy of this document. Any representation to
the contrary is a criminal offence in the United States.

Available information. The Company is not subject to the reporting requirements of section 13 or 15(d) of
the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “U.S. Exchange Act”). For so long as any
Ordinary Shares are “restricted securities” within the meaning of Rule 144(a)(3) of the U.S. Securities Act,
the Company will, during any period in which it is neither subject to section 13 or 15(d) of the U.S. Exchange
Act nor exempt from reporting pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b) thereunder, provide, upon written request, to
Shareholders and any owner of a beneficial interest in Ordinary Shares or any prospective purchaser
designated by such holder or owner, the information required to be delivered pursuant to Rule 144A(d)(4)
under the U.S. Securities Act. The Company expects to be exempt from reporting pursuant to Rule 12g3-
2(b).

Enforcement of judgments. The Company is incorporated under the laws of England. It may not be possible
for investors to effect service of process within the United States upon the Company, or any Directors who
are not U.S. citizens or residents of the United States, or to enforce outside the United States judgments
obtained against the Company, or any Directors who are not U.S. citizens or residents of the United States
in U.S. courts, including, without limitation, judgments based upon the civil liability provisions of the U.S.
federal securities laws or the laws of any state or territory within the United States. There is doubt as to the
enforceability in the United Kingdom, in original actions or in actions for enforcement of United States court
judgments, of civil liabilities predicated solely upon U.S. federal securities laws. In addition, awards for
punitive damages in actions brought in the United States or elsewhere may be unenforceable in the United
Kingdom.
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Status of the Company under the Volcker Rule

The Company is a “covered fund” for purposes of the final rule adopted by the Board of Governors of the
Federal Reserve System, the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency, the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation, the SEC and the Commodity Futures Trading Commission, to implement section 13 of the
Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended, which was added by section 619 of the Dodd-Frank Wall
Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (“Dodd-Frank Act”) (the “Volcker Rule”); and the securities are
“ownership interests”, as defined under the Volcker Rule. The Volcker Rule generally prohibits “banking
entities” (which is broadly defined to include U.S. banks and bank holding companies and many non-U.S.
banking entities, together with their respective subsidiaries and other affiliates) from (i) engaging in
proprietary trading, (ii) acquiring or retaining an “ownership interest” in or sponsoring a “covered fund” and
(iii) entering into certain relationships with any such funds. The Volcker Rule became effective on 1 April
2014, but is subject to a conformance period scheduled to conclude on 21 July 2015, during which banking
entities must make good-faith efforts to bring their activities and investments into compliance with the
Volcker Rule. The general effects of the Volcker Rule remain uncertain. Any prospective investor, including
a U.S. or foreign bank or a subsidiary or other affiliate thereof, should consult its own legal advisers
regarding the matters described above and other effects of the Volcker Rule.
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SUMMARY

Summaries are made up of disclosure requirements known as “Elements”. These elements are numbered in
Sections A - E (A.1 - E.7).

This summary contains all the Elements required to be included in a summary for this type of securities and
issuer. Because some Elements are not required to be addressed, there may be gaps in the numbering
sequence of the Elements.

Even though an Element may be required to be inserted in the summary because of the type of securities and
issuer, it is possible that no relevant information can be given regarding the Element. In this case a short
description of the Element is included in the summary with the mention of “not applicable”.

SECTION A — INTRODUCTION AND WARNINGS

A.1  Warning to investors This summary should be read as an introduction to this Document.

Any decision to invest in the Ordinary Shares should be based on
consideration of this Document as a whole by the investor.

Where a claim relating to the information contained in this
Document is brought before a court the plaintiff investor might,
under the national legislation of the EEA States, have to bear the
costs of translating this Document before legal proceedings are
initiated.

Civil liability attaches only to those persons who have tabled this
summary including any translation thereof but only if this
summary is misleading, inaccurate or inconsistent when read
together with the other parts of this Document or it does not
provide, when read together with the other parts of this Document,
key information in order to aid investors when considering
whether to invest in such securities.

A.2  Consent for intermediaries Not applicable; consent will not be given by the Company for the
use of this Document for subsequent resale or final placement of
securities by financial intermediaries.

SECTION B — ISSUER

B.1  Legal and commercial name The legal and commercial name of the issuer is Non-Standard
Finance plc.

B.2  The Company was incorporated with limited liability under the
laws of England and Wales on 8 July 2014 with registered number
09122252 as a private company limited by shares under the
Companies Act 2006, and re-registered as a public limited
company on 4 December 2014. It is domiciled in the United
Kingdom and is subject to the City Code.

B.3  Introduction
The Ordinary Shares of the Company were admitted to the Official
List by way of a Standard Listing, and to trading on the London
Stock Exchange’s main market for listed securities on 19 February
2015, simultaneously with which the Company raised
£102,283,168 before expenses, through the placing of
102,283,168 ordinary shares of £0.05 par value in the capital of the
Company at a placing price of £1.00 per ordinary share on behalf
of the Company (the “2015 Placing”).

PR 2.1.1
PR 2.1.2
PR 2.1.4
PR 2.1.7
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Ann XXII
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The Company was formed as a vehicle to acquire at least one and
preferably two or three target companies or businesses in the U.K.
non-standard consumer finance sector.

The Acquisition was completed on 4 August 2015, and was
classified as a reverse takeover under the Listing Rules. In
accordance with Listing Rule 5.6.19G, the U.K. Listing Authority
is expected to cancel the listing of all the issued shares in the
Company (the “Ordinary Shares”) immediately before 8.00 a.m.
on 3 September 2015.

Applications will be made for the Ordinary Shares to be
readmitted to the Official List pursuant to Chapter 14 of the
Listing Rules which sets out the requirements for Standard
Listings. It is expected that Readmission will become effective at
8.00 a.m. on 3 September 2015.

The Acquisition

The Company announced on 7 July 2015 that it had reached an
agreement to acquire the entire issued share capital of SD Taylor,
and thereby the business known as “Loansathome4u”, from S&U
(the “Acquisition”).

Loansathome4u provides home credit facilities to approximately
100,000 customers in the United Kingdom through small size
unsecured personal loans delivered by over 500 agents.
Loansathome4u operates from 39 branches throughout England,
Wales and Scotland, as well as its head office in Solihull. In the
financial year ended 31 January 2015, Loansathome4u produced
revenues of £38.3 million and profit before tax of £8.4 million.
Loansathome4u had net assets, excluding an intercompany
receivable balance of £16.3 million, of £33.1 million at 31 January
2015.

For the Acquisition to proceed, the approval of the shareholders in
S&U was required, since the Acquisition constituted a class 1
transaction for S&U under Chapter 10 of the Listing Rules. S&U
held a general meeting on 3 August 2015 at which the Acquisition
was approved and accordingly Completion occurred on 4 August
2015.

Consideration

The Acquisition was funded by the proceeds raised in the 2015
Placing.

The total consideration paid by the Company to S&U for the
Acquisition was £82.5 million, subject to customary adjustments
relating to the amounts of debt, cash and working capital in SD
Taylor on Completion.

B.4a   Significant trends In relation to the Company:

The non-standard consumer finance sector itself has recently been
subject to increasing regulatory focus and scrutiny, as evidenced
by the fact that, in response to the lending practices of certain
market participants, the FCA introduced new rules, which came
into force on 2 January 2015, to protect customers from excessive
charges under high-cost short-term credit agreements, including a
cap on interest rates and fees. In its Business Plan for 2015 to

Ann I (6.1.1)

Ann I (12.1)

Ann I (6.2)

Ann XXII
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2016, the FCA announced it would launch two further thematic
reviews into debt collection and the role of staff remuneration and
incentives in driving the way firms treat their customers.

In relation to Loansathome4u:

Following transfer of the regulatory regime for consumer credit to
the FCA on 1 April 2014, providers of home credit have been
subject to new, and in some cases more stringent, rules in relation
to the conduct of their businesses. In addition, many firms in the
home credit sector (including SD Taylor, the company which
operates Loansathome4u’s business) are currently operating under
interim FCA permission during a transitional period which ends
on 31 March 2016 and are required to apply for full authorisation
from the FCA during a specific period before that date. During the
application process, the FCA will scrutinise these firms’ business
models and their compliance with the new regulatory regime.

B.5  Group structure The Company is the parent company for the Group. The Group
comprises the Company, its wholly-owned subsidiaries NSF
Subsidiary and NSF Subsidiary II, and SD Taylor, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of NSF Subsidiary II.

B.6  Major Shareholders So far as the Company is aware, as at 26 August 2015 (being the
latest practicable date prior to the publication of this Document),
the following persons, directly or indirectly, had an interest in the
issuer’s capital or voting rights which was notifiable under U.K.
law:

                                                                              No of Ordinary              Percentage of
                                                                                            Shares          issued Ordinary
Shareholder                                                                                                             Shares

Woodford Investment Management LLP                     20,552,520                         19.5%
Invesco Asset Management Limited                            20,000,000                            19%
Marathon Asset Management                                        5,641,062                         5.36%
Legal & General                                                             4,100,000                         3.89%

All the Ordinary Shares rank pari passu in all respects.

B.7  Historical key financial information for the Company

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
period from incorporation to 30 June 2015

                                                                                                 Period from
                                                                                          incorporation to
                                                                                               30 June 2015
                                                                                                           £’000

Revenue                                                                                                     –
Administrative expenses                                                                   (909.8)
Operating loss                                                                                  (909.8)
Interest receivable and similar income                                                 52.7
Interest payable and similar charges                                                     (0.7)
Loss on ordinary activities before tax                                           (857.8)
Tax on profit/(loss) on ordinary activities                                                 –
Loss for the period                                                                          (857.8)
                                                                                                    ––––––––
Total comprehensive loss for the period                                       (857.8)
                                                                                                    ––––––––
Loss attributable to:
– Owners of the parent                                                                      (857.8)
– Non-controlling interests                                                                        –

Ann XXII

Ann XXII
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Consolidated balance sheet

Note 30 June 2015
£’000

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 56.0
Current assets
Debtors 314.2
Cash and cash equivalents 97,303.5

––––––––
Total assets 97,617.7––––––––
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current liabilities
Other payables 297.8

––––––––
Total liabilities 297.8––––––––
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Share capital 6 5,264.2
Share premium 6 92,714.5
Retained earnings (857.8)

––––––––
97,120.9

Non-controlling interests 255.0
––––––––

Total equity 97,375.9
––––––––

Total equity and liabilities 97,673.7––––––––
Consolidated statement of cash flows

Period from
incorporation to

30 June 2015
£’000

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss for the period (857.8)
Reconciliation to cash generated from operations

Depreciation 2.0
Increase in receivables (164.2)
Increase in payables 297.8
Finance costs – net (52.0)

––––––––
Net cash generated from operating activities (774.2)––––––––
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (58)

––––––––
Net cash used in investing activities (58)––––––––
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Period from
incorporation to

30 June 2015
£’000

Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid (0.7)
Interest received 52.7
Proceeds from initial funding loan 50.0
Proceeds from issue of share capital 98,033.7

––––––––
Net cash used in financing activities                                          98,135.7
                                                                                                    ––––––––
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents              97,303.5
                                                                                                    ––––––––
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period                                    –
                                                                                                    ––––––––
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period                             97,303.5
                                                                                                    ––––––––
Historical key financial information for Loansathome4u

Selected financial information relating to Loansathome4u for the
years ended 31 January 2015, 2014 and 2013 set out below has
been extracted without material adjustment, from “Part VIII –
Financial Information on Loansathome4u”. Investors should read
the whole of this Document before making an investment decision
and not rely solely on the summarised information in this
Summary. That information has been prepared on the basis
described in note 1 to the Financial Information on
Loansathome4u in “Part VIII – Financial Information on
Loansathome4u”.

Combined income statement data of Loansathome4u for the
years ended 31 January 2013, 2014 and 2015

                                                                                                                                        For the year ended 31 January
                                                                 2013              2014              2015
                                           Notes            £’000            £’000            £’000

Revenue                                                 34,087           34,597           38,298
Cost of sales                              3           (9,509)          (9,797)        (10,996)
Gross profit                                          24,578           24,800           27,302
Administrative expenses                      (16,669)        (17,037)        (18,892)
Operating profit                      5             7,909             7,763             8,410
Profit before tax                                     7,909             7,763             8,410
Tax charge                                 6           (1,924)          (1,799)          (1,794)
                                                         ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year                                  5,985             5,964             6,616
                                                         ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
All activities derive from continuing operations.

Ann I (3.1)

Ann I (3.2)
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Combined balance sheet data of Loansathome4u as at
31 January 2013, 2014 and 2015

                                                                                                                                        For the year ended 31 January
                                                                 2013              2014              2015
                                           Notes            £’000            £’000            £’000
Non-current assets
Property, plant and

equipment                              8             1,357             1,412             1,438
                                                         ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
                                                                1,357             1,412             1,438
                                                         ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
Current assets
Inventories                                                  115                136                  59
Amounts receivable

from customers                      9           33,495           34,042           34,622
Trade and other receivables                        167                259                230
                                                         ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
                                                              33,777           34,437           34,911
                                                         ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
Total assets                                            35,134           35,849           36,349

                                                                                                                                 ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables        10           (1,030)          (1,234)          (1,383)
Current tax liabilities                              (1,047)          (1,144)          (1,097)
Accruals and deferred

income                                                   (264)             (521)             (608)
                                                         ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
                                                               (2,341)          (2,899)          (3,088)
                                                         ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
Non current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities            11              (103)             (134)             (126)
                                                         ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
                                                                  (103)             (134)             (126)
                                                         ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
Total liabilities                                      (2,444)          (3,033)          (3,214)
                                                         ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
Net assets                                              32,690           32,816           33,135

                                                                                                                                 ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
Net investment from S&U
Net investment                        12           32,690           32,816           33,135
                                                         ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
Net investment from S&U                  32,690           32,816           33,135

                                                                                                                                 ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
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Combined cash flow statement of Loansathome4u for the
years ended 31 January 2013, 2014 and 2015

                                                                                                                                        For the year ended 31 January
                                                                 2013              2014              2015
                                           Notes            £’000            £’000            £’000

Net cash inflow from
operating activities              13             7,717             6,345             6,782

Cash flows from investing
activities

Proceeds on disposal of
property, plant and
equipment                                                 48                  33                  34

Purchases of property, plant
and equipment                                       (625)             (540)             (519)

                                                         ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
Net cash used in investing

activities                                                (577)             (507)             (485)
                                                         ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
Cash flows from financing

activities
Distributions paid                      7           (7,140)          (5,838)          (6,297)
                                                         ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
Net cash used in financing

activities                                             (7,140)          (5,838)          (6,297)
                                                         ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
Net movement in cash and cash

equivalents                                                  –                    –                    –
Cash and cash equivalents at

the beginning of year                                  –                    –                    –
Cash and cash equivalents at

the end of year                                            –                    –                    –

B.8     The unaudited pro forma statement of net assets has been prepared
to illustrate the effect of the Acquisition as if it had occurred on 30 June
2015. The unaudited pro forma income statement has been prepared to
illustrate the effect of the Acquisition as if it had taken place on 8 July
2014 (being the date of incorporation of the Company).

The unaudited pro forma financial information has been prepared
for illustrative purposes only and, because of its nature, addresses
a hypothetical situation and, therefore, does not represent the
Company’s actual financial position or results.

Summarised unaudited pro forma statement of net assets at
30 June 2015

                                                                                                                Pro forma
                                         Net assets of                                                         net assets of
                                        the Company    Net assets of                             the Company
                                        as at 30 June            Loansat                              at 30 June
                                                    2015(1)          home4u(2)   Adjustments(3)               2015(4)

                                                     £’000                £’000                £’000                £’000

Non-current assets                          56                 1,438               49,365               50,859
                                              ––––––––          ––––––––          ––––––––          ––––––––
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents         97,304                        –             (82,500)             14,804
Other current assets                         314               34,911                        –               35,225
                                              ––––––––          ––––––––          ––––––––          ––––––––
Total assets                                97,674               36,349             (33,135)           100,888
                                              ––––––––          ––––––––          ––––––––          ––––––––
Total liabilities                               298                 3,214                        –                 3,512
                                              ––––––––          ––––––––          ––––––––          ––––––––
Net assets                                   97,376               33,135             (33,135)             97,376

                                              ––––––––          ––––––––          ––––––––          ––––––––

Selected key pro forma
financial information

Ann I (20.2)
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Notes:

(1) The financial information as at 30 June 2015 has been extracted, without
material adjustment, from the audited financial information of the Company
as set out in “Part VII – Financial Information on the Company” that has been
incorporated by reference.

(2) The financial information as at 31 January 2015 has been extracted, without
material adjustment, from the audited financial information of
Loansathome4u as set out in “Part VIII – Financial Information on
Loansathome4u”.

(3) The adjustment reflects consideration of £82.5 million paid by the Company
and the recognition of £49.4 million goodwill representing the difference
between the consideration paid and net assets of Loansathome4u.

(4) This pro forma financial information does not constitute financial statements
within the meaning of section 434 of the Companies Act. No adjustment has
been made to reflect the trading results of the Group since 30 June 2015 or
any other change in financial position in that period.

Summarised unaudited pro forma income statement for the
year ended 30 June 2015

                                                    Company   Loansathome4u                                      Pro forma
                                                       audited                 audited                           income statement
                                               consolidated        consolidated                                              of the
                                       income statement                  income                                       Company
                                              for the period              statement                                   for the year 
                                     from incorporation     for year ended                                             ended
                                                   to 30 June           31 January                                          30 June
                                                            2015                     2015      Adjustments                    2015
                                                           £’000                    £’000                 £’000                  £’000

Revenue                                               –                38,298                      –               38,298
                                                                                         
Operating Loss/profit                  (910)                 8,410                      –                 7,500
Loss/profit on ordinary

activities before tax                  (858)                 8,410                   (45)               7,507
Tax on profit/(loss) on

Ordinary Activities                         –                 (1,794)                     –               (1,794)
Loss/profit for the period            (858)                 6,616                   (45)               5,713

Notes:

(1) The financial information as at 30 June 2015 has been extracted, without
material adjustment, from the audited financial information of the Company
as set out in “Part VII – Financial Information on the Company” that has been
incorporated by reference.

(2) The financial information as at 31 January 2015 has been extracted, without
material adjustment, from the audited financial information of
Loansathome4u as set out in “Part VIII – Financial Information on
Loansathome4u”.

(3) The adjustment made to Interest Receivable and Similar Income represents
the reduction in interest on cash held by the Company assuming
consideration of £82.5m was paid at the beginning of the financial period.

(4) This pro forma financial information does not constitute financial statements
within the meaning of section 434 of the Companies Act. No adjustment has
been made to reflect the trading results of the Group since 30 June 2015 or
any other change in financial position in that period.

B.9   Profit forecast or estimate Not applicable; no profit forecast or estimate is made.

B.10  Qualified audit report Not applicable; there are no qualifications in the accountant’s
report on the historical financial information.
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B.11 Insufficient working capital Not applicable; the Company’s working capital is sufficient for its
present requirements, that is for at least the 12 months from the
date of this Document.

SECTION C — SECURITIES

C.1  The ISIN number for the Ordinary Shares is ISIN
GB00BRJ6JV17 and the SEDOL number is BRJ6JV1.

C.2      The Ordinary Shares are denominated in U.K. Sterling.

C.3  Issued share capital As at the date of this Document there are 105,284,445 Ordinary
Shares in issue.

C.4  Shareholders have the right to receive notice of and to attend and
vote at any meetings of members. Each Shareholder is entitled to
attend and being present in person or by proxy at a meeting has,
upon a show of hands, one vote and upon a poll each such
Shareholder present in person or by proxy has one vote for each
Ordinary Share held by him.

In the case of joint holders of an Ordinary Share, if two or more
persons hold an Ordinary Share jointly, each of them may be
present in person or by proxy at a meeting of members and may
speak as a member, and if one or more joint holders are present at
a meeting of members in person or by proxy, they must vote as
one.

The Company must hold an annual general meeting each year in
addition to any other general meetings held in the year. The
Directors can call a general meeting at any time. All members who
are entitled to receive notice under the Articles must be given
notice.

Subject to the Companies Act 2006, the Company may, by
ordinary resolution, declare dividends to be paid to members of
the Company according to their rights and interests in the profits
of the Company available for distribution, but no dividend shall be
declared in excess of the amount recommended by the Board.

The pre-emption rights contained in the Companies Act 2006
(whether to issue equity securities or sell them from treasury) have
been disapplied: (i) for the purposes of, or in connection with, the
2015 Placing; (ii) generally, for such purposes as the Directors
may think fit, up to an aggregate amount of 5 per cent. of the value
of the Ordinary Shares on (or immediately after) Admission; (iii)
for the purposes of issues of securities offered to Shareholders on
a pro rata basis; and (iv) for the purposes of issues of Ordinary
Shares to satisfy rights relating to the Founder Shares, such
disapplications to expire at the conclusion of the annual general
meeting of the Company following the Acquisition (in respect of
(i) to (iii)) and on 12 February 2020 (in respect of (iv)). Otherwise,
Shareholders will have pre-emption rights which will generally
apply in respect of future share issues for cash. No pre-emption
rights exist in respect of future share issues wholly or partly other
than for cash.
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On a voluntary winding-up of the Company, the liquidator may,
with the sanction of a special resolution of the Company and
subject to the Companies Act 2006 and the Insolvency Act 1986
(as amended), divide among the Shareholders in specie the whole
or any part of the assets of the Company, or vest the whole or any
part of the assets in trustees upon such trusts for the benefit of the
members as the liquidator, with the like sanction, shall determine.

C.5   Restrictions on transferability Subject to the terms of the Articles, any Shareholder may transfer
all or any of his certificated Ordinary Shares by an instrument of
transfer in any usual form or in any other form which the Directors
may approve. No transfer of Ordinary Shares will be registered if,
in the reasonable determination of the Directors, the transferee is
or may be a Prohibited Person, or is or may be holding such
Ordinary Shares on behalf of a beneficial owner who is or may be
a Prohibited Person. In addition, if the Board becomes aware that
any Ordinary Shares are owned directly or beneficially by a
Prohibited Person, the Board may give notice to such person
requiring such person either: (i) to provide the Board within 30
days of receipt of such notice with sufficient documentary
evidence to satisfy the Board that such person is not a Prohibited
Person; or (ii) to sell or transfer his Ordinary Shares to a person
who is not a Prohibited Person within 30 days and within such 30
days to provide the Board with satisfactory evidence of such sale
or transfer. Where condition (i) or (ii) is not satisfied within 30
days after the serving of the notice, the Board is entitled to arrange
for the sale of the relevant Ordinary Shares on behalf of the
registered holder. If the Company cannot effect a sale of the
relevant Ordinary Shares within five Business Days of its first
attempt to do so, the registered holder will be deemed to have
forfeited his Ordinary Shares.

If the ownership of Ordinary Shares by a person will or may result
in the Company’s assets being deemed to constitute “plan assets”
under the Plan Asset Regulations, the Ordinary Shares of such
person will be deemed to be held in trust by the person for such
charitable purposes as such person may determine (provided that
the trust beneficiaries may not be Prohibited Persons), and such
person shall not have any beneficial interest in the shares.

The Directors shall have power to implement and/or approve any
arrangements they may, in their absolute discretion, think fit in
relation to the evidencing of title to and transfer of interests in
Ordinary Shares in the Company in uncertificated form.

C.6  Application will be made for the Ordinary Shares to be admitted
to a Standard Listing on the Official List and to trading on the
London Stock Exchange’s Main Market for listed securities. It is
expected that Readmission will become effective at 8.00 a.m. on
3 September 2015.

C.7  Dividend policy The Company has not declared or paid any dividends before the
date of this Document. During the first half of 2016, the Directors
intend to review the policy in relation to dividend distribution and,
subject to the performance of Loansathome4u and the funding
requirements of the Company, intend to commence payments of
dividends during the second half of 2016. The Directors expect
that the strong cash flow generating capabilities of the types of
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business the Company may acquire should allow for the payment
of regular and growing dividends over time.

SECTION D — RISKS

D.1  Risks relating to the Group’s business

There can be no assurance that the Group will be successful in
implementing its planned operational and other improvements in
respect of Loansathome4u.

• Damage to the reputation of, or a decline in consumer
confidence in, Loansathome4u could have a material adverse
effect on the Group.

• The Group is subject to risks relating to the credit quality,
conduct and operations of its third party service providers.

• Due to the seasonality of Loansathome4u’s business, its
revenue and working capital levels may vary quarter to
quarter.

• A challenge to the employment status of the home credit
agents might affect Loansathome4u’s operating costs and
result in additional taxation payments and National Insurance
contributions.

• The regulatory rules affecting Loansathome4u may be subject
to change.

• The result of the application for FCA authorisation by SD
Taylor, the company which operates Loansathome4u’s
business, is likely to remain unknown for some time (the FCA
has six months to determine the application, which may be
extended by up to a maximum 12 month period if the FCA
considers the application to be incomplete). There is a risk
that the FCA may determine SD Taylor’s application to be
incomplete and, as a result, require SD Taylor to provide
additional information and/or make changes to its business
model, systems and controls or policies and procedures. This
process could delay significantly SD Taylor’s authorisation.
Should the FCA have serious concerns as to SD Taylor’s
suitability to be an authorised firm, it may impose conditions,
limitations or requirements on SD Taylor’s permission,
compliance with which may be onerous and may affect the
way in which SD Taylor conducts its business. In extreme
circumstances, should the FCA determine that SD Taylor
does not meet the required organisational and suitability
standards (referred to as the “threshold conditions”), the FCA
may refuse to grant SD Taylor authorisation, which would
result in SD Taylor being unable to carry on regulated
activities and thus to carry on its existing business, and would
have a very significant negative impact on the reputation of
the Group and on its ability to generate returns for
Shareholders.

• The Group’s plans to deliver “best in class” regulatory
compliance for Loansathome4u may impact on results,
particularly in the short term.

Key information on the key
risks that are specific to the
issuer or its industry
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• Loansathome4u will be competing against other companies in
the home credit market and increased competition in this
market could reduce Loansathome4u’s market share and
revenues.

Risks relating to the Group’s strategy

• The Group may not be successful in its strategic objectives
and specifically may not be able to secure sufficient
acquisition opportunities at reasonable prices to generate the
anticipated levels of returns for Shareholders.

• If the Group acquires less than either the whole voting control
of, or less than the entire equity interest in, a target company
or business, its decision-making authority to implement its
plans may be limited and third party minority shareholders
may dispute the Group’s strategy.

Regulatory and compliance

• The non-standard consumer finance sector is subject to
extensive regulation and non-standard consumer finance
firms are generally required to obtain authorisation from the
FCA. The volume of regulation applicable to, and the
regulatory scrutiny of, the non-standard consumer finance
sector has increased and may continue to increase.
Compliance with all of these requirements may be such a
burden, or the rules which are introduced may be such, that it
is no longer sufficiently profitable to participate in this sector.

• Unless prescriptive rules as to the content and execution of
regulated consumer agreements are followed, those
agreements may be unenforceable.

• There is considerable political and regulatory focus on the
non-standard consumer finance sector. Failure to adhere to
the requirements applicable to firms in the sector could have
serious financial and/or reputational consequences.

D.2  The Company’s relationship with the Directors and conflicts of
interest

• Certain Directors may allocate a portion of their time to other
businesses leading to the potential for conflicts of interest in
their determination as to how much time to devote to the
Company’s affairs. The Chairman and Chief Financial Officer
will commit their full time to the Company’s affairs, Miles
Cresswell-Turner will commit such time as may reasonably
be required for the proper performance of his duties, and
Robin Ashton, Charles Gregson and Heather McGregor
intend to commit an amount of time that would be standard
for a non-executive director working in the sector.

• The Company is dependent on the Directors to identify
potential acquisition opportunities and to execute any
acquisition and the loss of the services of the Directors could
materially adversely affect it.

• The Company may be required to issue additional Ordinary
Shares pursuant to the terms of the Founder Shares which
would dilute the holdings of existing Ordinary Shareholders.

Ann I (9.2.3)
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Taxation

• The Company is likely to be a “passive foreign investment
company” for U.S. federal income tax purposes and adverse
tax consequences could apply to U.S. investors.

D.3   The Ordinary Shares

• The proposed Standard Listing of the Ordinary Shares will
not afford Shareholders the opportunity to vote to approve a
further acquisition.

• A Standard Listing affords less regulatory protection than a
Premium Listing, which may have an adverse effect on the
valuation of the Ordinary Shares.

• The U.K. Listing Authority could suspend the listing of the
Ordinary Shares in connection with a further acquisition
where the Company undertakes a transaction that would be
classifiable as a reverse takeover under the Listing Rules.

SECTION E — OFFER

E.1   Total net proceeds/expenses Not applicable; the Company is not offering any Ordinary Shares
or other securities in connection with Readmission and so the
Company is not receiving any proceeds. The total expenses
incurred (or to be incurred) by the Company in connection with
Readmission and the issue of this Document are approximately
£1.6 million (inclusive of amounts in respect of VAT).

E.2a Not applicable; the Company is not receiving any proceeds in
connection with Readmission.

E.3  Not applicable; there is no offering of Ordinary Shares or any
other securities in connection with Readmission.

E.4  Material interests Not applicable; there is no interest that is material to the issue/offer.

E.5  Not applicable; there is no offering of Ordinary Shares or any
other security in connection with Readmission.

E.6  Dilution Not applicable; there is no dilution in connection with
Readmission.

E.7  Expenses charged to investors Not applicable; no expenses will be charged to the investors in
connection with Readmission.
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RISK FACTORS

Investment in the Company and the Ordinary Shares carries a significant degree of risk, including risks in
relation to the Group’s business, risks relating to the Group’s strategy, risks relating to the financial services
sector, regulatory and compliance risks, risks relating to the Company’s relationship with the Directors, risks
relating to taxation and risks relating to the Ordinary Shares.

Prospective investors should note that the risks relating to the Group, its industry and the Ordinary Shares
summarised in the section of this Document headed “Summary” are the risks that the Directors believe to
be the most essential to an assessment by a prospective investor of whether to consider an investment in the
Ordinary Shares. However, as the risks which the Group faces relate to events and depend on circumstances
that may or may not occur in the future, prospective investors should consider not only the information on
the key risks summarised in the section of this Document headed “Summary” but also, among other things,
the risks and uncertainties described below.

The risks referred to below are those risks the Company and the Directors consider to be the material risks
relating to the Group. However, there may be additional risks that the Company and the Directors do not
currently consider to be material or of which the Company and the Directors are not currently aware that
may adversely affect the Group’s business, financial condition, results of operations or prospects. Investors
should review this Document carefully and in its entirety and consult with their professional advisers before
acquiring any Ordinary Shares. If any of the risks referred to in this Document were to occur, the results of
operations, financial condition and prospects of the Group could be materially adversely affected. If that
were to be the case, the trading price of the Ordinary Shares and/or the level of dividends or distributions
(if any) received from the Ordinary Shares could decline significantly. Further, investors could lose all or
part of their investment.

Investors should note that, given the Company’s strategy of making further acquisitions, general risks set out
below as applying to Loansathome4u could also apply to another company or business to be acquired by the
Company in due course.

RISKS RELATING TO THE GROUP’S BUSINESS

There can be no assurance that the Company will be successful in implementing its planned operational
and other improvements in respect of Loansathome4u or that such improvements will be effective in
increasing the valuation of the Group

There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to implement effective operational and other
improvements for Loansathome4u. In addition, general economic and market conditions or other factors
outside the Company’s control could make its operational and other strategies for Loansathome4u difficult
or impossible to implement. Any failure to implement proposed operational improvements successfully
and/or the failure of these operational improvements to deliver the anticipated benefits, in a timely manner
or at all, could have a material adverse effect on the Group’s results of operations and financial condition.

It may not be possible for the Company to successfully retain key members of the senior management at
Loansathome4u

Knowledge of the relevant market and the regulatory environment is required at the senior management level
at Loansathome4u in order to improve and grow its business. If one or more of the key members of the senior
management team at Loansathome4u cannot be successfully retained, the management of Loansathome4u
could lose required market know-how and the necessary skills to profitably manage its business. Any of these
factors could have a material adverse effect on the Group’s business, results of operations and/or financial
condition.

Loansathome4u may not be able to hire or retain suitable personnel

The success of the Group depends, in part, on the ability to retain, motivate, and attract suitable personnel to
manage and operate the Loansathome4u business. Competition for personnel in the home credit sector is
considerable. There can be no assurance that Loansathome4u’s staff recruitment, training and incentive
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programmes will be sufficient to allow it to recruit, train and retain sufficient numbers of suitable personnel.
A failure to recruit, train and/or retain necessary personnel could have a material adverse effect on the
Group’s business, results of operations and/or financial condition.

Damage to the reputation of, or a decline in customer confidence in, Loansathome4u could have a
material adverse affect on the Group

Loansathome4u and/or the Company could suffer damage to their reputation and brands as a result of
adverse publicity in connection with, for example, the perception of high charges in home credit products.
Adverse publicity could derive from the actions of legislators, pressure groups and the press, despite high
levels of satisfaction among users of home credit products (indicated by the relatively high levels of repeat
business in the market) and increased regulation being implemented within the industry. Unfavourable
publicity could also lead to increased pressure for further changes to regulation of the home credit sector in
the U.K., which could have material and adverse consequences for the Group. The occurrence of any or a
combination of these factors could decrease the value of an investor’s ownership interests in the Company
and could have a material adverse effect on the Group’s business, financial condition, results of operations
and/or prospects.

Due to the seasonality of Loansathome4u’s business, its revenue and working capital levels may vary
quarter to quarter

Loansathome4u’s sales and working capital levels have historically been affected by seasonal factors. For
example, home credit loan volumes traditionally tend to be higher in the run-up to Christmas. These seasonal
factors do not have an adverse impact on Loansathome4u’s business model. However, if seasonal
fluctuations are greater than anticipated, Loansathome4u’s business, financial condition and results of
operations could be adversely affected.

A challenge to the employment status of the home credit agents might affect Loansathome4u’s operating
costs and result in additional taxation payments and National Insurance contributions

Loansathome4u’s home credit agents are treated as being self-employed and are largely remunerated by way
of commission on amounts collected from customers. A challenge to the status of the home credit agents by
HMRC could, if successful, render Loansathome4u liable to, amongst other things, additional operating
costs, fines for breach of the relevant employment legislation and additional taxation payments and National
Insurance contributions on behalf of or in relation to all persons whose status is reclassified from self-
employed to employee.

The regulatory rules affecting Loansathome4u may be subject to change

Since 1 April 2014, home credit firms have been regulated by the FCA, which took over responsibility for
the regulation of consumer credit from the OFT. To date, the FCA has focused, in particular, on the regulation
of providers of high-cost short-term credit, such as payday lenders, and has introduced new rules to protect
customers from certain lending practices. It is possible that, going forward, the FCA may turn its attention
to other providers of high-cost credit, including home credit lenders such as Loansathome4u. In these
circumstances, there is a risk that the FCA may introduce new, stricter, rules designed to address particular
concerns in relation to lending practices in this sector.

The result of the application for FCA authorisation by SD Taylor, the company which operates
Loansathome4u’s business, is likely to remain unknown for some time

SD Taylor, like most consumer credit firms, is currently operating under an interim permission granted by
the FCA with respect to its regulated consumer credit activities during a transitional period which ends on
31 March 2016. SD Taylor submitted its application to the FCA for full authorisation on 30 June 2015, and
the Company intends to engage proactively with the FCA in respect of this process. However, the Company
is unlikely to know the outcome of the FCA’s determination of SD Taylor’s application for some time (the
FCA has six months to determine the application, which may be extended up to a maximum 12 month period
if the FCA considers the application to be incomplete). There is a risk that the FCA may determine SD
Taylor’s application to be incomplete and, as a result, require SD Taylor to provide additional information,
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or the FCA could require SD Taylor to make changes to its business model, systems and controls or policies
and procedures. This process could significantly delay SD Taylor’s authorisation. Should the FCA have
serious concerns as to SD Taylor’s suitability to be an authorised firm, it may impose conditions, limitations
or requirements on SD Taylor’s permission, compliance with which may be onerous and may affect the way
in which SD Taylor conducts its business. In extreme circumstances, should the FCA determine that SD
Taylor does not meet the required organisational and suitability standards (referred to as the “threshold
conditions”), the FCA may refuse to grant SD Taylor authorisation, which would result in SD Taylor being
unable to carry on regulated activities and thus to carry on the Loansathome4u business and would have a
very significant negative impact on the reputation of the Group and on its ability to generate returns for
Shareholders.

Loansathome4u will be competing against other companies in the home credit market, and increased
competition in this market could reduce Loansathome4u’s market share and revenues

Although the Directors believe that many of Loansathome4u’s competitors in the home credit market are
downsizing or exiting the market, there can be no guarantees that this trend will continue. Some of the home
credit businesses with which Loansathome4u is competing are larger than Loansathome4u and have greater
capital and other resources available to them. There is no assurance that Loansathome4u will be able to
compete successfully with these businesses. Increased competition could lead to a decrease in market share
or revenues of Loansathome4u, which could have a material adverse effect on Loansathome4u’s business,
financial condition, results of operations and/or prospects.

Global economies and financial markets are unstable, which could have a material adverse effect on
Loansathome4u

The financial condition and performance of companies operating in the home credit sector such as
Loansathome4u can be significantly affected by regional and global economic conditions. As a result, any
worsening of general economic conditions or deterioration of the commercial soundness of financial
institutions may have a material adverse effect on Loansathome4u. An economic downturn or continued lack
of credit could adversely affect the credit quality of Loansathome4u’s assets by increasing the risk that a
greater number of Loansathome4u’s customers would be unable to meet their obligations. This is particularly
true of the non-standard consumer finance sector, where customer loan default rates are higher than
mainstream finance.

Failure by Loansathome4u to comply with privacy and data protection laws and regulation may lead to
action being taken against Loansathome4u and could affect its operations

Loansathome4u relies on the collection and use of information from customers to conduct its business.
Loansathome4u discloses its information collection and usage practices in a published privacy policy on its
website, which may be modified from time to time to meet operational needs, changes in the law or industry
best practice. Loansathome4u may be subject to investigative or enforcement actions by data protection
authorities, legal claims and reputational damage if they act, or are perceived to be acting, inconsistently with
the terms of the privacy policy, customer expectations or applicable law. In addition, concern among
customers about Loansathome4u’s privacy practices could deter them from using its services and require the
alteration of its business practices with attendant costs and possible loss of revenue.

Concerns may be expressed about whether Loansathome4u’s use of data compromises the privacy of
customers. Concerns about Loansathome4u’s collection, use or sharing of personal information or other
privacy-related matters, even if unfounded, could damage its reputation and operating results.

Data protection legislation and regulation in the jurisdictions in which Loansathome4u operates may change
in the future and impose new burdensome requirements, compliance with which may increase
Loansathome4u’s costs or require it to change the way it conducts business with attendant costs and possible
loss of revenue.

Loansathome4u is also at risk of cyber-theft. Loansathome4u seeks to ensure that procedures are in place to
ensure compliance with the relevant data protection regulations by its employees and any third party service
providers and also implements security measures to help prevent cyber-theft. Notwithstanding such efforts,
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Loansathome4u is exposed to the risk that data could be wrongfully appropriated, lost or disclosed, stolen
or processed in breach of data protection regulations. If Loansathome4u or any third party service provider
on which it relies fails to store or transmit customer information in a secure manner, or if any loss of personal
customer data were otherwise to occur, Loansathome4u could face liability under data protection laws. Any
of these events could also result in the loss of the goodwill of its customers and deter new customers, which
could have a material adverse effect on Loansathome4u’s business, financial condition and results of
operations.

The adoption of IFRS 9 may have a material adverse effect on the financial assets reported by
Loansathome4u

IFRS 9 will replace IAS 39 as the accounting standard governing the classification, measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting of financial instruments, including loan assets. This expanded version of
IFRS 9 will take effect for accounting periods commencing 1 January 2018. Under IFRS 9, Loansathome4u
will be required to make provision for future credit losses for its accounting periods commencing 1 January
2018. Loansathome4u does not intend to adopt any changes in respect of IFRS 9 prior to this time.

For lending businesses with short-term loan books such as Loansathome4u, the adoption of IFRS 9 is likely
to mean that future expected credit losses over the life of a loan will be required to be recognised either on
issue of loans or early in the loan term, whereas currently impairment provisions are only recognised where
a ‘loss event’ has been experienced.

As the carrying value of loans under IFRS 9 is based on the present value of future expected cash flows,
discounted using the contractual effective interest rate of the loan, the discounting element of the impairment
provision is high for Loansathome4u. Whilst the impact of revisions to IFRS 9 has yet to be quantified for
Loansathome4u, this could have a significant impact on the carrying value of the loan book.

It should be noted that the discounting element of the impairment provision will unwind over the period in
which collections are received from customers and therefore the profit recognised over the life of the loan
will be unchanged following the adoption of the prospective changes to IFRS 9. However, this accounting
policy change will result in earlier recognition of impairment losses and therefore later recognition of profits
earned on loans, which could have a material adverse effect on Loansathome4u’s results of operations.

The Group’s financial condition and operating results could be affected by market risks

The Group’s financial condition and operating results could be affected by market risks, including macro-
economic conditions and fluctuations in interest rates that are beyond its control. Changes in macro-
economic conditions in the U.K. could, for example, lead to changes in unemployment levels which could
reduce demand for credit from Loansathome4u’s home credit customers. Fluctuations in interest rates could
adversely affect the Group’s operations and financial condition in a number of different ways. Interest rates
are sensitive to many factors, including the policies of central banks, local and international economic
conditions and political factors. For example, an increase in interest rates may also reduce overall demand
for new loans by Loansathome4u’s home credit customers and increase the risk of customer default. At the
same time, general volatility in interest rates may result in a gap between interest-earning assets and interest-
bearing liabilities. The Group might not be able to adequately protect itself from the adverse effects of future
interest rate fluctuations. Any fluctuations in market interest rates, and the Group’s inability to monitor such
fluctuations so as to respond in a timely and cost effective manner, could lead to a reduction in net interest
income and adversely affect the Group’s business, results of operations and/or financial condition.

The Group is subject to risks relating to the credit quality, conduct and operations of its third party service
providers

The Company has outsourced its email and website infrastructure functions to third party service providers
and, as a result, it relies on those third parties for the provision of its IT functions. In addition, the Company
has outsourced its internal accounting and management reporting functions to a third party service provider.
This outsourcing applies only to the Company in its capacity as a holding company and not to
Loansathome4u, as explained below. In due course the Company intends to bring these functions in-house
but believes that they are best outsourced at present given the stage of development of the Company. In each
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case the service provider has disaster recovery plans in place to ensure continuity of service and the Directors
believe that alternative service providers could be engaged at short-notice if required.

Loansathome4u historically shared some IT infrastructure with other members of the S&U Group and as
such will have to replicate this IT infrastructure following Completion. For the period of 9 months following
Completion, Loansathome4u will be provided infrastructure services by S&U under the terms of the
Transitional Services Agreement (for more details of this arrangement, see “Part I – Description of the
Acquisition”). Loansathome4u has not outsourced its internal accounting and management reporting
functions and is self-sufficient in this regard.

Should the service providers fail to perform the outsourced services as contractually required on a timely
basis or at all, or terminate these arrangements unexpectedly, the Group would need to replace the service
providers. This could have cost implications, lead to a disruption in services, processing inefficiencies or
security breaches pending replacement and, depending on the functions involved, have an adverse effect on
the Group.

Notwithstanding anything in this risk factor, the Company has systems and controls in place to enable it to
comply with its obligations under the Disclosure and Transparency Rules in a timely manner.

Any disruptions in the Group’s supply chain or IT systems could harm its business and reduce its
profitability

The Group and its suppliers are exposed to operational risks, such as the breakdown or failure of equipment,
interruption of power supply or processes, fire, flood or other natural disasters, acts of sabotage or vandalism
and workplace accidents. The Group relies on its IT systems for communication among its suppliers,
employees, agents, headquarters and customers. The Group’s performance depends on the availability of
accurate and timely data and other information from key software applications to aid day-to-day business
and decision-making processes. The Group may be adversely affected if its controls designed to manage
operational risks fail to contain such risks. Any disruption caused by failings in the Group’s IT infrastructure
equipment or of communication networks could delay or otherwise impact the Group’s day-to-day business
and decision-making processes and negatively impact the Group’s performance.

The due diligence conducted by the Company in connection with the Acquisition may not have revealed
all relevant considerations or liabilities of Loansathome4u, which could have a material adverse effect on
the Group’s financial condition or results of operations

There can be no assurance that the due diligence undertaken with respect to the Acquisition and
Loansathome4u revealed all relevant facts that may have been necessary to evaluate such acquisition
including the determination of the price or to formulate a business strategy. Furthermore, the information
provided during due diligence may have been incomplete, inadequate or inaccurate. As part of the due
diligence process, the Company also made subjective judgments regarding the results of operations, financial
condition and prospects of Loansathome4u. If the due diligence investigation failed to correctly identify
material issues and liabilities that may be present in Loansathome4u, or if the Company considered such
material risks to be commercially acceptable relative to the opportunity, the Company may subsequently
incur substantial impairment charges or other losses. In addition, following the Acquisition, the Company
may be subject to significant, previously undisclosed liabilities relating to Loansathome4u that were not
identified during due diligence and which could contribute to poor operational performance, undermine any
attempt to restructure Loansathome4u in line with the Company’s business plan and have a material adverse
effect on the Group’s business, results of operations and/or financial condition.

The Company is a holding company whose principal source of operating cash is income received from
Loansathome4u

The Company is a holding company without operations of its own and will be dependent on the income
generated by Loansathome4u to meet the Company’s expenses and operating cash requirements. The amount
of distributions and dividends, if any, which may be paid from any operating subsidiary to the Company will
depend on many factors, including Loansathome4u’s results of operations and financial condition, limits on
dividends under applicable law, its constitutional documents, documents governing any indebtedness of the
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Company and other factors which may be outside the control of the Company. If Loansathome4u is unable
to generate sufficient cash flows, the Company may be unable to pay its expenses or make distributions and
dividends on the Ordinary Shares. For the avoidance of doubt, nothing in this paragraph constitutes a
qualification of the working capital statement contained in paragraph 13 of “Part XII – Additional
Information”.

The Group’s plans to deliver “best in class” regulatory compliance for Loansathome4u may impact on
results

Although the Directors intend to move the Group on a path towards growth, the Group’s plans to deliver
“best in class” regulatory compliance for Loansathome4u may have a negative impact on results, particularly
in the short term. For example, an increased focus on affordability criteria could reduce lending volumes and
thereby profitability.

The Company’s business risk is concentrated in Loansathome4u, which will increase the risk of loss
associated with underperforming assets

The Company’s business risk is concentrated in Loansathome4u. A consequence of this is that returns for
Shareholders may be adversely affected if growth in the value of Loansathome4u is not achieved or if the
value of Loansathome4u or any of its material assets subsequently are written down. Accordingly, the risk
of investing in the Company could be greater than investing in an entity which owns or operates a range of
businesses and businesses in a range of sectors. The Company’s future performance and ability to achieve
positive returns for Shareholders will therefore be dependent on the performance of Loansathome4u. The
operational risks of Loansathome4u will therefore present a potential risk to the Company and may take the
form of technological failures, disputes with third parties, or otherwise. There can be no assurance that the
Company will be able to propose effective operational and restructuring strategies for Loansathome4u and,
to the extent that such strategies are proposed, there can be no assurance they will be implemented
effectively. Furthermore, in the event that the Company makes further acquisitions, there can be no guarantee
that it will combine Loansathome4u and the acquired businesses successfully. The occurrence of any or a
combination of these factors could decrease an investor’s ownership interests in the Company and could have
a material adverse effect on the Group’s business, financial condition, results of operations and/or prospects.

RISKS RELATING TO THE GROUP’S STRATEGY

Current and future success depends on retaining key management across the Group

The Directors have extensive experience in the non-standard consumer finance sector, and have built up a
significant network of experts and business contacts in the non-standard consumer finance sector. The
Company’s current and future success depends on their know how, experience and network. If one or more
of the Directors leave, the Group’s business network, reputation and ability to effectively manage the Group
and its bank holdings could be materially adversely affected.

The Group may not be successful in its strategic objectives and specifically may not be able to secure
sufficient acquisition opportunities at reasonable prices to generate the anticipated levels of returns for
Shareholders

The Company is considering further acquisition opportunities in the non-standard consumer finance sector
where the scale of opportunity is appropriate and its quality and return-driven performance criteria are met.
Acquisitions and other business combination transactions are inherently risky because of difficulties that can
arise when integrating acquired entities, businesses, personnel, operations, technologies and products.
Whether the anticipated benefits from acquisitions and related activities are realised will depend on many
factors. In addition, expected business growth opportunities, revenue and cost synergies, operational
efficiencies and other benefits may not materialise as expected, in part because the assumptions upon which
a transaction is premised may prove to be incorrect.

There can be no assurance that the due diligence conducted by the Group in relation to an acquisition will
be sufficient to find all material risk-related issues and no assurance can be given that the procedures that are
adopted to mitigate the risks relating to acquisitions and other business combinations will be adequate or that
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these transactions will be successful. Furthermore, no assurance may be made that an investment in Ordinary
Shares will ultimately prove to be more favourable to investors than a direct investment, if such opportunity
were available, in a target company or business. Because the Company does not expect that Shareholder
approval will be required in connection with a further acquisition, investors will be relying on the Company’s
and the Directors’ ability to identify potential targets, evaluate their merits, conduct or monitor due diligence
and conduct negotiations.

Even if the Group is able to identify suitable acquisition opportunities, there may be significant competition
from other potential purchasers such as strategic buyers, sovereign wealth funds, special purpose acquisition
companies and public and private investment funds. Such competition may cause the Group to be
unsuccessful in executing an acquisition or may result in a successful acquisition being made at a
significantly higher price or at a later date than would otherwise have been the case.

Should the Group be unable to acquire new shareholdings in other non-standard consumer finance
businesses, or integrate an acquired business or entity successfully into the Group, or if anticipated synergies
or other benefits of a proposed transaction are not achieved or are significantly delayed, this could have a
material adverse effect on the Group’s business, results of operations and/or financial condition.

The Group may be unable to identify suitable further acquisition opportunities in a timely manner or at
all, which could result in a loss on an investment in the Ordinary Shares

The success of the Group’s business strategy is dependent on its ability to identify sufficient suitable further
acquisition opportunities. The Group cannot estimate how long it will take to identify suitable further
acquisition opportunities. If the Group fails to complete a proposed acquisition (for example, because it has
been outbid by a competitor or the parties fail to agree on price) it may be left with substantial unrecovered
transaction costs, potentially including substantial break fees, legal costs or other expenses. Furthermore,
even if an agreement is reached relating to a proposed acquisition, the Group may fail to complete such
acquisition for reasons beyond its control. Any such event will result in a loss to the Group of the related
costs incurred, which could materially adversely affect subsequent attempts to identify and acquire another
target business.

If the Company acquires less than either the whole voting control of, or less than the entire equity interest
in, a target company or business, its decision-making authority to implement its plans may be limited and
third party minority shareholders may dispute the Company’s strategy

Although the Company generally expects any future acquisitions to involve the acquisition of the whole
voting control of a target company or business, the Company may consider acquiring a controlling interest
constituting less than the whole voting control or less than the entire equity interest of a target company or
business if such an opportunity is attractive or where the Company would acquire sufficient influence to
implement its strategy. If in future the Company acquires either less than the whole voting control of, or less
than the entire equity interest in, a target company or business, the remaining ownership interest will be held
by third parties. Accordingly, the Company’s decision-making authority may be limited. Such an acquisition
may also involve the risk that such third parties may become insolvent or unable or unwilling to fund
additional investments in the target. Such third parties may also have interests which are inconsistent or
conflict with the Company’s interests, or may obstruct the Company’s strategy for the target or propose an
alternative strategy. Any third party’s interests may be contrary to the Company’s interests. In addition,
disputes among the Company and any such third parties could result in litigation or arbitration. Any of these
events could impair the Company’s objectives and strategy, which could have a material adverse effect on
the continued development or growth of the acquired company or business and, therefore, the Group’s
financial condition and results of operations.

The Company may be unable to complete a further acquisition if it does not obtain additional funding

The Acquisition is expected to use a substantial portion of the Net Proceeds. If the remaining Net Proceeds
are insufficient to fund a further acquisition, the Company will likely be required to seek additional equity
or debt financing. The Company may not receive sufficient support from its existing Shareholders to raise
additional equity, and new equity investors may be unwilling to invest on terms that are favourable to the
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Company, or at all. Lenders may be unwilling to extend debt financing to the Company on attractive terms
or at all. To the extent that additional equity or debt financing is necessary to complete a further acquisition
and remains unavailable or only available on terms that are unacceptable to the Company, the Company may
be compelled to either restructure or abandon an acquisition, or proceed with an acquisition on less
favourable terms, which may reduce the Company’s return on its investment.

Even if additional financing is unnecessary to complete a further acquisition, the Company may
subsequently require equity or debt financing to implement operational improvements in a future acquired
business. The failure to secure additional financing or to secure such additional financing on terms
acceptable to the Company could have a material adverse effect on the continued development or growth of
such acquired business and, therefore, on the Company’s financial condition and results of operations.

The Group’s risk management policies and procedures may prove inadequate

The policies and procedures for managing credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, currency risk, market
risk, regulatory risk and operational risk that may be utilised by the Group may prove ineffective. Some of
the Group’s methods for managing risk may be based upon observations of historical market behaviour and
statistical techniques are applied to these observations to arrive at quantifications of its potential risk
exposures. However, these methods may not accurately quantify the Group’s risk exposures, especially in
situations that cannot be identified based on its historical data. In particular, if the Group enters new lines of
business, historical data may be incomplete. Following the global financial and economic crisis, models and
techniques used to predict future conditions, behaviours and valuations have become less effective. As
additional information becomes available, additional provisions may need to be made. If circumstances were
to arise in which the Group did not identify, anticipate or correctly evaluate certain risks in developing its
statistical models, losses could be greater than the maximum losses envisaged under its risk management
system. In addition, certain risks may not be accurately quantified by risk management systems. Material
deficiencies in risk management or other internal control policies or procedures (including in respect of
information technology systems) may result in significant credit, liquidity, market, regulatory or operational
risk, which may in turn have a material adverse effect on the Group’s business, financial condition, results
of operations and prospects.

The Company will be subject to restrictions in offering its Ordinary Shares as consideration for an
acquisition in certain jurisdictions and may have to provide alternative consideration, which may have an
adverse effect on its operations

The Company may offer its Ordinary Shares or other securities as part of the consideration to fund, or in
connection with, a further acquisition. However, certain jurisdictions may restrict the Company’s use of its
Ordinary Shares or other securities for this purpose, which could result in the Company needing to use
alternative sources of consideration. Such restrictions may limit the Company’s available acquisition
opportunities or make a certain acquisition more costly.

If the Company were to implement an acquisition by way of a takeover offer, subject to the City Code
(which, broadly, will apply in connection with an offer for a U.K. public company), a derogation granted by
the Takeover Panel would be required to implement such a consideration structure under the City Code.
There can be no assurance that the Takeover Panel would grant such a derogation (most particularly where
the target has a more than insignificant percentage of U.S. shareholders that are not QIBs). This need to
comply with the City Code in a takeover offer may adversely affect the Company’s ability to implement the
most efficient structure for acquiring a target company or business.

An acquisition may result in adverse tax, regulatory or other consequences for Shareholders which may
differ for each Shareholder depending on their status and residence

It is possible that an acquisition structure determined necessary by the Company to consummate a further
acquisition may have adverse tax, regulatory or other consequences for Shareholders which may differ for
each Shareholder depending on, among other things, their respective individual status and tax residence.
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The Group may be subject to foreign investment and exchange risks

The Group’s functional and presentational currency is U.K. Sterling. As a result, the Group’s consolidated
financial statements will carry the Group’s assets in U.K. Sterling. Although the Group is initially focusing
on target businesses in the U.K., any business the Group acquires may denominate all or some of its financial
information in a currency other than U.K. Sterling or conduct operations or make sales in currencies other
than U.K. Sterling. When consolidating a business that has functional currencies other than U.K. Sterling,
the Group will be required to translate, inter alia, the balance sheet and operational results of such business
into U.K. Sterling. Due to the foregoing, changes in exchange rates between U.K. Sterling and other
currencies could lead to significant changes in the Group’s reported financial results from period to period.
Among the factors that may affect currency values are trade balances, levels of short-term interest rates,
differences in relative values of similar assets in different currencies, long-term opportunities for investment
and capital appreciation and political or regulatory developments. Although the Group may seek to manage
its foreign exchange exposure, including by active use of hedging and derivative instruments, there is no
assurance that such arrangements will be entered into or available at all times when the Group wishes to use
them or that they will be sufficient to cover the risk. The occurrence of any or a combination of these factors
could decrease an investor’s ownership interests in the Group and could have a material adverse effect on the
Group’s business, financial condition, results of operations and/or prospects.

The Group may be subject to risks particular to one or more countries in which it ultimately operates,
which could negatively affect its operations

Although, given the experience of the Board, the Group expects to focus on acquiring companies or
businesses in the non-standard consumer finance sector with all or a substantial portion of their operations
in the U.K., the Group’s efforts in identifying a prospective target company or business may eventually
extend beyond this particular industry and geographic region. The Group may therefore in the future acquire
a target company or business in, or with substantial operations in, a number of jurisdictions, any of which
may expose the Group to considerations or risks associated with companies operating in such jurisdictions,
including but not limited to: regulatory and political uncertainty; tariffs, trade barriers and regulations related
to customs and import/export matters; local and international tax issues, including change in tax laws or
change in their application or interpretation by a relevant tax authority; cultural and language differences;
rules and regulations on currency conversion or withholding taxes; currency fluctuations and exchange
controls; employment regulations; crime, strikes, riots, civil disturbances, terrorist attacks and wars; and
deterioration of relevant political relations. Any exposure to such risks due to the countries in which the
Group operates following such an acquisition could negatively affect the Group’s operations.

REGULATORY AND COMPLIANCE RISKS

The Group is subject to regulatory compliance risk

As a business in the home credit sector, Loansathome4u is highly regulated. Non-compliance with the
relevant regulations could lead to fines, public reprimands, damage to reputation, increased prudential
requirements, enforced suspension of operations or, in extreme cases, withdrawal of authorisations to
operate. Similar rules will apply to other companies and businesses operating in the non-standard consumer
finance sector which the Company might seek to acquire in future.

Any future regulatory changes within the home credit sector, or the financial services sector more generally,
may potentially restrict the operations of Loansathome4u, impose increased compliance and regulatory
capital costs, restrict leverage / borrowing and dividend payments, reduce investment returns or increase
associated fees, restrict the ability to hedge or off-set investment exposure, increase corporate
governance/supervision costs, reduce the competitiveness of Loansathome4u, reduce the ability of the Group
to hire and retain key personnel or impose restrictions on whether individuals may be appointed or retained
as Directors and impose other restrictions and obligations, which could have a material adverse effect on the
Group’s financial condition and results of operations.
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In addition, it remains uncertain to what extent the existing more rigorous regulatory climate will affect home
credit businesses. Areas where changes could have an impact, other than those highlighted above, include:

•          the monetary, interest rate and other policies of central banks and regulatory authorities;

•          changes in government or regulatory policies that may significantly influence customer decisions in
the home credit market;

•          changes in the regulatory requirements, for example, rules designed to promote responsible lending
and affordability;

•          changes in competition and pricing environments;

•          developments in the financial reporting environment;

•          new financial transaction-related or other taxes;

•          restrictions on shadow banking and on core banking activities;

•          financial stability measures, fiscal budget controls, exchange controls and controls on the international
movement of capital; and

•          expropriation, nationalisation, confiscation of assets and changes in legislation relating to foreign
ownership.

Regulations to which the Group may be subject may also be interpreted or applied differently from the past,
which could have an adverse effect on the Group’s business, financial condition, results of operations and/or
prospects.

The home credit sector is subject to extensive regulation and firms operating in this sector are generally
required to obtain authorisation from the FCA

The home credit sector is subject to extensive regulation and home credit firms such as SD Taylor (the
company which operates Loansathome4u’s business) are generally required to obtain regulatory
authorisation from the FCA to operate their businesses. Similar rules will apply to other companies and
businesses operating in the non-standard consumer finance sector which the Company might seek to acquire
in future.

The volume and demands of regulation and the levels of regulatory scrutiny have increased since the
regulation of consumer credit (including home credit) was transferred from the OFT to the FCA with effect
from 1 April 2014. Consumer credit activities are now regulated in a similar manner to other financial
services in the U.K., and many of the FCA’s high level standards, including its Principles for Businesses and
high level rules relating to organisational requirements, apply to all regulated consumer credit firms.
Conducting consumer credit business without any required authorisation is a criminal offence.

Under the new regime, the FCA has substantially greater supervisory and enforcement powers over
consumer credit firms than the OFT had (for example, it can issue greater fines, ban activities or products
being sold and issue public notices or instigate investigatory action). Furthermore, it is anticipated that the
FCA’s approach to regulation will prove to be stricter and more proactive than the OFT’s approach under the
previous regime.

Currently, SD Taylor, as with most consumer credit firms which require authorisation, is operating under
interim permissions during a transitional period which ends on 31 March 2016. The FCA notified firms with
interim permission of specific application windows during which time those firms are required (or were
required) to apply to become fully authorised or cease conducting regulated consumer credit activities. Prior
to granting full authorisation for a firm to carry on regulated consumer credit activities, the FCA is required
under FSMA to carry out a thorough assessment of the applicant’s business model and to determine whether
that firm will meet the required organisational and suitability standards (referred to as the “threshold
conditions”). Failure to meet the “threshold conditions” may result in the FCA refusing to grant full
authorisation, and failure to meet such standards in the future after full authorisation has been granted may
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result in the FCA taking disciplinary action, including commencing a process to vary, suspend or withdraw
a firm’s authorisation.

Failure to comply with relevant laws, rules (including rules set by the FCA) and regulations by SD Taylor or
any firm in which the Group may in future acquire an interest could give rise to both criminal and civil
liability for that firm, could impair the enforceability of certain of its agreements with customers, could lead
to the loss of the firm’s authorisation and could, more generally, impair the firm’s reputation in the market
in which it operates. Specifically, the FCA could impose fines, issue public censure or seek to vary, suspend
or withdraw a regulated firm’s authorisation if it failed to meet the standards required of it as a regulated
business. In certain circumstances, a private person can bring an action for loss suffered as a result of a
contravention of an FCA rule or apply to a court for a broad range of remedies in the event of an “unfair
relationship” between the firm and that private person.

If the existing authorisation of SD Taylor or any firm in which the Group may in future acquire an interest
is varied, suspended or withdrawn, or if any firm in which the Group may in future acquire an interest is
unable to obtain full FCA authorisation when required, its business could be severely constrained and it
could have to cease, or not commence, conducting regulated business, as to conduct regulated business
without required authorisation can be a criminal offence. In addition, any variation, suspension or withdrawal
of the authorisation of any firm in which the Group may in future acquire an interest, or any other
disciplinary action taken by the FCA against such a firm, may be published by the FCA and may result in
reputational damage which could lead to persons that currently do business with such a firm ceasing to do
so, and its ability to win future business being materially adversely affected. Further, disciplinary action
taken by a regulator against any firm in which the Group may in future acquire an interest may require it to
make potentially significant changes to its business practices or expend significant sums in fines, redress or
remediation.

If the Group were in future to seek to acquire a target firm which was fully authorised by the FCA, then it
would have to obtain the FCA’s approval before it could complete any such acquisition, which could impact
the timing of such acquisition. Such a target firm would also be subject to enhanced regulatory requirements
at the time of the acquisition, such as the requirement that those persons performing a controlled function at
the target firm, such as directors which the Company wished to appoint to the target firm’s board, would need
to be approved to perform that function by the FCA. This is not currently the case for persons performing
those functions at SD Taylor, which only has interim permissions to conduct consumer credit activity (but
will become the case if and when full authorisation is obtained by SD Taylor in due course). Additionally, if
the Group were in future to acquire a target which is fully regulated by the FCA, then any person who wishes
to acquire 20 per cent. (or, in some cases, 10 per cent.) or more of the Ordinary Shares or voting rights in
the Company would themselves need approval from the FCA before doing so.

If the Group were in future to propose to acquire a target which is fully regulated by the FCA (and were then
to become a parent undertaking of such a regulated entity for the purposes of FSMA), then any person who
will hold 20 per cent. (or, in some cases, 10 per cent.) or more of the Ordinary Shares or voting rights in the
Company at that time or as a result of the acquisition would themselves need to give notice to the FCA that
it was seeking to acquire control of the relevant regulated target before the FCA would approve the
acquisition. If the FCA does not give its approval for any such person to become a controller of such a
regulated target (whether because such person is considered unsuitable, or if such person fails to provide
relevant information to the FCA), then the Company will be deemed unsuitable and so not approved to make
the acquisition. Alternatively, completion of the acquisition may be delayed while the matter is resolved. The
Company is not able to control who may acquire significant holdings of its Ordinary Shares or voting rights
or to compel persons who may not be acceptable to the FCA to dispose of their Ordinary Shares or voting
rights.

If in future the Group was to seek to acquire a firm which only had interim permissions to conduct consumer
credit activities, then the FCA’s prior approval of the Acquisition would not be required, although the target
firm itself would be expected to notify its regulator of the transaction. However, the Group would be subject
to the risk that such future target firm never achieves full authorisation or that it has to make material changes
to its operating models before it could do so.
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The volume of regulation applicable to, and the regulatory scrutiny of, the non-standard consumer
finance sector has increased and may continue to increase

The volume of legislation that is applicable to the non-standard consumer finance sector (including the home
credit sector) in the U.K. has increased over the last few years and this trend may continue. Increasingly,
particularly since the FCA took over regulatory responsibility for the consumer credit sector, the regulatory
focus in that sector is on ensuring that consumer credit businesses treat their customers fairly and that firms’
business processes throughout the credit cycle are focused on achieving fair outcomes for consumers, from
assessing affordability of credit at the outset through to treating borrowers in financial difficulties with
forbearance. New laws or regulations or changes in existing laws or regulations (or the manner in which they
are interpreted or applied) could subject firms in the non-standard consumer finance sector, such as SD
Taylor, to additional operating costs or, potentially, expose such firms to additional liability or reduce income
from operations, or otherwise adversely impact the manner in which they operate their business.

Since before the transfer of consumer credit regulation to the FCA, the consumer finance industry has been
the focus of considerable attention from the FCA and the OFT, which have undertaken a number of
investigations into the lending market, particularly that section of the market targeted at customers who have
difficulties in accessing traditional sources of funding.

The FCA has stated that it is particularly concerned about consumers taking on unaffordable amounts of debt
and some of its key areas of focus since acquiring responsibility for regulating consumer credit in April 2014
have been to tackle risks in the payday lending sector, address issues with credit cards, improve financial
promotions across the consumer credit market, improve the quality of debt management services and
enhance standards for logbook loans. In its 2015/2016 business plan the FCA stated that it will, among other
things, complete its credit cards market study, examine the ways in which consumer credit debts are collected
and the extent to which firms involved in the recovery and collection process are following its rules, and
review remuneration and incentive structures in consumer credit firms and assess how these firms are
managing the risk that these arrangements could encourage potentially undesirable behaviours that might
lead to poor outcomes for consumers. The result of any such FCA market study or thematic review could
lead to adverse consequences for incumbents if that market is deemed to be uncompetitive or the FCA
considers that rule changes or disciplinary action is required to address conduct issues.

By way of example of the increased regulatory focus, the FCA has made rules addressing the activity of
firms engaged in “high-cost short-term” lending (such as payday lenders), which include requirements to
include specific risk warnings on products and to limit the use of continuous payment authorities. Rules
protecting customers from excessive charges under high-cost short-term finance agreements also came into
force on 2 January 2015 and have capped the amount of interest and fees which high-cost short-term credit
providers can charge their customers. The total cost cap to the borrower is 100 per cent. of the amount
borrowed and there is a cost cap of 0.8 per cent. of the amount borrowed per day, with a maximum £15
default charge relating to high-cost short-term credit fees. The FCA also conducted a thematic review into
the way providers of high-cost short-term financing collect debts and manage debtors in arrears and
forbearance. The CMA has also published a report on the findings of its market investigation into the payday
lending sector and, on 13 August 2015, published an order implementing its proposed remedies. The Payday
Lending Market Investigation Order 2015 provides, among other things, that a lender may not supply payday
loans unless the lender has published information on an FCA-authorised price comparison website and
unless they have provided customers with a summary of the cost of borrowing. Certain aspects of this order
will not take effect until a later date. In particular, the timeframe for lenders to publish information on the
price comparison website mentioned above is dependent on the FCA publishing additional standards or rules
concerning such price comparison websites. This order does not affect Loansathome4u (as home credit
agreements are carved out of the definition of payday loans for this purpose).

The FCA has also indicated that it is concerned about credit products, such as home credit, pawnbroking,
logbook loans and open-ended running account credit, due to the potential indebtedness they may cause, and
is already carrying out work on such products. The FCA may introduce further changes to its existing
consumer credit rules as a result of such work.
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As a result of the way in which the Mortgage Credit Directive will be implemented in the U.K., second
charge mortgages will, from 21 March 2016, become regulated as mortgage contracts under FSMA and not
as regulated credit agreements. New rules and transitional arrangements will be imposed on second charge
lenders and second charge mortgages in connection with this transition and, while these rules may be
intended to map the current requirements, there is a risk that they will also impose additional requirements.

Any changes to relevant law, regulation, administrative practice or the authorities’ interpretation of, and
approach to, these are likely to require changes to the operating practices of non-standard consumer finance
firms, which could result in additional operational costs and may have an adverse effect on their business. In
particular, rules for high-cost short-term credit providers may require such providers to change their business
practices materially and may affect the profitability of those providers.

Home credit lending is not subject to the price cap which applies to certain high-cost short-term credit
products under the FCA’s rules. This is because “home credit loan agreements” (broadly speaking, loans
under which the sums payable are collected by the lender or its agent at the customer’s home) are excluded
from the definition of “high-cost short-term credit”. In addition, even if the price cap were to be applied to
home credit loan agreements, Loansathome4u’s products would fall within the price cap. However, there is
a risk that SD Taylor might have to introduce changes to its business practices as a result of FCA general
investigatory work or thematic reviews in the home credit market. Remedial actions that may be necessary
as a result of such a review could increase the costs of SD Taylor, or any firm in which the Group may in
future acquire an interest, and otherwise materially adversely affect its business, financial condition and
results of operations.

Any of the foregoing could have a material adverse effect on the Group’s business, financial condition and
results of operations.

Unless prescriptive rules as to the content and execution of regulated consumer agreements are followed,
those agreements may be unenforceable

Certain consumer credit and consumer hire agreements are regulated under FSMA, such that entering into
such agreements is a regulated activity, to conduct which a person must be authorised by the FCA (or have
interim permission). The content, execution and ongoing notice requirements for such regulated agreements
are set out in the CCA, the Unfair Terms in Consumer Contracts Regulations 1999, FSMA and related
legislation, rules and regulations. If an agreement which is regulated has not been drafted or executed in
accordance with the provisions of the relevant rules, the laws and regulations provide that such an agreement
may, in certain cases, not be enforceable or otherwise will only be enforceable once a court order has been
obtained. For example, if a notice sent to a customer under a regulated consumer agreement is not drafted in
compliance with the relevant form and content requirements, the agreement itself is likely to be
unenforceable until a compliant notice is sent to the customer, and interest and charges otherwise due before
a compliant notice is sent out may be refundable to the customer since the customer may be absolved of
liability to pay interest and charges during a “period of non-compliance”. In addition, non-standard
consumer finance firms are subject to various other requirements under other consumer protection
legislation, for example, the general duty to act honestly and fairly towards customers under the Consumer
Protection from Unfair Trading Regulations 2008.

Consumer credit legislation can be difficult to interpret and implement with absolute certainty, which means
that inadvertent non-compliance with statutory provisions can occur. If a non-standard consumer finance
firm’s regulated agreements or notices do not comply with the CCA and related rules and regulations, even
inadvertently, this can result in (a) debt being irrecoverable, (b) a consumer’s obligation to pay interest and
other fees and charges being removed and/or (c) the firm being required to refund interest and other fees and
charges that have already been collected.

Further, courts have wide-ranging powers which allow them to modify (including by reducing the amounts
due) or even repudiate agreements between consumers and credit providers if the courts determine that there
is an unfair relationship between the credit provider and the customer.
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In addition to restrictions on the ability to collect from the borrower pursuant to the agreement, failure to
comply with applicable laws, regulations, rules and guidance could result in investigations or regulatory
enforcement action by a firm’s regulators, which could lead to fines or the variation, suspension or
withdrawal of authorisation for SD Taylor (being the company which operates Loansathome4u’s business)
or any firm in which the Group may in future acquire an interest.

In addition, any failure to comply with regulatory requirements, any variation, suspension or withdrawal of
authorisation, or any other actions taken by SD Taylor or any firm in which the Group may in future acquire
an interest that may damage the reputation or increase the compliance risk of any of its business partners,
could potentially (depending on the contractual relationship between the firm and such business partner)
entitle that business partner to stop doing business with the firm and seek available remedies. The control
framework of Loansathome4u or any firm in which the Group may in future acquire an interest may need to
be enhanced to enable full compliance with all applicable rules and avoid these adverse consequences, which
would increase the Group’s costs, and could reduce the Group’s income from operations.

Any of the foregoing could have a material adverse effect on the Group’s business, financial condition and
results of operations.

There is a risk that the Group will be engaged in more litigation than a consumer finance firm operating
in the traditional finance sector

The majority of customers of non-standard consumer finance firms such as SD Taylor are likely to be
customers who have difficulty accessing traditional sources of funding. It is possible that a non-standard
consumer finance firm will suffer higher levels of customer default than a firm in the traditional funding
sector. This is likely to result in non-standard consumer finance firms engaging in more enforcement actions
against their customers than firms operating in the traditional financing sector.

In recent years, the non-standard consumer finance sector has seen consumer claims being brought through
the courts and before the U.K. Financial Ombudsman Service in attempts to claim refunds of sums paid
under consumer credit agreements or to avoid having to make future payments on the basis of hardship or
unfair relationship. Such claims could affect a large portfolio of agreements of a firm, particularly if the same
form was used for all the borrowers of the firm. For example, breach of the prescribed contents requirements
for the annual statements which had to be provided to customers by a particular lender in 2013 gave rise to
that lender having to undertake an extensive remediation exercise, which included paying substantial
compensation to borrowers. Press reports indicate that the U.K. Financial Ombudsman Service subsequently
wrote to 50 lenders asking them to confirm that they had complied with the relevant CCA requirements and
it has further been reported that a number of major lenders have since made substantial compensation
payments to borrowers as a result of having made similar breaches.

If a non-standard consumer finance firm is engaged in a greater amount of litigation than a firm operating in
the traditional finance sector, there is a commensurately greater risk that any error made by that firm will be
ruled upon by a court. Therefore, a non-standard consumer finance firm is likely to be at a greater risk that
a court will find that it has liabilities to a customer or that its agreement with a customer is unenforceable
than would be the case for a finance firm operating within the traditional financing sector. Furthermore, U.K.
consumer credit firms now have to comply with specific conduct of business requirements in respect of,
among other things, how they deal with customers when enforcing debts. Failure to comply with these
requirements could lead to further liability.

In addition, any publicity relating to breaches by competitors of the Group could result in an increased
number of customer complaints, claims made to the U.K. Financial Ombudsman Service or the courts and,
more generally, alter customers’ behaviour in making repayments. The current spotlight on the consumer
credit sector due to the new FCA regime and the highly publicised work being undertaken by the FCA may
result in more cases of alleged non-compliance and more customer complaints as customers become more
aware of potential instances of technical mistakes being made by firms which can be to the customer’s
advantage.
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Any member of the Group could be named as defendant in litigation, including under consumer credit, tax,
collections, employment, competition and other laws. Any such claims, regardless of merit, could lead to
costly litigation and divert management personnel from their regular responsibilities, which could have a
material adverse effect on the Group’s financial condition and results of operations. In addition, an expansion
in the activities of claims management companies could further increase the likelihood of litigation affecting
the Group.

If an approved person of a fully authorised non-standard consumer finance firm does not comply with his
obligations, the firm could be subject to an enforcement action

Under the FCA’s approved persons regime (see “Approved persons” in “Part X – Regulatory and Industry
Overview”), a person performing a “controlled function” at an FCA-authorised non-standard consumer
finance firm must be approved by the FCA before performing that function. Such a person will only be
approved if he is fit, proper and has the appropriate skills and must comply with the FCA’s Statements of
Principle and Code of Practice for Approved Persons. If the FCA finds that an approved person is no longer
fit and proper to perform his responsibilities, it may withdraw that person’s approved status. Similarly, if the
FCA finds that an approved person fails to comply with the FCA’s Statements of Principle and Code of
Practice for Approved Persons, it may issue a variety of sanctions, including removing or imposing
limitations on that approved person’s approved status or issuing a public statement concerning the
misconduct in question.

If an approved person at a non-standard consumer finance firm ceases to be approved to perform one or more
functions, it would require significant changes to the firm’s management by necessitating the appointment
of additional persons eligible to become approved persons and the removal of the person who is no longer
approved to perform that function. Moreover, the FCA could issue a public statement concerning the
misconduct of a senior member of a non-standard consumer finance firm’s staff. Should any of this occur at
SD Taylor (assuming SD Taylor is granted full authorisation) or any fully authorised firm in which the Group
may in future acquire an interest, it could have a material adverse effect on the Group’s business, its
reputation and its ability to attract and retain business.

The acquisition of a fully authorised non-standard consumer finance firm will require the approval of the
FCA, which could be refused. The length of the approval process could also delay or jeopardise
acquisitions of companies and businesses identified by the Group

Any firm which is fully authorised by the FCA will be subject to the change in control regime under Part XII
of FSMA. A firm with only interim consumer credit authorisation will not be subject to this regime. In future,
the Group may attempt to acquire a fully authorised firm and it is a criminal offence to complete the
acquisition of such a firm without the FCA’s prior approval having been obtained.

Following the filing of an application for approval of a change in control (the preparation of which may take
up to several weeks), the FCA has up to 60 working days (starting from the date on which it confirms it has
all the required information) to consider that application, which period can be extended by up to 20 working
days (or up to 30 working days if the acquirer is not an EEA entity or is not itself subject to regulation). The
duration of the approval process could add uncertainty to the acquisition of a regulated company identified
as a target by the Group, increase the financing costs of such an acquisition, and delay or jeopardise such an
acquisition, which could have a material adverse effect on the Group’s business, financial condition and
results of operations.

Non-standard consumer finance firms may rely on third party service providers to provide certain services
and such third parties may fail to comply with applicable laws and regulatory requirements

Non-standard consumer finance businesses may rely on third party service providers to perform some of
their ongoing obligations. If those third parties do not comply with applicable law and regulatory
requirements, the relevant firm is likely to be in breach of its regulatory obligations, which could have a
material adverse effect on the Group’s business, reputation and results of operations. For example, if a third
party, to which a non-standard consumer finance firm had outsourced the collection of debts, does not
comply with the CCA and related rules and regulations, rights under the regulated consumer agreements it
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was seeking to enforce (for example in respect of receiving payment from customers) may not be enforceable
by the relevant firm. Breach of applicable laws and regulatory requirements by third parties to which
functions had been outsourced could also call into question the systems and controls of a non-standard
consumer finance firm acquired by the Group, which could, in turn, affect such firm’s regulated status and
could have a material adverse effect on the Group’s business, financial condition and results of operations.

The fragmented nature of international regulation in the non-standard consumer finance sector may
subject the Company to additional risks

Unlike the regulation of other financial services sectors, the regulation of the non-standard consumer finance
sector is not standardised on a European or international level. Although Loansathome4u is located within
the U.K., should the Group in future acquire an interest in businesses or companies outside the U.K., it would
be required to comply with applicable laws and regulatory requirements in those jurisdictions and it might
not be possible to centralise compliance systems and controls within the Group, which could significantly
increase its compliance expenses and thereby have a material adverse effect on the business, financial
condition and results of operations.

RISKS RELATING TO THE COMPANY’S RELATIONSHIP WITH THE DIRECTORS

Certain Directors may allocate their time to other businesses leading to potential conflicts of interest in
their determination as to how much time to devote to the Group’s affairs

Aside from the Chairman and the Chief Financial Officer, none of the Directors are required to commit their
full time to the Group’s affairs, which could create a conflict of interest when allocating their time between
the Group’s operations and their other commitments. Miles Cresswell-Turner will commit such time as may
be reasonably be required for the proper performance of his duties, and Robin Ashton, Charles Gregson and
Heather McGregor intend to commit an amount of time that would be standard for a non-executive director
working in the sector. Some of the Directors are engaged in other business endeavours. If the Directors’ other
business affairs require them to devote more substantial amounts of time to such affairs, it could limit their
ability to devote time to the Group’s affairs and could have a negative impact on the Group’s ability to
consummate a further acquisition. In addition, the Directors are, or may in the future be, affiliated with
entities engaged in business activities similar to those intended to be conducted by the Group, which may
include entities with a focus on target companies or businesses similar to those that may be sought in future
by the Group. In such business activities, the Directors may become aware of investment and business
opportunities which may be appropriate to present to the Group as well as the other entities with which they
are affiliated, and may have conflicts of interest in determining to which entity a particular business
opportunity should be presented.

The Company is dependent upon the Directors to identify potential acquisition opportunities and to
execute any acquisition and the loss of the services of the Directors could materially adversely affect it

The Company is dependent upon the Directors, and in particular John van Kuffeler, who serves as Chairman,
to identify potential acquisition opportunities and to execute any acquisition, as well as to grow the business
in the future. The unexpected loss of the services of John van Kuffeler or another Director could have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s ability to identify potential acquisition opportunities and to execute
a further acquisition.

The Directors are currently interested in pursuing further acquisitions in the following subsectors:
guaranteed loans, consumer loans, rent to own and home credit. Due to his other activities, Robin Ashton
may become subject to conflicts of interest in the event that acquisitions are made in the following
subsectors: second charge mortgages, bridging loans and non-standard mortgages. The Company does not
currently intend to pursue acquisitions in any of the latter subsectors, but if in future the Company were to
make such an acquisition, Robin Ashton may resign as a Director as a result of his conflicts of interest.
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The Company may be required to issue additional Ordinary Shares pursuant to the terms of the Founder
Shares which may dilute the holdings of existing Shareholders

The Founder Shares grant each holder thereof the option, subject to the satisfaction of both the Significant
Acquisition Condition and the Performance Condition (which can be satisfied, under certain circumstances,
if a Founder is removed from the Board), to require the Company to purchase some or all of his Founder
Shares. The purchase price for the exercise of this option may be paid by the Company in Ordinary Shares
or as a cash equivalent at the Company’s option. The number of Ordinary Shares required to settle all such
options is the number of shares that would have represented 5 per cent. of Ordinary Shares of the Company
on (or immediately after) Admission if such Ordinary Shares had been issued at the time of Admission. The
equivalent cash value is calculated on exercise of the option as the estimated total price of the Ordinary
Shares that would have been issued if the option had been settled in Ordinary Shares rather than cash, based
on the mean of the closing middle market quotations for an Ordinary Share on the London Stock Exchange
over the 30 Business Days prior to the exercise of the option. A holder of Founder Shares may exercise his
rights independently of the other holders of Founder Shares and may also exercise his rights in one or more
instalments.

As at 26 August 2015, being the latest practicable date prior to the publication of this Document, the number
of Ordinary Shares that may be required to be issued by the Company pursuant to the terms of the Founder
Shares was 5,539,141.

The issue of Ordinary Shares pursuant to the terms of the Founder Shares will reduce (by the applicable
proportion) the percentage shareholdings of those Shareholders holding Ordinary Shares prior to such issue.

The issue of Ordinary Shares pursuant to the terms of the Founder Shares may reduce any net return derived
by investors from a shareholding in the Company compared with any such net return that might otherwise
have been derived had the Company not been required to comply with its obligations in relation to the
Founder Shares.

The Directors may in the future enter into related party transactions with the Company, which may give
rise to conflicts of interest between the Company and the Directors

The Directors and one or more of their affiliates may in the future enter into other agreements with the
Company that are not currently under contemplation. While the Company will not enter into any related
party transaction without the approval of a majority of the non-executive Directors, it is possible that the
entering into of such an agreement might raise conflicts of interest between the Company and the Directors.

Historical results of prior investments made by, or businesses associated with, the Directors and their
affiliates may not be indicative of future performance of an investment in the Company

Investors are directed to the information set out in the descriptions of the Directors in “Part IV – The
Directors, the Board and Corporate Governance”. The information set out therein is presented for illustrative
purposes only and investors are cautioned that historical results of prior investments made by, or businesses
associated with, the Directors and their affiliates may not be indicative of the future performance of an
investment in the Company or the returns the Company will, or is likely to, generate in the future.

RISKS RELATING TO THE ORDINARY SHARES

The pre-emption rights contained in the Companies Act 2006 have been disapplied for Shareholders in
certain circumstances and the Company may issue securities or incur substantial debt to complete a
further acquisition, which may dilute the interests of Shareholders or affect the Company’s results of
operations (due to increased interest expense) and liquidity

The Company may in the future need to issue a substantial number of additional Ordinary Shares, or incur
substantial indebtedness to complete a further acquisition.

The pre-emption rights contained in the Companies Act 2006 (whether to issue equity securities or sell them
from treasury) have been disapplied: (i) for the purposes of, or in connection with, the 2015 Placing; (ii)
generally, for such purposes as the Directors may think fit, up to an aggregate amount of 5 per cent. of the
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value of the Ordinary Shares on (or immediately after) Admission; (iii) for the purposes of issues of
securities offered to Shareholders on a pro rata basis; and (iv) for the purposes of issues of Ordinary Shares
to satisfy rights relating to the Founder Shares, such disapplications to expire at the conclusion of the annual
general meeting of the Company following the Acquisition (in respect of (i) to (iii)) and on 12 February 2020
(in respect of (iv)). Otherwise, Shareholders will have pre-emption rights which will generally apply in
respect of future share issues for cash. No pre-emption rights exist in respect of future share issues wholly
or partly other than for cash.

Any issuance of Ordinary Shares may:

•          significantly dilute the value of the Ordinary Shares held by existing Shareholders;

•          cause a Change of Control if a substantial number of Ordinary Shares are issued, which may, among
other things, result in the resignation or removal of one or more of the Directors and result in the
Company’s then existing Shareholders becoming the minority;

•          in certain circumstances, have the effect of delaying or preventing a Change of Control;

•          subordinate the rights of holders of Ordinary Shares if preferred shares are issued with rights senior
to those of Ordinary Shares; or

•          adversely affect the market prices of the Company’s Ordinary Shares.

If Ordinary Shares are issued as consideration for a further acquisition, the issuance of such Ordinary Shares
could materially dilute the value of the Ordinary Shares held by existing Shareholders. Where a target
company has an existing large shareholder, an issue of Ordinary Shares as consideration may result in such
shareholder subsequently holding a significant or majority stake in the Company, which may, in turn, enable
it to exert significant influence over the Company (to a greater or lesser extent depending on the size of its
holding) and could lead to a Change of Control.

Similarly, the incurrence by the Company of substantial indebtedness in connection with a further
acquisition could result in:

•          default and foreclosure on the Company’s assets, if its cash flow from operations were insufficient to
pay its debt obligations as they become due;

•          acceleration of its obligation to repay indebtedness, even if it has made all payments when due, if it
breaches, without a waiver, covenants that require the maintenance of financial ratios or reserves or
impose operating restrictions;

•          a demand for immediate payment of all principal and accrued interest, if any, if the indebtedness is
payable on demand; or

•          an inability to obtain additional financing, if any indebtedness incurred contains covenants restricting
its ability to incur additional indebtedness.

The occurrence of any or a combination of these factors could decrease an investor’s ownership interests in
the Company or have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition, results of
operations and/or prospects.

Shareholders will not have the opportunity to vote to approve a further acquisition

Unless such approval is required by law or other regulatory process, Shareholders will not have the
opportunity to vote on a further acquisition even if Ordinary Shares are being issued as consideration for
such acquisition. Chapter 10 of the Listing Rules relating to significant transactions will not apply to the
Company while the Company has a Standard Listing. The Company does not expect that Shareholder
approval will be required in connection with an acquisition while the company has a Standard Listing, and
therefore, investors will be relying on the Company’s and the Directors’ ability to identify potential targets,
evaluate their merits, conduct or monitor due diligence, conduct negotiations and effect such acquisition.
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The proposed Standard Listing of the Ordinary Shares will afford investors a lower level of regulatory
protection than a Premium Listing

Following the expected cancellation of the listing of the Ordinary Shares, application will be made for the
Ordinary Shares to be readmitted to a Standard Listing on the Official List. A Standard Listing will afford
investors in the Company a lower level of regulatory protection than that afforded to investors in a company
with a Premium Listing, which is subject to additional obligations under the Listing Rules. A Standard
Listing will not permit the Company to gain a FTSE indexation, which may have an adverse effect on the
valuation of the Ordinary Shares.

Further details regarding the difference in the protections afforded by a Premium Listing as against a
Standard Listing are set out in the section entitled “Consequences of a Standard Listing” on page 41.

The Company may be unable to transfer to a Premium Listing or other appropriate listing venue following
the Acquisition

Following the Acquisition, the Directors may in due course decide to transfer from a Standard Listing to
either a Premium Listing or other appropriate listing venue, based on the track record of Loansathome4u or
any company or business in which the Group may in future acquire an interest, subject to fulfilling the
relevant eligibility criteria at the time. There can be no guarantee that the Company will meet such eligibility
criteria or that a transfer to a Premium Listing or other appropriate listing venue will be achieved. For
example, such eligibility criteria may not be met due to the circumstances and internal control systems of
Loansathome4u or any company or business in which the Group may in future acquire an interest. In addition
there may be a delay, which could be significant, between the completion of any acquisition and the date
upon which the Company is able to seek or achieve a Premium Listing or a listing on another stock exchange.

If the Company does not achieve a Premium Listing, the Company will not be obliged to comply with the
higher standards of corporate governance or other requirements which it would be subject to upon achieving
a Premium Listing and, for as long as the Company continues to have a Standard Listing, it will be required
to continue to comply with the lesser standards applicable to a company with a Standard Listing. This
includes a period of time after the Acquisition where the Company will be operating a substantial business
but will not need to comply with the higher standards applicable to companies with a Premium Listing.

Alternatively, in addition to, or in lieu of seeking a Premium Listing, the Company may determine to seek a
listing on another stock exchange, which may not have standards or corporate governance comparable to
those required by a Premium Listing or which Shareholders may otherwise consider to be less attractive or
convenient.

If the Company proposes making a further acquisition which is classified as a reverse takeover and the
FCA determines that there is insufficient information in the market about the acquisition or the target,
the Company’s Ordinary Shares may be suspended from listing and may not be re-admitted to listing
thereafter, which will reduce liquidity in the Ordinary Shares potentially for a significant period of time,
and may adversely affect the price at which a Shareholder can sell them

A further acquisition, if it occurs, may be treated as a reverse takeover (within the meaning given to that term
in the Listing Rules).

Generally, when a reverse takeover is announced or disclosed prior to announcement, there will be
insufficient publicly available information in the market about the proposed transaction and the listed
company will be unable to assess accurately its financial position and inform the market appropriately. In
this case, the FCA will often consider that suspension of the listing of the listed company’s securities will be
appropriate. The London Stock Exchange will suspend the trading in the listed company’s securities if the
listing of such securities has been suspended. However, if the FCA is satisfied that there is sufficient publicly
available information about the proposed transaction it may agree with the listed company that a suspension
is not required. The FCA will generally be satisfied that a suspension is not required in the following
circumstances: (i) the target company is admitted to listing on a regulated market or another exchange where
the disclosure requirements in relation to financial information and inside information are not materially
different from the disclosure requirements under the Disclosure and Transparency Rules; or (ii) the issuer is
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able to fill any information gap at the time of announcing the terms of the transaction, including the
disclosure of relevant financial information in relation to the target and a description of the target.

If information regarding a significant proposed transaction were to be inadvertently disclosed to the market,
or the Board considered that there were good reasons for announcing the transaction at a time when it was
unable to provide the market with sufficient information regarding the impact of the acquisition on its
financial position, the Ordinary Shares may be suspended. Any such suspension would be likely to continue
until sufficient financial information on the transaction was made public. Depending on the nature of the
transaction (or proposed transaction) and the stage at which it is leaked or announced, it may take a
substantial period of time to compile the relevant information, particularly where the target does not have
financial or other information readily available which is comparable with the information a listed company
would be expected to provide under the Disclosure and Transparency Rules and the Listing Rules (for
example, where the target business is not itself already subject to a public disclosure regime), and the period
during which the Ordinary Shares would be suspended may therefore be significant.

Furthermore, the Listing Rules provide that the FCA will generally seek to cancel the listing of a listed
company’s securities when it completes a reverse takeover. In such circumstances, the Company may seek
the re-admission to listing either simultaneously with completion of any such acquisition or as soon
thereafter as is possible but there is no guarantee that such re-admission would be granted.

A suspension or cancellation of the listing of the Company’s Ordinary Shares would materially reduce
liquidity in such shares which may affect an investor’s ability to realise some or all of its investment and/or
the price at which such investor can effect such realisation.

Investors may not be able to realise returns on their investment in Ordinary Shares within a period that
they would consider to be reasonable

Investments in Ordinary Shares may be relatively illiquid. There may be a limited number of Shareholders
and this factor may contribute both to infrequent trading in the Ordinary Shares on the London Stock
Exchange and to volatile Ordinary Share price movements. Investors should not expect that they will
necessarily be able to realise their investment in Ordinary Shares within a period that they would regard as
reasonable. Accordingly, the Ordinary Shares may not be suitable for short-term investment. Readmission
should not be taken as implying that there will be an active trading market for the Ordinary Shares. Even if
an active trading market develops, the market price for the Ordinary Shares may fall below the issue price.

Dividend payments on the Ordinary Shares are not guaranteed

To the extent the Company intends to pay dividends on the Ordinary Shares, it will pay such dividends at
such times (if any) and in such amounts (if any) as the Board determines appropriate and in accordance with
applicable law, but expects to be principally reliant upon dividends received on shares held by it in any
operating subsidiaries in order to do so. Payments of such dividends will be dependent on the availability of
any dividends or other distributions from such subsidiaries. The Company can therefore give no assurance
that it will be able to pay dividends going forward or as to the amount of such dividends, if any.

There will be no public offering of Ordinary Shares in the United States nor will Shareholders be entitled
to protections normally afforded to investors of “blank check” companies in an offering pursuant to
Rule 419 under the U.S. Securities Act

Since the remaining Net Proceeds are intended to be used to complete further acquisitions, the Company may
be deemed to be a “blank check” company under U.S. federal securities laws. However, because there will
be no public offering of the Ordinary Shares in the United States and the Ordinary Shares will not be
registered under the U.S. Securities Act, the Company is not subject to rules promulgated by the SEC to
protect investors in blank check companies, such as Rule 419 under the U.S. Securities Act or the
requirements of U.S. stock exchanges for special purpose acquisition companies which are listed in the
United States. Accordingly, no investor will be afforded the benefits or protections of those rules. Among
other things, this means the Ordinary Shares will be immediately tradable, the Company will have a longer
period of time to complete an acquisition than do companies subject to Rule 419, the Company is not
required to deposit the Net Proceeds into an escrow account or other segregated account, and the Company
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will not be required to provide investors with an option in the future to require the Company to return such
investors’ investment in the Company.

In addition, the Company is a “covered fund” for purposes of the Volcker Rule and the Ordinary Shares are
“ownership interests”, as defined under the Volcker Rule. See “Status of the Company under the Volcker
Rule” on page 4. The general effects of the Volcker Rule remain uncertain. Any prospective investor in the
Ordinary Shares, including a U.S. or foreign bank or a subsidiary or other affiliate thereof, should consult its
own legal advisers regarding the matters described above and other effects of the Volcker Rule.

Transfer restrictions for Shareholders in the United States may make it difficult to resell the Ordinary
Shares or may have an adverse impact on the market price of the Ordinary Shares

The Ordinary Shares have not been registered in the United States under the U.S. Securities Act, the U.S.
Investment Company Act or under any other applicable securities laws and are subject to restrictions on
transfer. There are additional restrictions on the resale of Ordinary Shares by Shareholders who are in the
United States and on the resale of Ordinary Shares by any Shareholders to any person who is in the United
States. These restrictions will make it more difficult to resell the Ordinary Shares in many instances and this
could have an adverse effect on the market value of the Ordinary Shares. There can be no assurance that
Shareholders in the United States will be able to locate acceptable purchasers or obtain the required
certifications to effect a sale.

In addition, although the Ordinary Shares are freely transferable in the U.K., there are certain circumstances
in which the Board may, under the Articles and subject to certain conditions, compulsorily require the
transfer of the Ordinary Shares. These circumstances include where a transfer of Ordinary Shares would
cause, or is likely to cause: (i) the assets of the Company to be considered “plan assets” under the Plan Asset
Regulations; (ii) the Company to be required to register under the U.S. Investment Company Act; or (iii) the
Company to be required to register under the U.S. Exchange Act, among others.

A prospective investor’s ability to invest in the Ordinary Shares or to transfer any Ordinary Shares that it
holds may be limited by ERISA and the U.S. Tax Code

Under the Plan Asset Regulations, if interests held by Plan Investors are deemed to be “significant” within
the meaning of the Plan Asset Regulations (broadly, if Plan Investors hold 25 per cent. or greater of any class
of equity interest in the Company) then the assets of the Company may be deemed to be “plan assets” within
the meaning of the Plan Asset Regulations. Ordinary Shares were acquired by certain Plan Investors in the
2015 Placing and the Company cannot guarantee that Ordinary Shares will not be acquired by other Plan
Investors. Although the Board may, under the Articles, compulsorily require the transfer of the Ordinary
Shares where a transfer of Ordinary Shares would cause the assets of the Company to be considered “plan
assets” under the Plan Asset Regulations, the Company may be unable to monitor whether Plan Investors
acquire Ordinary Shares. As a result, there can be no assurance that Plan Investors will never acquire
Ordinary Shares.

If the Company’s assets were deemed to be plan assets of an ERISA Plan: (i) the prudence and other
fiduciary responsibility standards of ERISA would apply to assets of the Company; and (ii) certain
transactions, including transactions that the Company may enter into, or may have entered into, in the
ordinary course of business could constitute or result in non-exempt prohibited transactions under section
406 of ERISA or section 4975 of the U.S. Tax Code and might have to be rescinded. A non-exempt
prohibited transaction, in addition to imposing potential liability on fiduciaries of the ERISA Plan, may also
result in the imposition of an excise tax on “parties in interest” (as defined in ERISA) or “disqualified
persons” (as defined in the U.S. Tax Code), with whom the ERISA Plan engages in the transaction.
Governmental plans, certain church plans and non-U.S. plans, while not subject to Part 4 of Subtitle B of
Title I of ERISA, section 4975 of the U.S. Tax Code, or the Plan Asset Regulations, may nevertheless be
subject to other state, local, non-U.S. or other regulations that have similar effect.

However, these remedies may not be effective in avoiding characterisation of the Company’s assets as “plan
assets” under the Plan Assets Regulations and, as a result, the Company may suffer the consequences
described above.
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The Company has not been and will not be registered in the United States as an investment company
under the U.S. Investment Company Act and Shareholders will not be entitled to the protections of the
U.S. Investment Company Act

The Company has not been and will not be registered in the United States as an investment company under
the U.S. Investment Company Act. The U.S. Investment Company Act provides certain protections to
investors and imposes certain restrictions on companies that are registered as investment companies. As the
Company is not so registered and does not plan to be registered, none of these protections or restrictions is
or will be applicable.

RISKS RELATING TO TAXATION

Taxation of returns from assets located outside the U.K. may reduce any net return to investors

Although Loansathome4u is established and operates in the U.K., the Group may make future acquisitions
of assets, companies or businesses situated in or operating from outside of the U.K. To the extent that the
assets, company or business which the Group acquires is or are established outside the U.K., it is possible
that any return the Group receives from it may be reduced by irrecoverable foreign withholding or other local
taxes and this may reduce any net return derived by investors from a shareholding in the Group.

Changes in tax law may reduce any net returns to investors

The tax treatment of holders of Ordinary Shares issued by the Company, Loansathome4u, any special
purpose vehicle that the Group may establish and any company or business which the Group may acquire,
are all subject to adverse changes in tax rates, legislation, interpretation of such legislation or practice in the
U.K. or any other relevant jurisdiction. Any change may reduce any net return derived by investors from an
investment in the Company.

There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to make returns to investors in a tax-efficient
manner

It is intended that the Company will structure the Group to maximise returns for investors in as fiscally
efficient a manner as is practicable. The Company has made certain assumptions regarding taxation.
However, if these assumptions are not borne out in practice, taxes may be imposed with respect to any of the
Company’s assets, or the Company may be subject to tax on its income, profits, gains or distributions in a
particular jurisdiction or jurisdictions in excess of taxes that were anticipated. This could alter the post-tax
returns for investors (or investors in certain jurisdictions). The level of return for investors may also be
adversely affected. Any change in laws or tax authority practices could also adversely affect any post-tax
returns of capital to Shareholders or payments of dividends. In addition, the Company may incur costs in
taking steps to mitigate any such adverse effect on the post-tax returns for investors.

The Company may reincorporate in another jurisdiction and such reincorporation may result in taxes
imposed on Shareholders

Although Loansathome4u is a U.K. business and the Directors intend that the Company will initially only
make further acquisitions in the U.K., the Company may, in connection with a future acquisition (or
otherwise), reincorporate in another jurisdiction such as that in which a future target company or business is
located. Such a transaction may require a Shareholder to recognise taxable income in the jurisdiction in
which that Shareholder is tax resident or in which its members are resident if it is a tax transparent entity.
The Company would not anticipate any cash distributions to Shareholders to pay such taxes. Shareholders
may be subject to withholding taxes or other taxes with respect to their ownership of the Company after the
reincorporation.
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CONSEQUENCES OF A STANDARD LISTING

Application will be made for the Ordinary Shares to be readmitted to listing on the Official List pursuant to
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules, which sets out the requirements for Standard Listings. The Company will
comply with the Listing Principles set out in Chapter 7 of the Listing Rules at Listing Rule 7.2.1, which
apply to all companies with their securities admitted to the Official List. In addition, the Company also
intends to voluntarily comply with the Listing Principles at Listing Rule 7.2.1A, notwithstanding that they
only apply to companies which obtain a Premium Listing on the Official List. Compliance with the
provisions of Listing Rule 7.2.1A is being undertaken on a voluntary basis and the FCA will not have the
authority to monitor the Company’s voluntary compliance with the Principles listed there, or to impose
sanctions in respect of any breaches.

In addition, while the Company has a Standard Listing, it is not required to comply with the provisions of,
among other things:

•          Chapter 8 of the Listing Rules regarding the appointment of a sponsor to guide the Company in
understanding and meeting its responsibilities under the Listing Rules in connection with certain
matters. The Company has not appointed, and does not intend to appoint, such a sponsor in connection
with Readmission;

•          Chapter 10 of the Listing Rules relating to significant transactions. It should be noted therefore that
the Acquisition and potentially any subsequent acquisitions will not require Shareholder consent
under the Listing Rules, even if Ordinary Shares are being issued as consideration for such
acquisition.

•          Chapter 11 of the Listing Rules regarding related party transactions. Nevertheless, the Company will
not enter into any transaction which would constitute a “related party transaction” as defined in
Chapter 11 of the Listing Rules without the specific prior approval of a majority of the non-executive
Directors;

•          Chapter 12 of the Listing Rules regarding purchases by the Company of its Ordinary Shares. In
particular, the Company has not adopted a policy consistent with the provisions of Listing Rules
12.4.1 and 12.4.2; and

•          Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules regarding the form and content of circulars to be sent to Shareholders.

Following Readmission, the Directors may in due course apply to transfer from a Standard Listing to either
a Premium Listing or other appropriate listing venue, based on the track record of the company or business
the Company acquires, subject to fulfilling the relevant eligibility criteria at the time. If a transfer to a
Premium Listing is possible (and there can be no guarantee that it will be) and the Company decides to
transfer to a Premium Listing, the various Listing Rules highlighted above as rules with which the Company
is not required to comply will become mandatory and the Company will comply with the continuing
obligations contained within the Listing Rules (and the Disclosure and Transparency Rules) in the same
manner as any other company with a Premium Listing.

It should be noted that the U.K. Listing Authority will not have the authority to (and will not) monitor the
Company’s compliance with any of the Listing Rules which the Company has indicated herein that it intends
to comply with on a voluntary basis, nor to impose sanctions in respect of any failure by the Company so to
comply. However, the FCA would be able to impose sanctions for non-compliance where the statements
regarding compliance in this Document are themselves misleading, false or deceptive.
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IMPORTANT INFORMATION

Without prejudice to the Company’s obligations under FSMA, the Prospectus Rules, Listing Rules and
Disclosure and Transparency Rules the delivery of this Document shall not, under any circumstances, create
any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the Company since the date of this Document
or that the information contained herein is correct as at any time after its date.

Investors must not treat the contents of this Document or any subsequent communications from the Company
or the Directors or any of their respective affiliates, officers, directors, employees or agents as advice relating
to legal, taxation, accounting, regulatory, investment or any other matters.

The section headed “Summary” should be read as an introduction to this Document. This Document does
not constitute, and may not be used for the purposes of, an offer to sell or an invitation or the solicitation of
an offer or invitation to subscribe for or buy any Ordinary Shares by any person in any jurisdiction.

Any decision to invest in the Ordinary Shares should be based on consideration of this Document as a whole
by the investor. In particular, investors must read the section headed “Section D – Risks” of the Summary
together with the risks set out in the section headed “Risk Factors” beginning on page 19 of this Document.

Neither the Financial Adviser nor any person acting on its behalf makes any representations or warranties,
express or implied, with respect to the completeness or accuracy of this Document nor does any such person
authorise the contents of this Document. No such person accepts any responsibility or liability whatsoever
for the contents of this Document or for any other statement made or purported to be made by it or on its
behalf in connection with the Company, the Ordinary Shares or Readmission. The Financial Adviser
accordingly disclaims all and any liability whether arising in tort or contract or otherwise which it might
otherwise have in respect of this Document or any such statement. Neither the Financial Adviser nor any
person acting on its behalf accepts any responsibility or obligation to update, review or revise the information
in this Document or to publish or distribute any information which comes to its attention after the date of
this Document, and the distribution of this Document shall not constitute a representation by the Financial
Adviser or any such person that this Document will be updated, reviewed, revised or that any such
information will be published or distributed after the date hereof.

Data protection

The Company may delegate certain administrative functions to third parties and will require such third
parties to comply with data protection and regulatory requirements of any jurisdiction in which data
processing occurs. Such information will be held and processed by the Company (or any third party,
functionary or agent appointed by the Company) for the following purposes:

(a)      verifying the identity of the investor to comply with statutory and regulatory requirements in relation
to anti-money laundering procedures;

(b)      carrying out the business of the Company and the administering of interests in the Company;

(c)      meeting the legal, regulatory, reporting and/or financial obligations of the Company in the United
Kingdom or elsewhere; and

(d)      disclosing personal data to other functionaries of, or advisers to, the Company to operate and/or
administer the Company.

Where appropriate it may be necessary for the Company (or any third party, functionary or agent appointed
by the Company) to:

(a)      disclose personal data to third party service providers, agents or functionaries appointed by the
Company to provide services to investors; and

(b)      transfer personal data out of the EEA to countries or territories which do not offer the same level of
protection for the rights and freedoms of investors as the United Kingdom.
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If the Company (or any third party, functionary or agent appointed by the Company) discloses personal data
to such a third party, agent or functionary and/or makes such a transfer of personal data it will use reasonable
endeavours to ensure that any third party, agent or functionary to whom the relevant personal data is
disclosed or transferred is contractually bound to provide an adequate level of protection in respect of such
personal data.

In providing such personal data, investors will be deemed to have agreed to the processing of such personal
data in the manner described above. Investors are responsible for informing any third party individual to
whom the personal data relates of the disclosure and use of such data in accordance with these provisions.

Forward-looking statements

This Document and any documents incorporated herein by reference include statements that are, or may be
deemed to be, “forward-looking statements”. In some cases, these forward-looking statements can be
identified by the use of forward-looking terminology, including the terms “targets”, “believes”, “estimates”,
“anticipates”, “expects”, “intends”, “may”, “will”, “should” or, in each case, their negative or other
variations or comparable terminology. They appear in a number of places throughout the Document and any
documents incorporated herein by reference and include statements regarding the intentions, beliefs or
current expectations of the Company and the Board of Directors concerning, among other things: (i) the
Company’s objective, acquisition and financing strategies, results of operations, financial condition, capital
resources, prospects, capital appreciation of the Ordinary Shares and dividends; and (ii) future deal flow and
implementation of active management strategies, including with regard to the Acquisition. By their nature,
forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties because they relate to events and depend on
circumstances that may or may not occur in the future. Forward-looking statements are not guarantees of
future performance. The Company’s or the Group’s actual performance, results of operations, financial
condition, distributions to Shareholders and the development of its financing strategies may differ materially
from the forward-looking statements contained in this Document and any documents incorporated herein by
reference. In addition, even if the Company’s or the Group’s actual performance, results of operations,
financial condition, distributions to Shareholders and the development of its financing strategies are
consistent with the forward-looking statements contained in this Document and any documents incorporated
herein by reference, those results or developments may not be indicative of results or developments in
subsequent periods. Important factors that may cause these differences include, but are not limited to:

•          the Company’s ability to ascertain the merits or risks of the Acquisition;

•          the availability and cost of equity or debt capital for future transactions;

•          currency exchange rate fluctuations, as well as the success of the Company’s hedging strategies in
relation to such fluctuations (if such strategies are in fact used);

•          changes in the economic environment; and

•          legislative and/or regulatory changes, including in the non-standard consumer credit sector and
taxation regimes.

Investors should carefully review the “Risk Factors” section of this Document for a discussion of additional
factors that could cause the Company’s or the Group’s actual results to differ materially, before making an
investment decision. For the avoidance of doubt, nothing in this paragraph constitutes a qualification of the
working capital statement contained in paragraph 13 of “Part XII – Additional Information”.

Forward-looking statements contained in this Document and any documents incorporated herein by
reference apply only as at the date of this Document. Subject to any obligations under the Listing Rules, the
Disclosure and Transparency Rules and the Prospectus Rules, the Company undertakes no obligation
publicly to update or review any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future
developments or otherwise.
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Market data                                                                                                                                                       

Where information contained in this Document has been sourced from a third party, the Company and the
Directors confirm that such information has been accurately reproduced and, so far as they are aware and
have been able to ascertain from information published by that third party, no facts have been omitted which
would render the reproduced information inaccurate or misleading.

Currency presentation

Unless otherwise indicated, all references in this Document to “U.K. Sterling” or “£” are to the lawful
currency of the U.K.

No incorporation of website

The contents of any website of the Company or any other person do not form part of this Document.

Definitions

A list of defined terms used in this Document is set out in “Part XIII – Definitions”.

Governing law

Unless otherwise stated, statements made in this Document or documents incorporated herein by reference
are based on the law and practice currently in force in England and Wales and are subject to changes therein.

Ann I (23.2)

Ann III (10.4)

44



RELEVANT DOCUMENTATION AND INCORPORATION
BY REFERENCE

The table below sets out the information which is incorporated by reference in this Document, to ensure
Shareholders and others are aware of all information which is necessary to enable Shareholders and others
to make an informed assessment of the assets and liabilities, financial position, profit and losses and
prospects of the Group and the rights attaching to the Ordinary Shares.

Information incorporated by Destination Page number in
reference into this Document of incorporation this Document

Interim Financial Statements “Part VII – Financial Information 80
on the Company”

Placing Prospectus (pages 99-106 (inclusive)) – “Part XII – Additional Information 112
“Part VIII – Additional Information – – Articles of Association”
Articles of Association”

Placing Prospectus (page 106) – “Part XII – Additional Information 112
“Part VIII – Additional Information – Founder Shares”
– Founder Shares”

Placing Prospectus (pages 108-109 (inclusive)) “Part XII – Additional Information 114
– “Part VIII – Additional Information – – Directors’ terms of employment”
Directors’ terms of employment”

Placing Prospectus (page 111) – “Part XII – Additional Information 116
“Part VIII – Additional Information – – City Code”
City Code”

Placing Prospectus (pages 111-113 (inclusive)) “Part XII – Additional Information 116
– paragraphs 18.1 “Placing Agreement”, – Material Contracts”
18.2 “Lock-up arrangements”, 
18.3 “Registrar Agreement”,
18.4 “Ondra engagement letter” and
18.5 “Cornerstone commitment letters” of
“Part VIII – Additional Information –
Material Contracts” 

Placing Prospectus (page 114) – “Part XII – Additional Information 117
“Part VIII – Additional Information – – Accounts and annual general meetings”
Accounts and annual general meetings”

Placing Prospectus (page 114) – “Part XII – Additional Information 117
“Part VIII – Additional Information – – Issues of new shares”
Issues of new shares” 

Information that is itself incorporated by reference in the Placing Prospectus is not incorporated by reference
into this Document. It should be noted that, except as set forth above, no other part of the Placing Prospectus
is incorporated by reference into this Document. The parts of the Placing Prospectus that are not incorporated
by reference are either not relevant for the investor (pursuant to article 28-4 of Commission Regulation (EC)
No 809/2004 of 29 April 2004) or covered in another part of this Document.
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                  EXPECTED TIMETABLE OF PRINCIPAL EVENTS                   

Publication of this Document 28 August 2015

Cancellation, readmission and recommencement of dealings on the
London Stock Exchange of Ordinary Shares 8 a.m. on 3 September 2015

All references to time in this Document are to London time unless otherwise stated.
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PART I

DESCRIPTION OF THE ACQUISITION

1.        Overview

The Company announced on 7 July 2015 that it had agreed to acquire the entire issued share capital of SD
Taylor, and thereby the business known as “Loansathome4u”, from S&U.

Completion was conditional upon:

•          the transfer to SD Taylor of all of S&U’s home credit business not then owned by SD Taylor; and

•          S&U shareholder approval of the Acquisition.

The Acquisition was approved by the Board on 3 July 2015.

For the Acquisition to proceed, the approval of the shareholders in S&U was required, since the Acquisition
constituted a class 1 transaction for S&U under Chapter 10 of the Listing Rules. S&U held a general meeting
on 3 August 2015 at which the Acquisition was approved.

The conditions having been satisfied or waived as appropriate, the Acquisition completed on 4 August 2015.

2.        Rationale for the Acquisition

The Company was established as a vehicle to acquire companies or businesses in the United Kingdom non-
standard unsecured consumer finance sector. The Directors explained in the Placing Prospectus that they
were currently interested in pursuing further acquisitions in the following subsectors: guaranteed loans,
consumer loans, rent to own and home credit, all of which are in non-standard unsecured consumer finance.
The Directors reviewed a number of acquisition opportunities since the 2015 Placing and measured those
opportunities against the criteria set out in the Placing Prospectus. A number of the opportunities were
rejected as not meeting the Company’s acquisition criteria, while others were not available at a price
consistent with the Company’s assessment of value.

Loansathome4u met the Company’s acquisition criteria as it:

•          operates within the one of the four subsectors which the company is focusing on;

•          has increased its net loan book in recent years;

•          generates an annual revenue yield in excess of 100 per cent. of its net loan book;

•          has a shorter loan book than other participants in the market;

•          achieves acceptable impairment levels given the yield;

•          has lower ultimate impairment than other participants in the market; and

•          generates strong cash flows on an annual basis.

3.        Consideration

The Acquisition was funded entirely with existing cash raised in connection with the 2015 Placing. The total
consideration paid by the Company to S&U was £82.5 million, subject to customary adjustments relating to
the amounts of debt, cash and working capital in SD Taylor on Completion.
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4.        Acquisition structure                                                                                                                              

At the date of this Document, the Company is the holding company of two wholly-owned subsidiaries, NSF
Subsidiary and NSF Subsidiary II. NSF Subsidiary II acquired the entire issued share capital of SD Taylor
and became its holding company on Completion.

5.        Documentation

Acquisition Agreement

The Acquisition Agreement was entered into on 7 July 2015 between the Company and S&U in respect of
the sale and purchase, subject to satisfaction of certain conditions, of the entire issued share capital of
SD Taylor, and thereby the Loansathome4u business, and completed on 4 August 2015.

The consideration for the purchase of the entire issued share capital of SD Taylor was the sum of
£82.5 million paid by the Company to S&U, subject to customary adjustments relating to the amounts of
debt, cash and working capital in SD Taylor on Completion.

The Acquisition Agreement was conditional on: (i) the passing by the shareholders of S&U of a resolution
to approve the Acquisition; and (ii) completion of the transactions contemplated by the Business Transfer
Agreement.

S&U has given warranties to the Company which are customary for a transaction of this nature (including,
among other things, in respect of its power and ability to enter into and perform the Acquisition Agreement,
title to its shares in SD Taylor, accounts and financial matters, contracts, litigation, matters relating to
employees, intellectual property, real estate matters and taxation) and has also given the Company certain
specific indemnities in respect of certain matters arising in respect of SD Taylor prior to Completion.

The Acquisition Agreement contains certain limitations on the ability of the Company to claim against S&U
for breach of warranty or breach of the Acquisition Agreement. In particular, the total aggregate liability of
S&U (including all legal and other costs and expenses) under the warranties will not exceed £30 million
(save in respect of claims under the warranties relating to: (i) S&U’s title to its shares in SD Taylor; and (ii)
S&U’s capacity). S&U will not be liable for any warranty claim for less than £30,000. S&U will also have
no liability for any warranty claim unless and until warranty claims exceed £300,000 in aggregate (in which
case S&U will be liable for the full amount and not just the excess over £300,000). In addition, non-tax
warranty claims must be brought on or before the date which is 18 months after Completion and tax warranty
claims must be brought on or before the fourth anniversary of Completion.

The Acquisition Agreement is governed by English law.

Business Transfer Agreement

The Business Transfer Agreement was entered into on 7 July 2015 between S&U and SD Taylor in respect
of the transfer of the home credit business of S&U, and thereby the portion of the Loansathome4u business
not previously owned by SD Taylor.

The consideration for the purchase of the home credit business of S&U was: (i) the sum of £38,272,000 paid
by SD Taylor to S&U, allocated between the assets, with any balance being allocated to goodwill; and
(ii) SD Taylor’s undertaking to assume liabilities pertaining to the transferring business arising after the
Transfer Time. S&U agreed to remain responsible for liabilities which are not assumed by SD Taylor under
the express terms of the Business Transfer Agreement (i.e. as a general rule, the liabilities pertaining to the
transferring business on or before the Transfer Time).

The Business Transfer Agreement contains certain customary provisions relating to the transfer of the
employees engaged in the business in accordance with the provisions of TUPE, including cross-indemnities
between S&U and SD Taylor under which S&U indemnifies SD Taylor in respect of liabilities incurred
before the Transfer Time and its breaches of TUPE, and SD Taylor indemnifies S&U in respect of certain
provisions of TUPE and liabilities incurred on or after the Transfer Time.

The Business Transfer Agreement is governed by English law.
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Transitional Services Agreement

The Transitional Services Agreement was entered into on 4 August 2015 between S&U and SD Taylor in
respect of the provision of certain IT services to SD Taylor for the period of 9 months following Completion.
S&U will charge SD Taylor for all third party costs incurred in the provision of the services, plus internal
costs incurred in providing the services (such internal costs not to exceed £37,500). SD Taylor also
undertakes to pay £76,000 in respect of enjoying the benefit of the contract with HBP Systems Limited.

The Transitional Services Agreement contains certain limitations on the liability of each party in respect of
claims under the Transitional Services Agreement. In particular, the aggregate liability of S&U to SD Taylor
shall not exceed the aggregate of the charges paid and payable to S&U under the Transitional Services
Agreement.

The Transitional Services Agreement is governed by English law.
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PART II

INFORMATION ON THE COMPANY AND INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

1.        Introduction

The Company was incorporated on 8 July 2014 under the laws of England and Wales with an indefinite life.

The Company’s Ordinary Shares were admitted to the Official List by way of a Standard Listing in
accordance with Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules and to trading on the London Stock Exchange’s Main
Market for listed securities, on 19 February 2015 simultaneously with which the Company raised
£102,283,168 before expenses through the 2015 Placing.

The Acquisition was completed on 4 August 2015, and was classified as a reverse takeover under the Listing
Rules. In accordance with Listing Rule 5.6.19G, the U.K. Listing Authority is expected to cancel the listing
of all the issued shares in the Company (the “Ordinary Shares”) immediately before 8.00 a.m. on
3 September 2015.

Applications will be made for the Ordinary Shares to be readmitted to the Official List pursuant to Chapter
14 of the Listing Rules which sets out the requirements for Standard Listings. It is expected that Readmission
will become effective at 8.00 a.m. on 3 September 2015.

2.        Company objective                                                                                                                                 

The objective of the Company is to operate Loansathome4u and implement an operating strategy with a view
to generating value for its Shareholders through operational improvements and growth as well as potentially
through additional complementary acquisitions.

3.        Industry overview                                                                                                                                   

Non-standard consumer finance

Non-standard consumer finance is the provision of secured and unsecured credit to consumers otherwise
than through mainstream financial institutions, and the Directors estimate that it accounts for approximately
40 per cent. of secured and 30 per cent. of unsecured lending in the U.K. Sums borrowed tend to be relatively
small by mainstream banking standards and are often borrowed for relatively short periods. In the U.K., it is
estimated that there are currently approximately 12 million people who do not meet the credit criteria of
mainstream financial institutions, for example because their incomes are too low (approximately 8 per cent.
of the total work-force is paid the minimum wage or below), they are self-employed with variable incomes
(approximately 15 per cent. of the total work-force), they are credit impaired (there were over 500,000
County Court judgments in the year to 30 September 2014), or they do not otherwise meet the requirements
of mainstream financial institutions (for example, over 3 per cent. of the total work-force comprises recently
arrived migrants). These potential customers can be creditworthy, but need a different type of credit facility
provided by specialist finance companies.

Non-standard consumer finance endeavours to address these needs and includes, but is not limited to, the
following.

Guaranteed consumer loans – a relatively new sector where generally £2,000 to £7,500 is lent to an
individual with the loan guaranteed by a family member or friend who is generally also a home owner.

Unsecured loans – unsecured personal loans of £200 to £600 made to those on lower incomes (generally
£400 a month) or with impaired credit ratings, with a fixed monthly repayment period typically of one to
three years.

Home credit – the provision of loans of £100 to £1,000 which are repaid to collectors who call in person
weekly on the customers (the Directors believe that this sector is a mature, yet profitable market with
approximately 3 million customers of which 1.5 – 2.0 million are active).
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Rent to own – a facility allowing those who are credit impaired and on lower incomes to buy consumer
durables from specialist shops offering weekly payment terms.

Payday loans – short-term loans typically in amounts of £100 to £2,000 made for periods of less than 30 days
to salaried employees with bank accounts and debit cards to be repaid in a lump sum out of their next salary
(this sector currently has regulatory, political and reputational issues as detailed further in “Part X –
Regulation”).

Pawnbroking – loans averaging under £100 (although sometimes much larger) are secured against pawned
goods, most often jewellery (this sector has recently seen lower customer volumes due to competition from
other forms of lending and a decline in the price of gold).

Sub-prime credit cards – the provision of credit cards to lower income salaried groups (generally up to
£30,000 in earnings) or those who are credit impaired with credit limits generally between £250 and £3,000
(a large number of market players left this sector in 2007).

Second charge mortgage – loans of up to £50,000 secured by means of a second charge mortgage which are
generally used for home improvement and repayable over five years (this is a fast-growing market that had
all but disappeared in 2008).

Bridging loans – the provision of bridge finance secured on property with a term not exceeding two years
where loan to value ratios are generally between 50 per cent. and 80 per cent.

Non-standard mortgages – the provision of first charge mortgages to those who do not meet the increasingly
stringent criteria of mainstream mortgage providers, where loan to value ratios are generally between 60 per
cent. and 75 per cent.

Car loans – the provision of hire purchase or other loan products to individuals for purchasing cars (this is
a fast-growing, but cyclical and highly competitive market).

APRs for loans in the non-standard consumer finance sector tend to be higher than in traditional bank
lending, giving the potential for strong returns. Within the non-standard consumer finance sector, APRs tend
to be lowest in second charge mortgages, bridging loans and non-standard mortgages, higher in guaranteed
consumer loans, rent to own and non-standard credit cards, higher again in unsecured loans, pawnbroking
and home credit, and highest in payday loans.

The Directors estimate the size of the U.K. unsecured non-standard consumer credit sector to be
approximately £70 billion of annual advances in the 12 months to 30 April 2015, accounting for
approximately one-third of the total unsecured lending market in the U.K. The Directors estimate that gross
secured lending to U.K. borrowers was approximately £200 billion in the 12 months to 30 April 2015. Data
from the CML indicates that around 40 per cent. of mortgage requests are refused on the basis that borrowers
do not meet the lenders’ underwriting criteria, which suggests that the non-standard share of the secured
lending market is approximately £80 billion.

Companies that currently operate in non-standard consumer finance are predominantly non-bank finance
companies and the large majority of these companies are involved in the provision of only one or two types
of financial products. The market is predominantly made up of specialist businesses that focus on either
secured or unsecured non-standard consumer finance products. A number of such companies have been set
up comparatively recently, their management seeking to benefit from the new opportunities afforded by the
effective end of mainstream lending to some categories of consumer from 2007 onwards. While mainstream
banks have generally withdrawn from this market, a small number of specialist lenders, including so-called
“challenger” banks, also service the non-standard consumer finance market.

Significant trends                                                                                                                                               

The non-standard consumer finance sector has recently been subject to increasing regulatory focus and
scrutiny, as evidenced by the fact that in response to the lending practices of certain market participants the
FCA introduced new rules, which came into force on 2 January 2015, to protect customers from excessive
charges under high-cost short-term credit agreements, including a cap on interest rates and fees. In its
Business Plan for 2015 to 2016, the FCA announced it would launch two thematic reviews into debt
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collection and the role of staff remuneration and incentives in driving the way firms treat their customers.
The FCA may make changes to its existing rules, or introduce new requirements, as a result of its findings.

The financial crisis of 2007 onwards resulted in mainstream financial institutions reducing their exposure to,
or exiting entirely, certain sectors. In the prime market, lending to SMEs reduced, as banks sought to limit
exposure to higher risk lending, reacting to decreased market liquidity and reputational concerns around risk.
In the non-standard consumer finance sector, new lending volumes declined significantly as financial
institutions sought to exit any sector which might be described as sub-prime. This left a large gap in the
market, and a growing section of the population without appropriate credit facilities.

The result of the credit crisis and the mainstream banks’ exodus from non-standard consumer finance has
been significant. Since 2006, overall consumer lending from mainstream financial institutions (including
non-standard lending) has steadily declined, while other consumer credit providers saw lending volumes
increase dramatically then fall equally dramatically after the financial crisis, before beginning to rise again
since 2012. Meanwhile, the number of individuals seeking non-standard advances has increased significantly
since 2007. In 2013, there were two million, or 20 per cent., more users of non-standard consumer finance
than there were in 2007. In addition, even though there are more users of non-standard consumer finance,
less credit is being extended to this enlarged pool of consumers than before the financial crisis; the Directors
estimate new advances to have fallen by 30 per cent. since 2007 with the average size of unsecured loans
down by 42 per cent. to approximately £5,800. The regulatory reforms initiated since the financial crisis, in
particular CRD IV (being the collective name for an EU legislative package covering prudential rules for
banks, building societies and investment firms which came into force on 1 January 2014) and the initiatives
introduced by the PRA and the FCA in the U.K., have significantly increased capital requirements and
conduct-related obligations for financial institutions, and in particular for large, systemically important
banks. The Directors believe that the large banks’ reduction of lending to the non-standard sector is therefore
a secular, rather than a cyclical, phenomenon.

As non-standard lending volumes by previous market leaders have declined, a significant portion of the U.K.
population has found itself with limited credit-raising options, an issue which is being addressed by new
specialist entrants into the market, targeting in particular payday and internet loans and sub-prime credit
cards. Many firms in the non-standard consumer finance sector are relatively immature or have reached a
stage of development where more professional management expertise and additional investment is required
to maintain historical growth rates, for instance to access more or better funding, implement stronger
management controls, utilise more rigorous credit standards, improve product pricing, roll out new
compliance protocols and improve IT systems. The Company intends to enable its acquired companies or
businesses to realise their growth potential and generate savings through scaling of the acquired company’s
IT, capital, compliance and finance platforms.

4.        Business strategy

Following the Acquisition, the Directors continue to be interested in pursuing further acquisitions in the
following subsectors: guaranteed loans, consumer loans, rent to own and home credit, all of which are in
non-standard unsecured consumer finance. The Directors do not currently intend to pursue acquisitions in
car finance, second charge mortgages, non-standard mortgages, bridging loans and payday loans.

5.        Potential for attractive returns and future growth

The Directors believe that the returns to Shareholders have the potential to be high in non-standard consumer
finance for the reasons set out below.

Expected high growth in the non-standard consumer finance sector

Following the 2007 credit crisis and the exit of mainstream financial institutions from the non-standard
consumer finance sector, challenger entrants began, and continue, to enter a market from which most large
mainstream brands are now removed. This has redefined the market, allowing smaller companies to assert
themselves in ways difficult before the crisis. Since then, innovation has been a key driver in the non-
standard market, as witnessed by the current dominance of specialist models and products.
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Growth is expected by the Directors as a result of a continuing improvement in economic conditions. As the
economic outlook improves, growth should come from increased liquidity within the financial system, which
the Directors believe should allow specialist financial institutions to offer greater amounts of credit at more
competitive rates. The Directors believe that economic improvement may also stimulate growth as a result
of changes in the way consumers use the credit available to them, moving away from living expenses to non-
consumables.

Changing customer behaviour and preferences are expected to support growth in the non-standard finance
sector. Internet-enabled customer acquisition, engagement and retention initiatives are likely to play an
increasingly important role in the non-standard finance market, permitting firms with superior technology
and marketing skills to achieve stronger market positions.

Increasing regulatory pressure offers a challenge to the sector, but the Directors believe this is likely to also
have a role in the growth of the market, providing a galvanising effect on institutions, and making space for
more dynamic entrants with responsible lending practices. For example, in response to the lending practices
of certain market participants, the FCA introduced new rules, which came into force on 2 January 2015, to
protect customers from excessive charges under high-cost short-term credit agreements, including a cap on
interest rates and fees.

A significant downturn in some types of lending (for example, in the high-cost short-term credit sector) has
been the natural outcome of the FCA ensuring that an adequate assessment of affordability is a paramount
aspect of the lending decision and stressing the importance that credit can be repaid by borrowers in a
sustainable manner.

The Directors believe that the FCA’s actions have not been aimed at depriving nearly a quarter of the U.K.
population of credit, but rather recognise that the continuing provision of credit in the non-standard
consumer finance sector is only possible if commercial returns are in line with risk. In the opinion of the
Directors, this regulatory approach creates an opportunity for the Company, in light of the Directors’
experience in the sector, to deliver “best in class” compliance with regulation in the subsector(s) in which it
makes acquisitions.

Expected high margin returns that can be charged

There are a number of additional costs attributable to the non-standard consumer finance sector, such as the
need to hold higher levels of capital against the risk of loan defaults (which are more frequent than in
mainstream finance, but also generally less volatile) and costs associated with more frequent and more face-
to-face customer interaction. These costs, and the higher risk profile of loans made within the non-standard
consumer finance sector, generally entail higher margin returns.

Expected high returns on equity

The combination of high growth which is believed by the Directors to exist within the non-standard
consumer finance market and the opportunity to leverage the Directors’ experience and knowledge could
lead to attractive returns on equity within the market. Returns from certain non-standard businesses have
reached over 25 per cent. per annum in recent years, although actual returns vary between market subsectors.

Strong dividend paying capability                                                                                                                     

The Company has not declared or paid any dividends before the date of this Document. During the first half
of 2016, the Directors intend to review the policy in relation to dividend distribution and, subject to the
performance of Loansathome4u and the funding requirements of the Company, intend to commence
payments of dividends during the second half of 2016. The Directors expect that the strong cash flow
generating capabilities of the types of business the Company may acquire should allow for the payment of
regular and growing dividends over time.

6.        Criteria to be used in evaluating potential acquisition targets

Out of over 100 non-standard lending businesses in the U.K., the Directors identified around 20 companies
that were likely to be of interest to the Company following the 2015 Placing. The Company has reviewed a
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number of acquisition opportunities since the 2015 Placing and measured those opportunities against the
criteria set out in the Placing Prospectus. A number of the opportunities were rejected as not meeting the
Company’s criteria, while others were not available at a price consistent with the Company’s assessment of
value. In addition to Loansathome4u, the Directors believe that there are a number of other companies in the
home credit subsector that are likely to be of interest, in addition to companies in the other subsectors they
are currently focusing on.

The Directors intend to target a return on equity for the Company of 20 per cent. to 30 per cent. per annum,
although the actual targeted return on equity may vary depending on the subsectors in which acquisitions are
made.

In particular, the Directors intend to seek further acquisitions that will enable the Group to achieve the
following (recognising that the actual targets may vary depending on the subsectors in which acquisitions
are made):

•          an ability to grow lending balances by at least 20 per cent. per annum on average;

•          strong yields underpinned by APRs of at least 50 per cent. to 100 per cent. in unsecured lending;

•          impairment levels implying an attractive ratio of risk to APR. These will be product-dependent, but
by way of illustration the risk might be between 1 per cent. and 39 per cent. of average receivables
(the short term nature of the products with higher APRs and higher impairment levels means that
average receivables are significantly less than total loans made during a year resulting in “bad debt”
levels of typically less than half the impairment rate based on average receivables);

•          a cost to income ratio of approximately 50 per cent. or lower once the business reaches appropriate
scale;

•          a focus on good customer outcomes and the fair treatment of customers;

•          an efficient funding and capital structure; and

•          strong cash flow generation allowing for the payment of regular and growing dividends over time.

The above targets are all illustrative and may change depending on factors including (but not limited to)
market circumstances and the Directors’ assessment of business conditions.

Other criteria that the Board might consider in evaluating potential acquisitions include (but are not limited
to):

•          the growth potential of the company’s or business’s products and the growth potential of those
products’ sector;

•          the strength (and potential strength) of the company’s or business’s marketing programme and brand;

•          the position of the company or business in its sector;

•          whether the company or business can be combined with an existing completed acquisition or potential
future acquisitions;

•          the scalability of the company’s or business’s product offering and supporting sales and market
infrastructure;

•          the target’s business culture;

•          the target’s compliance record;

•          the accuracy of historical provisioning against loan defaults;

•          the resilience and scalability of IT systems;

•          the robustness of its financial controls;
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•          the accuracy and sustainability of its pricing policy;

•          the analysis of margins with a view to sustaining or increasing them;

•          the capability of the management team and how it may be augmented;

•          the litigation and other business risks; and

•          plans for future funding.

The above factors are not intended to be exhaustive. Any evaluation relating to the merits of a particular
acquisition will be based, to the extent relevant, on the above factors as well as other considerations deemed
relevant to the Company’s business objective by the Directors. In evaluating a potential target company or
business, the Company expects to conduct a due diligence review which will encompass, among other things,
meetings with incumbent management and employees, document reviews, inspection of facilities, as well as
a detailed review of financial and other information which will be made available. The time required to select
and evaluate a target company or business and to structure and complete an acquisition, and the costs
associated with this process, are not currently ascertainable with any degree of certainty.

The Company expects that, following the Acquisition, its further acquisitions will involve acquiring
controlling interests in target companies or businesses. The Company (or its successor) may consider
acquiring a controlling interest constituting less than the whole voting control or less than the entire equity
interest in a target company or business if such opportunity is attractive. Future complementary acquisitions
may be non-controlling.

The Company has not yet identified any specific acquisition targets for further acquisitions and is agnostic
as to whether any targets it might seek will be fully regulated by the FCA or will have only interim
permissions to conduct consumer credit activity. If the Company were to seek to acquire a target firm which
was fully authorised by the FCA, then it would have to obtain the FCA’s approval before it could complete
any such acquisition, which could impact the timing of such acquisition. Such a target firm would also be
subject to enhanced regulatory requirements at the time of the acquisition, such as the requirement that those
persons performing a controlled function at the target firm would need to be approved to perform that
function by the FCA. This would not be the case for persons performing those functions at a target firm
which only had interim permissions to conduct consumer credit activity (but would become the case if and
when full authorisation was obtained by such a firm in due course).

If the Company were to seek to acquire a target firm which, like SD Taylor (being the company which
operates Loansathome4u’s business), only has interim permissions to conduct consumer credit activities,
then the FCA’s prior approval of the acquisition of the target firm would not be required. However, the target
firm would not be fully authorised and the Company would be subject to the risk that the target firm never
achieved full authorisation or that it had to make material changes to its operating models before it could do
so.

Prior to granting full authorisation for a firm to carry on regulated consumer credit activities, the FCA is
required under FSMA to carry out a thorough assessment of the applicant’s business model and to determine
whether that firm will meet the required organisational and suitability standards (referred to as the “threshold
conditions”). The threshold conditions include that the applicant firm has sufficient and appropriate
resources in terms of both quality and quantity in relation to the regulated activities which that applicant
wishes to undertake (taking into account, among other things, the nature and scale of the applicant firm’s
business activities). When determining an application for authorisation, the FCA will also be concerned
about whether the applicant firm had the necessary experience to carry on the authorised activities in
question. The Company will seek to ensure that any target firm it identifies and which will need to obtain
authorisation from the FCA either already has the necessary level of experience or is provided with suitable
experience by staff within the Company or by hiring suitably new and suitably experienced members of staff.
The Company intends to leverage the regulatory experience of its Directors to assist any acquired entity in
respect of any experience gaps they may suffer.
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7.        Creation of significant value through acquisitions

The Company intends to add value to acquired companies and business throughout the business cycle by
means of the following:

•          longstanding sector involvement: the Founders are well-known in the U.K. speciality finance market,
with extensive experience and knowledge in originating, growing and maintaining profitable non-
standard consumer finance businesses at strategic and operating levels;

•          experience in operating regulated businesses: the Founders have operated regulated businesses in non-
standard consumer finance markets for over 20 years, and the Directors believe that the current
regulatory dynamic presents an opportunity for trusted, conduct-focused management teams; and

•          potentially greater access to financing: it is expected that the acquired companies and businesses will
have the potential to access financing more easily when part of a more focused and streamlined
operation.

8.        Use of remaining proceeds from 2015 Placing                                                                                    

The Company intends to use the remaining proceeds from the 2015 Placing to support the growth of
Loansathome4u (which may include additional complementary acquisitions, as well as operational
improvements).

9.        Capital and returns management

The Company raised gross proceeds of approximately £102.2 million from the 2015 Placing. The Directors
believe that further equity capital raisings may be required by the Company as it pursues its objectives. The
amount of any such additional equity to be raised, which could be substantial, will depend on the nature of
the acquisition opportunities which arise and the form of consideration the Company uses to make an
acquisition and cannot be determined at this time.

The total consideration paid by the Company to S&U in connection with the Acquisition was £82.5 million,
subject to customary adjustments relating to the amounts of debt, cash and working capital in SD Taylor on
Completion. Fees and expenses in connection with the Acquisition amounted to approximately £1.3 million
(inclusive of amounts in respect of VAT).

The pre-emption rights contained in the Companies Act 2006 (whether to issue equity securities or sell them
from treasury) have been disapplied: (i) for the purposes of, or in connection with, the 2015 Placing; (ii)
generally, for such purposes as the Directors may think fit, up to an aggregate amount of 5 per cent. of the
value of the Ordinary Shares on (or immediately after) Admission; (iii) for the purposes of issues of
securities offered to Shareholders on a pro rata basis; and (iv) for the purposes of issues of Ordinary Shares
to satisfy rights relating to the Founder Shares, such disapplications to expire at the conclusion of the annual
general meeting of the Company following the Acquisition (in respect of (i) to (iii)) and on 12 February 2020
(in respect of (iv)). Otherwise, Shareholders will have pre-emption rights which will generally apply in
respect of future share issues for cash. No pre-emption rights exist in respect of future share issues wholly
or partly other than for cash.

The Company expects that any returns for Shareholders would derive primarily from capital appreciation of
the Ordinary Shares and any dividends paid pursuant to the Company’s dividend policy set out below.

10.      Dividend policy                                                                                                                                       

The Company has not declared or paid any dividends before the date of this Document. During the first half
of 2016, the Directors intend to review the policy in relation to dividend distribution and, subject to the
performance of Loansathome4u and the funding requirements of the Company, intend to commence
payments of dividends during the second half of 2016.
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11.      Corporate governance                                                                                                                            

Under the rules applicable to companies with a Standard Listing, Shareholder approval was not required in
order for the Company to complete the Acquisition.

The Group intends to observe best practice on corporate governance. The Board (i) has on a voluntary basis
adopted the Model Code and (ii) intends to continue to comply with the U.K. Corporate Governance Code
to the extent considered appropriate following the Acquisition. Accordingly, the Company has appointed
audit, risk, remuneration and nomination committees. However, the Company will not have a senior
independent director or at least two independent non-executive directors (see “Corporate governance” under
“Part VI – Share Capital, Liquidity and Capital Resources and Accounting Policies” for more information).
Compliance with the provisions of the Model Code is being undertaken on a voluntary basis, and the FCA
will not have the authority to monitor the Company’s voluntary compliance with the Model Code or to
impose sanctions in respect of any breaches.

12.      Readmission to trading on the Official List

The Directors have applied for the Ordinary Shares to be readmitted to the Official List of the UKLA by way
of a Standard Listing and to trading on the Main Market. Readmission is expected to occur at 8 a.m. on
3 September 2015 and copies of this Document will be available to the public, free of charge, from the
Company’s registered office for a period of 14 days from Readmission.

13.      CREST                                                                                                                                                     

The Articles permit the Company to issue shares in uncertificated form in accordance with the Uncertificated
Securities Regulations 1995.

The Board resolved on 12 February 2015 to make such arrangements as are necessary for the title to the
Ordinary Shares, in issue or to be issued, to be transferred by means of a relevant system in accordance with
the provisions of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 1995.
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PART III

INFORMATION ON LOANSATHOME4U

1.        Introduction                                                                                                                                            

Home credit is a home-based credit service which is delivered to customers by agents. It is aimed at
customers on modest incomes who may have limited ability to save, and therefore use credit to bridge gaps
in their household budgets or to buy relatively expensive items, for example in the run-up to Christmas.

The home credit market has around 3 million regular users, of which 1.5-2.0 million borrow at any one time.
Customers tend to come from the C2, D and E socio-economic groups, with annual incomes of
approximately £10-15,000.

The distinctive feature of home credit is the use of agents to deliver the products to customers’ homes. The
close relationship that can develop between agents and customers is designed to ensure an appreciation of
each customer’s circumstances and allow the best response to their individual needs. This leads to a relatively
low impairment rate compared to other unsecured non-standard consumer finance products and high levels
of repeat custom.

Loansathome4u is one of the top three participants in the home credit market, providing home credit
facilities to approximately 100,000 customers in the United Kingdom through small size unsecured personal
loans delivered by more than 500 agents. Loansathome4u has 39 branches throughout England, Wales and
Scotland, as well as its head office in Solihull. In the financial year ended 31 January 2015, Loansathome4u
produced revenues of £38.3 million and profit before tax of £8.4 million. Net assets as at 31 January 2015,
excluding an intercompany receivable balance of £16.3 million, for Loansathome4u were £33.1 million.1

2.        History                                                                                                                                                     

Prior to the Acquisition, Loansathome4u was 100 per cent. owned by S&U. S&U was founded by Clifford
Coombs in Birmingham in 1938. In 1961 the company was floated on the London Stock Exchange. By 1975,
S&U and Loansathome4u had developed from a goods-based credit business to a finance and hire-purchase
operation. The business was taken forward by Clifford Coombs’ sons, Keith and Derek Coombs, in the
following three decades.

3.        Corporate structure                                                                                                                                

Loansathome4u operates and is licensed through one company: SD Taylor. Previously, Loansathome4u
operated through two companies: one part of the business was run through SD Taylor’s holding company,
S&U, with 19 branches throughout the Midlands, the South of England and South Wales; while the other
part of the business was run through SD Taylor, with its business covering the North of England, North
Wales, and Central and Southern Scotland. S&U transferred the part of Loansathome4u’s business it
operated to SD Taylor in accordance with the terms of the Business Transfer Agreement.

4.        Business description                                                                                                                               

Products

Loansathome4u’s loan products range from 23 weeks to 70 weeks in duration, with the majority
(approximately 83 per cent.) of borrowers taking out either 32 week or 41 week products. By way of
illustration, a borrower taking out a 32 week loan of £100 might expect to repay £160 in total at a weekly
rate of £5 per week, giving an effective APR of 399.7 per cent., while a borrower taking out a 41 week loan
of £100 might expect to repay £164 in total at a weekly rate of £4 per week, giving an effective APR of
281.5 per cent.
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Process

Customers who are interested in a loan will contact Loansathome4u, following which an agent will arrange
a time to visit that customer at home. At this visit, the agent will discuss the possibility of taking out a loan
and obtain written consent to call back. The agent will arrange for a second visit to the customer’s home to
explain how the process will work. If the customer remains interested in taking out a loan, the agent will
undertake appropriate affordability checks and try to understand that customer’s individual circumstances.

If the agent decides that a loan should be made to the relevant customer, then the customer will be provided
with a contract which clearly sets out the terms and conditions of the loan, including the total amount
payable, the APR, the number of weekly payments and the amount of each weekly payment. Once the
customer has signed the contract, their agent will provide them with a cash loan and agree a weekly
collection regime with the customer at a mutually convenient time.

The majority of Loansathome4u customers make their weekly repayments in cash with the remainder paying
by means of bank transfer or bank debit card. This reduces the risk seen in certain other types of non-
standard consumer finance of amounts being suddenly deducted from customer bank accounts without their
knowledge, potentially triggering financial difficulties due to the unforeseen timing of the deduction.

Transparency and flexibility

Home credit is a relatively transparent method of borrowing, and a Loansathome4u customer knows exactly
how much they will be required to repay before they take out the loan. The total repayment amount is fixed
by Loansathome4u at the start of the loan and there are no additional interest charges, penalty fees, late fees
or extra payments. This means that the debt, once in place, cannot spiral upwards. The only fee currently
charged is a £12 fee in the event a customer’s cheque bounces.

Home credit providers are also well-placed to provide customers with flexibility as their circumstances
change or if financial difficulties arise, because the home credit agents tend to know their customers well and
can seek to accommodate unforeseen issues by means of face-to-face contact and an understanding of the
customer’s situation.

5.        Key strengths

Loansathome4u’s operations in the home credit subsector exhibit the following key strengths:

Long-established and stable marketplace with consistent consumer demand                                                

Loansathome4u was established in 1938 and has focused on providing home credit since 1975.
Loansathome4u has grown its loan book consistently over many years and has a high level of repeat business,
with approximately 90 per cent. of loans being made to repeat customers.

Attractive risk-adjusted returns with strong yields more than offsetting higher impairment levels

The annual revenue yield on Loansathome4u’s net loan book has exceeded 100 per cent. in each of the last
three years, while impairment levels have averaged 22 per cent. of revenues leading to a net yield in excess
of 80 per cent. per annum.

Life of loan collections as a percentage of the total amount contractually repayable by the customer exceeded
94 per cent. for loans issued throughout 2010 and the first three quarters of 2011. These are the most recent
loan vintages for which full life of loan data is available (based on behavioural rather than contractual term).
Collections performance to date on subsequently issued vintages of lending are performing in line with loans
issued in 2010 and 2011.

High barriers to entry created by the need for a branch network and agent workforce to serve the customer
base

Loansathome4u has 39 branches providing national reach of mainland United Kingdom with more than 500
agents who service a round or “journey” of customers visiting each customer weekly. This face-to-face
contact enables agents to keep track of customer circumstances ensuring loans are appropriate when made
and that customers can manage payments flexibly in line with changing personal circumstances, with the
agent’s role being to understand the reasons behind these issues, manage bad debt risk and identify
vulnerable customers. Agents build strong personal relationships with customers over time, driving loyalty
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in the relationship and contributing to repeat business. In addition (and largely as a result of these factors),
there is as yet no straightforward digital alternative to the home credit market.

Products which are appropriate for the target consumer as they are not subject to penalties, fees or
increased interest for late payment

The total amount repayable by a customer (i.e. principal advanced plus interest, fees and charges) is
unchanged regardless of the time taken for the customer to repay the loan. This allows payments to be
deferred or reduced over a longer term without penalty to the customer.

Loansathome4u is one of the top three providers of home credit and is well-placed to grow

The home credit industry has three large national providers and a large number of smaller operators.
Loansathome4u is the number three provider in the home credit industry, behind Provident Financial and
SFS/Morses. The three largest providers all benefit from both economies of scale and the ability to invest in
systems and processes to meet the increased regulatory requirements of the FCA.

Within the top three, Loansathome4u is well-placed due to Provident Financial substantially reducing its
customer numbers and agent workforce, which has enabled the business to grow its customer numbers in
recent years. Loansathome4u has been able to grow its business without increasing its impairment levels due
to the careful underwriting of each loan and an effective agent workforce, both of which have been
longstanding attributes. In addition, the Acquisition will allow the Company to attain its objective of
achieving scale in its core target market of home credit.

Home credit lending not subject to FCA’s high-cost short-term credit price cap

Home credit lending is not subject to the price cap which applies to certain high-cost short-term credit
products under the FCA’s rules. This is because “home credit loan agreements” (broadly speaking, loans
under which the sums payable are collected by the lender or its agent at the customer’s home) are excluded
from the definition of “high-cost short-term credit”. In addition, even if the price cap were to be applied to
home credit loan agreements, Loansathome4u’s products would fall within the price cap.

6.        Growth strategy

Whilst Loansathome4u has shown growth in recent years, the Directors believe that S&U has increasingly
focused on its car finance operation and has used cash flow from Loansathome4u to fund the growth in car
finance. This has led to a lack of investment in systems and technology compared to its larger peers, and has
also restricted Loansathome4u’s ability to hire more senior management. The Company intends to accelerate
growth through:

Hiring additional management to support the ambition of creating a larger business, including a new
Chief Executive, Compliance Director, Finance Director and Risk Director

Loansathome4u has an experienced operational management team but has relied on S&U’s board of
directors for strategic guidance. In addition, S&U has focused its investment on its car finance division and
growth in Loansathome4u’s central staff has been relatively limited. 

The Company has hired Mark Bardsley as Loansathome4u’s new Chief Executive. Mark has thirty years’
experience in home credit. The last twenty years have been spent as Chief Executive Officer/Managing
Director of home credit businesses overseas (in the Czech Republic, Poland and Russia for International
Personal Finance plc) and in the U.K. (with Morses and Shopacheck). He has extensive experience of
operating in highly regulated financial services environments with successful records of balancing good
customer outcomes with financial returns.

Mark intends to hire a supporting senior management team to enable Loansathome4u to grow its business,
build a more modern IT infrastructure and add increased sophistication to the underwriting process and use
of behavioural science in order to deliver further growth whilst managing associated credit risk.

Expanding the agent workforce and branch network to grow the customer base

Loansathome4u has had some success in recent years in opening new branches which have become
profitable within one to two years and also in expanding existing branches through adding agents. The
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Company intends to add further branches and agents with a strategy of targeting agents who previously
worked for Provident Financial as it reduces its agent workforce. This approach should also enable the
Company to attract former Provident Financial customers.

Investing in systems and technology to further enhance Loansathome4u’s underwriting processes to
support the increased customer acquisition

S&U’s focus on its car finance division has also reduced investment in Loansathome4u’s underwriting
processes, many of which remain largely manual. The Company intends to invest in data processing systems
to better assess customer credit scores and enhance customer affordability checks utilising third party data
in addition to more than a decade of customer data held in Loansathome4u databases. This investment in
systems and technology will be supported by the creation of a data analytics team.

Deploying hand held technology into the agent workforce to increase efficiency

Loansathome4u’s agent workforce continues to use paper-based systems to assess customer income and
expenditure in the lending process. This slows the process and also means that any requirement for branch
manager input involves the agent travelling to the branch. Both Provident Financial and SFS/Morses have
deployed handheld technology. This technology affords the opportunity to increase efficiency and also to
provide evidence of data captured in the customer assessment process and the Company intends to do the
same. It also enables customer income and expenditure information to be checked against third party data
for specific customer demographics.

Expanding the compliance function to support “best in class” customer outcomes

The Company has performed a comprehensive regulatory due diligence exercise in connection with the
Acquisition, as a result of which the Directors intend to update Loansathome4u’s policies, procedures,
practices and documentation, including in particular a renewed focus on responsible lending and
affordability, debt collection processes, corporate governance and compliance frameworks, as well as
updates to agents’ contracts. Loansathome4u has created an in-house compliance function, but the Company
intends to focus more resources in this area, in particular through: (i) hiring an experienced Compliance
Director who would form part of Loansathome4u’s senior management team; and (ii) refreshing
Loansathome4u’s policies, procedures, practices and documentation to ensure that they deliver appropriate
customer outcomes. The strategy of focusing on “best in class” customer outcomes may have a negative
impact on results, particularly in the short term. For example, an increased focus on affordability criteria
could reduce lending volumes and thereby profitability.

Seeking further acquisition opportunities as the home credit industry consolidates in light of increasing
regulation

There are a number of smaller home credit providers in addition to the three leading providers (the Consumer
Credit Association currently has over 500 members) many of which are considering their futures now that
the new regulatory environment is likely to involve additional cost to meet the FCA’s requirements. The
Company intends to seek acquisition opportunities amongst these smaller companies, giving it the
opportunity to expand margins and market share.

7.        Current trading and prospects                                                                                                              

S&U issued a Trading Statement on 5 August 2015 in which it noted that, “Loansathome4u has again
demonstrated the consistency of performance and debt quality which has characterised it over the past 77
years. Although sales are around 9% down on the record level of last year, profitability is running at levels
comparable to the last five years, although less than last year’s high.”

Overall, the Directors believe that the home credit market has shown long-term consistency, but that given
the existing trends in the home credit market, with large players scaling down their operations, smaller
players coming under pressure to exit the market, and high barriers to entry, Loansathome4u is well-placed
to grow its operations.
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PART IV

THE DIRECTORS, THE BOARD AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1.        Introduction

The Directors believe that the Board comprises a knowledgeable and experienced group of professionals
with a long history of collaboration between team members and extensive experience of non-standard
consumer finance, making acquisitions and operational improvement. The Directors further believe that their
track records of successful management and investment in non-standard consumer lending demonstrate their
ability to generate value for investors and complete operational improvements to companies.

2.        The Directors

John van Kuffeler is Chairman, Nicholas Teunon is Chief Financial Officer, Miles Cresswell-Turner is a
Director, Charles Gregson and Robin Ashton are non-executive Directors and Heather McGregor is an
independent non-executive Director. Details of the Directors are set out below.

John Philip de Blocq van Kuffeler, Chairman, born 9 January 1949 (aged 66)

John was Chief Executive and then Chairman of Provident Financial plc, one of the U.K.’s leading suppliers
of personal credit products in the non-standard consumer finance sector, for a combined total of 22 years
until December 2013, during which period the company achieved a 44-fold return for shareholders. John was
Chairman of Marlin Financial Group Limited, the consumer debt purchasing company, for four years until
its sale in February 2014, during which period the company achieved an internal rate of return of 42 per cent.
for shareholders, and was also Chairman of Hyperion Insurance Group Limited for five years until December
2013, during which period the company achieved an internal rate of return of 22 per cent. for shareholders.
John was previously Chief Executive of Brown Shipley Holdings PLC which included Medens Trust
Limited, a consumer car finance company, and was Chairman of the credit committee of Brown Shipley
Holdings PLC’s main banking subsidiary, Brown, Shipley & Co. Limited. John brings extensive knowledge
of the non-standard consumer finance sector and invaluable corporate governance oversight gained from his
involvement with many listed and unlisted companies.

Nicholas John Teunon, Chief Financial Officer, born 19 March 1966 (aged 49)

Nick was Chief Financial Officer of Marlin Financial Group Limited, the consumer debt purchasing
company, from August 2013 until June 2014, where he worked with John van Kuffeler and Miles Cresswell-
Turner. Prior to that, Nick spent five years as Chief Financial Officer of FTSE International Limited, where
he was part of the management team that grew the company’s operations to an enterprise value of
£900 million (based on the price paid by the London Stock Exchange Group to purchase the 50 per cent.
interest held by the Financial Times). Nick also spent seven years as Group Finance & Strategy Director of
the Press Association, where he worked with Charles Gregson. At both FTSE International and the Press
Association, Nick was responsible for all mergers and acquisitions activity and related debt funding, in
addition to leading the finance function. Nick has previous experience as finance director of a public
company based on his time at Water Hall Group plc, where he led a rights issue and placing.

Miles Marius Cresswell-Turner, Director, born 22 August 1962 (aged 52)

Miles is a partner in Duke Street LLP who specialises in the finance sector and who led on the acquisitions
by Duke Street LLP of Marlin Financial Group Limited, the consumer debt purchasing company, and
U.K.WM Limited, the wealth manager. Before becoming a partner at Duke Street LLP, Miles was a partner
at Palamon Capital Partners LLP from 1998 to 2008, where he led the investment in Towry Law plc. Prior
to Palamon Capital Partners LLP, Miles spent seven years as a director in the Leveraged Finance Department
of HSBC Investment Bank. During his time at Duke Street LLP and Palamon Capital Partners, Miles has
achieved an internal rate of return of 39 per cent. across eight investments. Miles has considerable experience
of building smaller entrepreneur-led companies into larger, more successful businesses, a prime example
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being the sale by Duke Street LLP of Marlin Financial Group Limited, which provided investors with an
internal rate of return of 42 per cent. Miles has an extensive knowledge of the non-standard consumer finance
sector.

Charles Henry Gregson, Non-Executive Director, born 7 June 1947 (aged 68)

Charles is Chairman of ICAP plc. Charles was Chairman of Wagon Finance Limited, a sizable motor finance
group, from 1996 to 2006, Non-executive Director and Deputy Chairman of Provident Financial plc from
1998 to 2007 and Non-executive Director of International Personal Finance Plc from 2007 to 2010. Charles
is the former Chairman of CPP Group Plc and of St James’s Place Plc. He is a Non-executive Director and
the Senior Independent Director of Caledonia Investments Plc, in which role he is Chairman of the
Governance Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Charles is also the Chairman of PA Trustees
Limited and a Non-executive Director of the University of Chichester’s Multi-Academy Trust. Charles was
Executive Director of United Business Media Plc (formerly MAI Plc) from 1984 to 2003 and Global CEO
and Chairman of PR Newswire from 2003 to 2009. As part of his responsibilities at United Business Media
Plc, Charles built Harlow Meyer Savage from a small money broking business into the international business
of Garban PLC, a listed company with offices in 25 countries which later merged with ICAP plc. Charles
brings outstanding experience and expertise of the international financial markets and the U.K. non-standard
consumer finance sector as well as the experience of building a small financial business into an international
player.

Robin James Ashton, Non-Executive Director, born 19 January 1958 (aged 57)

Robin spent 24 years at Provident Financial plc, joining the Board in 1993 initially as Finance Director, then
Deputy Chief Executive in 1999 and Chief Executive in 2001, leaving in early 2007 prior to the demerger of
Provident’s international business. During his tenure as Chief Executive he oversaw the expansion of
Provident’s international business into six countries and its progression from start-up loss to a substantial
profitable business. He also initiated the start-up, in 2003, and development of Vanquis Bank, now
Provident’s most profitable business. Robin then spent 11 months as Chief Executive of London Scottish
Bank plc liaising closely with the regulator and lending banks to restructure and attempt to recapitalise and
sell the group. Following the demise of Lehman’s, administrators were appointed in November 2008. Robin
has been a Non-executive Director of Leeds Building Society since April 2011 and Chairman since March
2013. He is also a Non-executive Director and the Senior Independent Director of Shawbrook Group plc,
which floated in April 2015. He has also been Non-executive Chairman of Apple Holdco Limited, the
original holding company for what is now Shawbrook Bank Limited’s secured lending business and was a
Non-executive Director of Albemarle & Bond Holdings PLC (A&B) for 13 months from October 2012
where he played a significant role trying to recapitalise the business. He resigned from A&B in November
2013 prior to the business being sold via an administration in March 2014. Robin has extensive experience
of retail financial services both in the U.K. and internationally.

Heather Jane McGregor, Independent Non-Executive Director, born 27 March 1962 (aged 53)

Heather is the Managing Director and principal shareholder of the executive search firm Taylor Bennett,
having bought the company from its founders in 2004. In her early career she worked in financial PR and
investor relations before spending eight years with the Dutch bank ABN Amro as a banker in their capital
markets division. She has an MBA from the London Business School and a PhD from the University of Hong
Kong. Heather was the founder of the Taylor Bennett Foundation, which works to promote diversity in the
communications industry, is a trustee of Career Ready, which works with 16-19 year olds to help them
transition from education to employment, and is a founding member of the steering committee of the 30%
Club, which is working to raise the representation of women at senior levels within the U.K.’s publicly
quoted companies. She is also an experienced writer and broadcaster in the national media. Heather was
awarded a CBE for services to business in the 2015 Queen’s Birthday Honours List.

3.        Directors’ remuneration, fees and expenses

Details of the Directors’ Employment Contracts and Letters of Appointment, including their entitlement to
remuneration, fees and expenses are incorporated by reference in “Part XII – Additional Information”.
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4.        Strategic decisions

Members and responsibility

The Directors are responsible for carrying out the Company’s objectives, implementing its business strategy
and conducting its overall supervision. Acquisitions, divestments and other strategic decisions are all
considered and determined by the Board.

The Board provides leadership within a framework of prudent and effective controls, and will continue to do
so after the Acquisition. The Board has established the corporate governance values of the Company and will
continue to have overall responsibility for setting the Company’s strategic aims, defining the business plan
and strategy and managing the financial and operational resources of the Company.

Frequency of meetings

Following the Acquisition, the Board will schedule meetings eight times per year and will hold additional
meetings as and when required. The expectation is that this will result in more than eight meetings of the
Board each year.

Corporate governance

Following the Acquisition, the Company intends to continue to voluntarily observe the requirements of the
U.K. Corporate Governance Code as it considers appropriate. As at the date of this Document the Company
is, and at the date of Readmission will be, in compliance with the U.K. Corporate Governance Code, with
the exception of certain provisions which are not considered to be appropriate due to the nature of the
Company both pre- and post-Acquisition, including (but not limited to) the following:

•          Certain provisions of the U.K. Corporate Governance Code (in particular the provisions relating to
(i) the division of responsibilities between the Chairman and (ii) chief executive and executive
compensation), are considered by the Board to be inapplicable to the Company.

•          The Company does not comply with the requirements of the U.K. Corporate Governance Code in
relation to the requirement to have a senior independent director and at least two independent non-
executive directors.

As at the date of this Document, the Board has appointed nomination, remuneration, audit or risk
committees. In addition, the Board has voluntarily adopted the Model Code for directors’ dealings contained
in the Listing Rules of the U.K. Listing Authority. The Board will be responsible for taking all proper and
reasonable steps to ensure compliance with the Model Code by the Directors. Compliance with the Model
Code is being undertaken on a voluntary basis and the FCA will not have the authority to (and will not)
monitor the Company’s voluntary compliance with the Model Code, nor to impose sanctions in respect of
any failure by the Company to so comply.

Following the Acquisition, subject to eligibility, the Directors may seek to transfer from a Standard Listing
to either a Premium Listing or other appropriate listing venue, based on the track record of the company or
business it acquires, subject to fulfilling the relevant eligibility criteria at the time. However, in addition to
or in lieu of a Premium Listing, the Company may determine to seek a listing on another stock exchange.
Following such a Premium Listing, the Company would comply with the continuing obligations contained
within the Listing Rules and the Disclosure and Transparency Rules in the same manner as any other
company with a Premium Listing.

5.        Other Agreements

The Company has also entered into a number of other agreements for the provision of registrar and other
services more fully described and/or incorporated by reference in paragraph 17 of “Part XII – Additional
Information”.
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6.        Conflicts of interest

Potential areas for conflicts of interest in relation to the Company include:

•          Aside from the Chairman and the Chief Financial Officer (who will commit their full time to the
Company’s affairs), none of the Directors are required to commit their full time to the Company’s
affairs and, accordingly, they may have conflicts of interest in allocating management time among
various business activities. Miles Cresswell-Turner will commit such time as may reasonably be
required for the proper performance of his duties, and Robin Ashton, Charles Gregson and Heather
McGregor intend to commit an amount of time that would be standard for a non-executive director
working in the sector.

•          In the course of their other business activities, the Directors may become aware of investment and
business opportunities which may be appropriate for presentation to the Company as well as the other
entities with which they are affiliated. They may have conflicts of interest in determining to which
entity a particular business opportunity should be presented.

•          The Directors are or may in the future become affiliated with entities, including other special purpose
acquisition vehicles, engaged in business activities similar to those intended to be conducted by the
Company, which may include entities with a focus on target companies or businesses similar to those
being sought by the Company.

•          The Directors are subject to a lock-up agreement with respect to the transfer of Ordinary Shares held
by them, which will terminate one year following Completion.

•          The Directors may have a conflict of interest with respect to evaluating a particular acquisition
opportunity if the retention or resignation of any of the Directors were included by a target company
or business as a condition to any agreement with respect to an acquisition.

•          The Directors have, or may come to have, other fiduciary obligations, including to other companies
on whose board of directors they presently sit or to other companies whose board of directors they
may join in the future. To the extent that they identify business opportunities that may be suitable for
the Company or other companies on whose board of directors they may sit, the Directors will honour
any pre-existing fiduciary obligations ahead of their obligations to the Company. Accordingly, they
may refrain from presenting certain opportunities to the Company that come to their attention in the
performance of their duties as directors of such other entities unless the other companies have
declined to accept such opportunities or clearly lack the resources to take advantage of such
opportunities.

•          The Directors are currently interested in pursuing acquisitions in the following subsectors: guaranteed
loans, consumer loans, rent to own and home credit. Due to his other activities, Robin Ashton may
become subject to conflicts of interest in the event that acquisitions are made in the following
subsectors: second charge mortgages, bridging loans and non-standard mortgages. The Company does
not currently intend to pursue acquisitions in any of the latter subsectors, but if in future the Company
were to make such an acquisition, Robin Ashton may resign as a Director as a result of his conflicts
of interest.
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PART V

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

The following discussion and analysis of Loansathome4u’s results of operations and financial condition
relates to the financial information as at and for the years ended 31 January 2013, 2014 and 2015.

The financial information as at and for the years ended 31 January 2013, 2014 and 2015 has been extracted
without material adjustment from the audited historical financial information that appears in “Part VIII –
Financial Information on Loansathome4u”, and has been prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted in
the EU.

Shareholders should read the following discussion together with the whole of this document, including “Risk
Factors” and “Part VIII – Financial Information on Loansathome4u”, and should not rely solely on the
information set out in this Part.

1.        Introduction                                                                                                                                            

Loansathome4u is one of the three largest incumbents (together with Provident Financial and SFS/Morses)
of the U.K. home credit market, a market consisting of approximately 3 million individual customers of
which 1.5-2.0 million are active at any one time. The three largest incumbents make up roughly 75 per cent.
of the overall market with the remainder being served by smaller, local credit providers. Customers of
Loansathome4u typically borrow two or three unsecured weekly loans per year, with each loan averaging
£300 advance and £480 repayable over an average term of 35 weeks.

In the financial year ended 31 January 2015 (“FY2015”), Loansathome4u had a net loan book of
£34.6 million and approximately 100,000 customers across the U.K. Revenue of £38.3 million was up
10.7 per cent. as against revenue of £34.6 million in the financial year ended 31 January 2014 (“FY2014”).
Pre-tax profit of £8.4 million was up 8 per cent. (FY2014: £7.8 million), while return on assets2 was 24.5 per
cent. (FY2014: 22.9 per cent.). Overall during the period, customer growth was 7 per cent. and revenue
growth was 12 per cent.

2.        Key factors affecting results of operations                                                                                           

During the last three years the business has been operating in a period of stability as the directors of S&U
have deployed excess cash generated by Loansathome4u to fund growth in its other operating division, car
finance, and dividends paid by the S&U Group. During this time, the loan book net of impairment has grown
by 3 per cent. from £33.5 million as at 31 January 2013 to £34.6 million as at 31 January 2015. The only
significant macro factor which has impacted on Loansathome4u has been the increased regulatory focus and
regime (see below). Cash generated (prior to amounts distributed to other group companies or used to fund
dividends paid to the shareholders of S&U) was £7.1 million in the year ended 31 January 2013, £5.8 million
in the year ended 31 January 2014 and £6.3 million in the year ended 31 January 2015.

In this period, there has been an underlying change in the mix of product term in issue with a shift towards
the shorter term (32 week) “Popular” product away from the longer term “Select” (41 week) and “Jubilee”
(52 week) products. This was a deliberate strategy employed by management to recycle the cash retained in
the business more quickly which has also suited customers’ needs and their debt servicing capabilities.

The change in lending strategy has resulted in an increase in lending volumes and an associated increase in
revenue over the last financial year. This, net of an increase in operating expenses (outlined below), has been
the principal driver in growing net profit from £7.8 million in the year ended 31 January 2014 to £8.4 million
in the year ended 31 January 2015. There have been no significant one-off or non-recurring items of income
or expenditure in this period within reported results.

Subsequent to this, the current financial year’s issuance of loans has been reduced by both a focus on
preparation for full FCA authorisation (see below) and also a tightening of Loansathome4u’s policy on
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issuance of re-loans to existing customers. The full impact of these actions has not been quantified, in
particular with respect to the key Christmas lending planned for 2015.

Since 1 February 2012, Loansathome4u has opened a net five new branches, although three of these
represented the splitting of existing field operations. The operating cost base of Loansathome4u has
increased by £1.9 million in the financial year ended 31 January 2015. This has principally been driven by
increased commission payments to agents and salary costs for additional branch and customer care managers
associated with expansion of the branch network. Loansathome4u has also invested in the compliance
function as it moves towards full FCA authorisation.

Further investment is expected to be required by the Directors in order to further strengthen governance and
compliance functions as well as to expand the senior management team and develop the platform for growth.
The Directors estimate that incremental costs in this regard will be in the region of £2.0 million per annum.

Loansathome4u’s business is extremely seasonal, with approximately 35 per cent. of loan issues (by value)
occurring in the three month period to Christmas each year.

Collections performance is also seasonal. As no penalty charges are made for missed or late repayments, a
key factor incentivising customers to repay loans is that the manner and timing of repayment will help
determine eligibility for subsequent or additional loans should the customer require these. Agents
communicate regularly with customers in order to help customers understand whether sufficient loan
repayments have been made for them to be eligible for an additional loan or re-loan at the time this is
required by the customer. Typically this results in an improvement in collections performance in the final
quarter of the financial year as customers ensure payments are made in accordance with the terms of their
loan terms and/or catch up on sufficient missed payments so as to be eligible for further lending in the peak
Christmas lending period.

Collections are adversely impacted in the final week of December of each year. This is a result of both
financial pressures on customers following the Christmas period, as well as lower collections activity by
agents over the Christmas holiday period due to the reduced number of working days.

Customer repayments in January typically do not feature a ‘catch up’ in lost payments from the late-
December lull. As the impairment provision calculation is based on collections performance over the
preceding 10 weeks, this means that at the financial year end, customers’ arrears status is typically worse
relative to other months. This drives an increased impairment charge at the financial year end which partially
unwinds as customer repayment performance improves to more ‘normal’ levels over time, and missed
payments are caught up in advance of the next seasonal lending peak.

Over the last three financial years and current year to date, collections performance (measured in terms of
proportion of total amount contractually repayable) has been consistent across both product and borrower
type.

As remuneration paid to collection agents is largely commission-based, the impact of any deterioration in
collections is partially offset by a saving on commission that would otherwise be paid to collection agents in
connection with amounts collected.

Other factors impacting collections performance relate to agent circumstances. In some circumstances
customer loans are outstanding, but there may be no agent permanently assigned to make collection on the
relevant journey, or the commission income generated from the journey may not be sufficient to motivate the
agent to make collections. Loansathome4u is able to partially mitigate the impact of this through the use of
enhanced commission payments to incentivise agents to collect on, or cover, these journeys.

The close relationships between agents and their customers is a strength in terms of customer retention but
also increases the risk that, when an agent elects to transfer between home credit companies, their customers
do so too. Loansathome4u has benefited from this in the recent past, with a number of agents transferring
from a competitor to enable the establishment of the Bridgend branch in 2015.
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The Group’s results are also affected by the following factors:

2.1      Changing regulatory circumstances                                                                                                     

As part of SD Taylor’s application for full FCA authorisation, there is a risk that the FCA may require
changes to Loansathome4u’s business model, including (but not limited to) a tightening of income and
expenditure assessments on potential customers, which could reduce the volume and/or value of loans
issued, which in turn could reduce earnings. The impact of this has been seen to some extent in
reduced lending volumes in the current financial year, as noted above.

2.2      Accounting policy changes

IFRS 9 will replace IAS 39 as the accounting standard governing the classification, measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting of financial instruments, including loan assets. This expanded
version of IFRS 9 will take effect for accounting periods commencing 1 January 2018. Under IFRS
9, Loansathome4u will be required to make provision for future credit losses.

For lending businesses with short-term loan books such as Loansathome4u, this is likely to mean that
future expected credit losses over the life of the loan will be required to be recognised either on issue
of loans or early in the loan term, whereas currently impairment provisions are only recognised where
a ‘loss event’ has been experienced.

As the carrying value of loans under IFRS 9 is based on the present value of future expected cash
flows, discounted using the contractual effective interest rate of the loan, the discounting element of
the impairment provision is high for Loansathome4u. Whilst the impact of revisions to IFRS 9 has yet
to be quantified for Loansathome4u, this could have a significant impact on the carrying value of the
loan book.

It should be noted that the discounting element of the impairment provision will unwind over the
period in which collections are received from customers, and therefore the profit recognised over the
life of the loan will be unchanged following the adoption of prospective changes to IFRS 9. However,
this accounting policy change will result in earlier recognition of impairment losses and therefore later
recognition of profits earned on loans.

2.3      Regulatory environment                                                                                                                        

In common with other areas of the financial services sector, the home credit market has come under
scrutiny in recent years and this has resulted in the home credit market being regulated by the FCA
since April 2014. The introduction of the FCA regulatory regime is expected to put increasing
pressure on the smaller competitors and drive market share gains for the larger incumbents.

2.4      Market rationalisation                                                                                                                           

A recent trend in the home credit market has also been an increasing focus by Loansathome4u’s peers
on rationalising their customer bases and a resultant scaling back of their operations. When considered
alongside the new regulatory environment, this presents a significant opportunity for both organic and
inorganic growth for Loansathome4u.

2.5      Market risk

Demand for Loansathome4u’s loan products is affected by both macro-economic conditions and by
competitive pressures in the market for home credit. Demand has remained relatively stable since the
financial crisis in 2007 with the overall home credit target market remaining at around 3 million
adults. The reduction in interest rates following the financial crisis has not had an impact on the rates
charged by home credit companies and it is not anticipated that an increase in base rates would have
an impact in the future either. Any increased funding costs on borrowings taken on by Loansathome4u
after the Acquisition could be accommodated within existing margins paid by customers through loan

Ann I (9.2.1)

Ann I (9.2.3)

Ann I (9.2.3)

ESMA 30

Ann I (9.2.1)

Ann I (9.2.2)

69



charges. As noted above competitive pressure has reduced as Loansathome4u’s competitors have
scaled back their operations.

3.        Key performance indicators                                                                                                                  

The Directors intend to regularly review key performance indicators in managing the business and measuring
the Group’s performance. These will include revenue yield, impairment percentage of revenue, risk-adjusted
margin and returns on assets.

                                                                                                    31 January         31 January         31 January
                                                                                                             2013                  2014                  2015

Revenue yield                                                                                            na               102.5%               111.6%
Impairment percentage of revenue                                                     22.6%                 22.4%                 22.0%
Risk-adjusted margin                                                                                 na                 79.5%                 87.0%
Return on assets                                                                                         na                 22.8%                 24.3%

The Directors also intend to include earnings per share as a key performance indicator in future financial
reports.

•          “Revenue yield” represents revenue as a percentage of an average of amounts receivable from
customers at the beginning and at the end of the financial period. The Directors consider revenue yield
to be an important indicator of Loansathome4u’s revenue generating capacity.

•          “Impairment percentage of revenue” is calculated by dividing impairment (of amounts receivable
from customers) by revenue. The Directors consider impairment percentage of revenue to be an
important indicator of Loansathome4u’s loan book performance.

•          “Risk adjusted margin” is calculated by dividing revenue less impairment (of amounts receivable from
customers) by an average of amounts receivable from customers at the beginning and at the end of the
financial period. The Directors consider impairment percentage of revenue to be an important
indicator of Loansathome4u’s underlying operating performance and loan book performance.

•          “Return on assets” represents profit before taxation as a percentage of an average of amounts
receivable from customers at the beginning and at the end of the financial period. The Directors
consider return on assets to be an important indicator of Loansathome4u’s underlying operating
performance.

Revenue yield, impairment percentage of revenue, risk adjusted margin and return on assets are non-IFRS
measures. These measures are included in this Document because they will be used by the Group in
managing the business performance and measuring the Group’s core performance and cash flows, and the
Directors consider that it will be beneficial to potential investors in understanding the Group. However the
figures disclosed herein may not be comparable to similarly titled measures disclosed by other companies as
non-IFRS measures are not uniformly defined.

4.        Current trading                                                                                                                                      

The current financial year’s issuance of loans has been reduced due both to a focus on preparation for SD
Taylor’s application for full FCA authorisation and also a tightening of Loansathome4u’s policy on issuance
of re-loans to existing customers.

S&U issued a Trading Statement on 5 August 2015 in which it noted that, “Loansathome4u has again
demonstrated the consistency of performance and debt quality which has characterised it over the past 77
years. Although sales are around 9 per cent. down on the record level of last year, profitability is running at
levels comparable to the last five years, although less than last year’s high.”

So far as the Directors are aware, there have been no new significant trends affecting Loansathome4u since
the date of this statement.
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5.        Description of key line items in the income statement                                                                       

Revenue

Revenue represents interest income on loans and receivables together with income from the sale of goods to
customers.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales represents loan loss provisions, the cost of goods sold to customers and marketing expenses.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses include, but are not limited, to commissions payable on collections of amounts due
from customers, administrative staff costs, leases for office space, utility costs, IT costs, depreciation and
professional fees.

Finance income

Loansathome4u is being acquired net of cash/borrowings so there is no historical finance income to present.

Taxation

Tax comprises current tax as well as the changes in provisions for deferred tax.

Results of operations                                                                                                                                         

The following table sets out selected income statement data for the three years ended 31 January 2015.

Income Statement                                                                      31 January        31 January        31 January
                                                                                                              2013                   2014                  2015
                                                                                                             £’000                  £’000                  £’000

Revenue                                                                                              34,087                34,597                38,298
Cost of sales                                                                                        (9,509)               (9,797)             (10,996)
Gross profit                                                                                         24,578                24,800                27,302
Administrative Expenses                                                                   (16,669)             (17,037)             (18,893)
Operating profit                                                                                    7,909                  7,763                  8,409
Finance income                                                                                           –                         –                         –
Profit before taxation                                                                            7,909                  7,763                  8,409
Taxation                                                                                               (1,924)               (1,799)               (1,794)
Profit for the year attributable to equity holders                                  5,985                  5,964                  6,616

Revenue                                                                                                                                                               

Loansathome4u generated revenue of £34.6 million in 2014, a 1 per cent. increase on 2013. This increase
was due to the combination of the opening of two new branches in Falkirk and Sunderland and the
recruitment of 5,000 new customers during the year. The benefit of these factors was partially offset by lower
levels of consumer confidence in the first three quarters of the year.

Loansathome4u generated revenue of £38.3 million in 2015, an 11 per cent. increase on 2014 with the
increase due to a 7 per cent. increase in customer numbers during the year due in part to the opening of new
branches in Bridgend, Greenock and Liverpool together with the acquisition of Ambassador Finance, serving
the Central Belt of Scotland, in February 2014.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales increased by 3 per cent. in 2014 to £9.8 million as the charge for loan loss provisions increased
year on year reflecting the growth in customer loan balances. Cost of sales increased by 12 per cent. in 2015
to £11.0 million as the charge for loan loss provisions increased year on year reflecting the higher growth in
customer loan balances in 2015.
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Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by 2 per cent. in 2014 to £17.0 million reflecting increased commissions
as collections grew year on year, inflation in wages and other costs and some increase in the administrative
cost base to support a growing business. Administrative expenses increased by 11 per cent. in 2015 to
£18.9 million reflecting further increases in commissions, inflation in wages and other costs and a more
substantial increase in the administrative cost base to support higher growth in 2015.

Operating profit                                                                                                                                                  

Operating profit reduced by 2 per cent. to £7.8 million in 2014 as costs increased faster than revenues as
described above. In 2015 costs grew more slowly than revenues leading to an 8 per cent. increase in
operating profit to £8.4 million.

Taxation

The tax charge reduced in 2014 as operating profits fell year on year and the rate of corporation tax
decreased. In 2015 the tax charge remained unchanged as an increase in operating profits was offset by a
further reduction in the rate of corporation tax.

Balance sheet

The following table sets out the balance sheets for the three years ended 31 January 2015.

Balance Sheet                                                                             31 January         31 January         31 January
                                                                                                             2013                  2014                  2015
                                                                                                             £’000                  £’000                  £’000
Non current assets
Property, plant and equipment                                                             1,357                  1,412                  1,438
Investments                                                                                                  0                         0                         0
Amounts receivable from customers                                                       246                     234                     185
Retirement benefit asset                                                                              0                         0                         0
Deferred tax assets                                                                                      0                         0                         0
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
                                                                                                             1,603                  1,646                  1,623
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Current assets                                                                                                                         
Inventory                                                                                                  115                     136                       59
Amounts receivable from customers                                                  33,249                33,808                34,437
Trade and other receivables                                                                     167                     259                     230
Cash and cash equivalents                                                                           0                         0                         0
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
                                                                                                           33,531                34,203                34,726
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Total assets                                                                                        35,134                35,849                36,349

Current liabilities
Bank overdrafts and loans                                                                           0                         0                         0
Trade and other payables                                                                    (1,030)               (1,234)               (1,383)
Current tax liabilities                                                                          (1,047)               (1,144)               (1,097)
Accruals and deferred income                                                               (264)                  (521)                  (608)
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
                                                                                                            (2,341)               (2,899)               (3,088)
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Non current liabilities
Bank loans                                                                                                   0                         0                         0
Financial liabilities                                                                                      0                         0                         0
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Deferred tax liabilities                                                                           (103)                  (134)                  (126)
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
                                                                                                               (103)                  (134)                  (126)
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Total liabilities                                                                                   (2,444)               (3,033)               (3,214)
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
NET ASSETS                                                                                    32,690                32,816                33,135                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
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Non-current assets

Non-current assets were essentially flat between 2013 and 2015 as capital expenditure was offset by a similar
level of depreciation.

Current amounts receivable from customers

Current amounts receivable from customers grew by 2 per cent. in 2014 to £33.8 million for the reasons
described under “Revenue” above. They grew a further 2 per cent. in 2015 for the reasons described under
“Revenue” above.

Other current assets

Inventory declined between 2013 and 2015 as Loansathome4u continued to de-emphasise the sale of goods
to customers while trade and other receivables increased modestly as supplier pre-payments increased as the
revenues grew. Cash balances remained at £nil reflecting the transfer of cash from trading to the wider S&U
Group.

Current liabilities

Both trade and other payables and accruals and deferred income grew in each year reflecting the increased
administrative expenses described above.

Non-current liabilities

Bank loans and financial liabilities remained at £nil reflecting the transfer of cash from trading to the wider
S&U Group.

Net assets

Net assets were essentially flat between 2013 and 2014 as the increases in current liabilities described above
offset the increase in amounts receivable from customers described above. Net assets increased by 1 per cent.
to £33.1 million in 2015 due to the increase in amounts receivable from customers described above.

Cash flow                                                                                                                                                            

Cash Flow Statement                                                                31 January         31 January         31 January
                                                                                                             2013                  2014                  2015
                                                                                                             £’000                  £’000                  £’000

Net cash inflow from operating activities                                        7,717                  6,345                  6,782
Proceeds on disposal of fixed assets                                                         48                       33                       34
Purchase of property plant and equipment                                            (625)                  (540)                  (519)
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Net cash used in investing activities                                                      (577)                  (507)                  (485)
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Cash remitted to parent/other group companies                                 (7,140)               (5,838)               (6,297)
Issue of new shares                                                                                     0                         0                         0
Receipt of new borrowings                                                                         0                         0                         0
Repayment of borrowings                                                                           0                         0                         0
Net decrease/increase in overdraft                                                              0                         0                         0
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Net cash used in financing activities                                                  (7,140)               (5,838)               (6,297)
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Net increase/decrease in cash and cash equivalents                               0                         0                         0
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year                                    0                         0                         0
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Cash and cash in bank                                                                              0                         0                         0
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6.        Accounting principles

The following summarises the accounting and other principles applied in preparing this operating and
financial review:

Revenue recognition

Interest income is recognised in the income statement for all loans and receivables measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method (EIR). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash flows of the loan back to the present value of the advance. Acceptance fees charged to customers and
any direct transaction cost are included in the calculation of the EIR. Under IAS 39 credit charges on loan
products continue to accrue at the EIR on all impaired capital balances throughout the life of the agreement
irrespective of the terms of the loan and whether the customer is actually being charged arrears interest. This
is referred to as the gross up adjustment to revenue and is offset by a corresponding gross up adjustment to
the loan loss provisioning charge to reflect the fact that this additional revenue is not collectable.
Commission received from third party insurers for brokering the sale of motor finance insurance products,
for which Loansathome4u does not bear any underlying insurance risk is recognised and credited to the
income statement when the brokerage service has been provided, after taking into account expected refunds
payable on customer early settlements and policy cancellations. Sales of goods are recognised in the income
statement when the product has been supplied.

Amounts receivable from customers

All customer receivables are initially recognised at the amount loaned to the customer plus direct transaction
costs. After initial recognition the amounts receivable from customers are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Loansathome4u assesses on an ongoing basis whether there is objective evidence that a loan
asset or group of loan assets is impaired and requires a deduction for impairment. A loan asset or a group of
loan assets is impaired only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the loan. Objective evidence may include evidence that a
borrower or group of borrowers is experiencing financial difficulty, default or delinquency in repayments.
Impairment is then calculated by estimating the future cash flows for such impaired loans, discounting the
flows to a present value using the original EIR and comparing this figure with the balance sheet carrying
value. All such impairments are charged to the income statement. For all accounts which are not impaired,
a further incurred but not reported provision (IBNR) is calculated and charged to the income statement based
on management’s estimates of the propensity of these accounts to default from conditions which existed at
the balance sheet date. Key assumptions in ascertaining whether a loan asset or group of loan assets is
impaired include information regarding the probability of any account going into default and information
regarding the likely eventual loss including recoveries. These assumptions and assumptions for estimating
future cash flows are based upon observed historical data and updated as management considers appropriate
to reflect current and future conditions. All assumptions are reviewed regularly to take account of differences
between previously estimated cash flows on impaired debt and the eventual losses.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Certain freehold property is
held at previous revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation as Loansathome4u has elected to use these
amounts as the deemed cost as at the date of transition to IFRS under the transitional arrangements of IFRS
1. Depreciation is provided on the cost or valuation of property, plant and equipment in order to write such
cost or valuation over the expected useful lives as follows:

Freehold buildings 2% per annum straight line
Computers 20% per annum straight line
Fixtures and fittings 10% per annum straight line or 20% per annum reducing balance
Motor vehicles 25% per annum reducing balance
Freehold land Not depreciated

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value.
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Taxation

Current tax is provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

Pensions

Pension charge represents the amount payable by Loansathome4u for the financial year to defined
contribution pension schemes.

Share-based payments

Loansathome4u has issued share-based payments under the S&U 2008 Discretionary Share Option Plan and
the S&U 2010 Long Term Incentive Plan. The cost of these share-based payments is based on the fair value
of options granted as required by IFRS 2. This cost is then charged to the income statement over the three
year vesting period of the related share options with a corresponding credit to reserves. When any share
options are exercised, the proceeds received are credited to share capital and share premium.

Leases

Rental costs under operating leases are charged to the income statement on a straight line basis.

Investments

Investments held as fixed assets are stated at cost less provision for any impairment.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key accounting judgements which the Directors have made in the process of applying the accounting
policies and which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are
the judgements relating to revenue recognition and impairment. The Directors consider that there are no key
sources of estimation uncertainty other than those inherent in the consumer credit market in which the Group
operates. Following Completion, the Company intends to commence a full review of the application of
SD Taylor’s existing provisioning policy.
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PART VI

SHARE CAPITAL, LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.        Share capital

The Company was incorporated on 8 July 2014 under the Companies Act 2006.

Details of the current issued shares of the Company are set out in paragraph 3 of “Part XII – Additional
Information”. As at Readmission, there is expected to be £5,264,222.25 of Ordinary Shares (divided into
105,284,445 issued Ordinary Shares of £0.05 each).

All the issued Ordinary Shares will be in registered form, and capable of being held in certificated or
uncertificated form. The Registrar will be responsible for maintaining the share register. Temporary
documents of title will not be issued. The ISIN of the Ordinary Shares is GB00BRJ6JV17. The SEDOL
number of the Ordinary Shares is BRJ6JV1.

2.        Liquidity and capital resources

2.1      Sources of cash and liquidity

The Company

The Company’s current principal source of cash is the proceeds from the 2015 Placing. The total
consideration paid by the Company to S&U for the Acquisition was £82.5 million, subject to
customary adjustments relating to the amounts of debt, cash and working capital in SD Taylor on
Completion. Fees and expenses in connection with the Acquisition amounted to approximately
£1.3 million (inclusive of amounts in respect of VAT).

As a substantial portion of the cash raised from the 2015 Placing was used in connection with the
Acquisition, following the Acquisition the Company’s future liquidity will depend in the medium to
longer term primarily on: (i) the profitability of the Group; (ii) the Company’s management of
available cash; (iii) cash distributions on sale of existing assets; (iv) the use of borrowings, if any, to
fund short-term liquidity needs; and (v) dividends or distributions from subsidiary companies.

In due course, the Company intends to use its remaining cash to fund all or part of further acquisitions.
The Company may raise additional capital from time to time in connection with a further acquisition.
Such capital may be raised through share issues (such as rights issues, open offers or private placings)
or borrowings.

The Company may also make a further acquisition or fund part of a further acquisition through share-
for-share exchanges. Any such exchanges will be subject to the restrictions on the issue of shares
incorporated by reference in paragraph 4 of “Part XII – Additional Information”.

In addition to capital raised from new equity, the Company may choose to finance all or a portion of
a further acquisition with debt financing. Any debt financing used by the Company is expected to take
the form of bank financing, although no financing arrangements will be in place at Readmission.

Any debt financing for a further acquisition will be assessed with reference to the projected cash flow
of the target company or business and may be incurred at the Company level or by any subsidiary of
the Company. Any costs associated with the debt financing will be paid with the proceeds of such
financing.

If debt financing is utilised, there will be additional servicing costs. Furthermore, while the terms of
any such financing cannot be predicted, such terms may subject the Company to financial and
operating covenants or other restrictions, including restrictions that might limit the Company’s ability
to make distributions to Shareholders.
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The consolidated statement of cash flows of the Company is incorporated by reference in “Part VII –
Financial Information on the Company”.

Loansathome4u

Loansathome4u’s principal source of cash is the cash generated from its business operations.
Loansathome4u has generated net cash inflows from operating activities of between £6.3 million and
£7.7 million over the last three financial years. Over this period, Loansathome4u has exhibited strong
levels of profit to cash conversion as there has been limited growth in the loan book.

Given the seasonality of the Loansathome4u business (as described more fully at paragraph 2 of
“Part V – Operating and Financial Review and Prospects”), the Directors intend that the Company
will provide any funding required to support Loansathome4u’s pre-Christmas peak in lending for the
current financial year. It is noted that, as described above, over a full financial year Loansathome4u
generates positive cash flows.

The consolidated statement of cash flows of Loansathome4u for the period ended 31 January 2015 is
set out in “Part VIII – Financial Information on Loansathome4u”. There has been no material change
in Loansathome4u’s liquidity since 31 January 2015, and Loansathome4u does not currently have any
material borrowings. Loansathome4u’s liquidity requirements arise primarily from the need to fund
capital expenditures, to meet working capital requirements and to fund tax obligations. Cash flows
generated from operating activities have historically been sufficient to meet Loansathome4u’s
liquidity needs on an annual basis. Loansathome4u was acquired by the Company on a cash- and debt-
free basis. Given the nature of Loansathome4u’s business model, its loans are expected to be a source
of cash on an ongoing basis.

2.2      Cash uses                                                                                                                                                 

The Company

The Company intends to use the remaining proceeds from the 2015 Placing to support the growth of
Loansathome4u (which may include additional complementary acquisitions, as well as operational
improvements).

Following the Acquisition and in accordance with the Company’s business strategy and applicable
laws, the Company expects to make distributions to Shareholders in accordance with the Company’s
dividend policy.

In addition to using cash to fund the Acquisition, to finance the Group and to fund further acquisitions
and distributions to Shareholders, the Company will incur day-to-day expenses that will need to be
funded. Such expenses include: (i) Directors’ fees; and (ii) operational and administrative costs and
expenses, which will include (but will not be limited to) (a) the fees and expenses of the Registrar and
(b) regulatory, custody, audit and licence fees, trademark fees, insurance and other similar costs.

The Company expects to spend £1.5 million on an annual basis to enable it to identify further target
companies or businesses. The Company expects to incur further costs as it conducts due diligence on
target companies and businesses and legal fees and other professional costs if it completes further
acquisitions. There may be wasted costs in respect of a further acquisition that does not proceed (for
example, as a result of due diligence).

It is intended that any company or business acquired, which is expected to be an operating company
or business, will pay all of its own expenses associated with operating such company or business as
well as any funding costs associated with any debt raised in conjunction with such company’s
acquisition.

Loansathome4u

The Directors intend to use the cash generated by Loansathome4u to fund the business’s operations
and to grow the business in accordance with the strategy set out at “Part III – Information on
Loansathome4u”.
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Cash generated from the Loansathome4u business has historically been used to provide funding for
dividend payments and to fund other group companies, rather than to generate growth in the
Loansathome4u business.

Historically, investing activities have been limited to capital expenditure on fixed assets and the
disposal of fixed assets. Net capital expenditure has been largely consistent at approximately
£0.5 million per annum with the majority of fixed asset additions relating to motor vehicles and the
fit-out or refurbishment of office properties.

Net cash retained by the business has been £nil in each year as all surplus funds have been distributed
by way of dividend or to other group companies as noted above.

3.        Capitalisation and indebtedness

The Company

At the date of this Document, the Company:

(a)      does not have any secured, unsecured or unguaranteed indebtedness, including direct and contingent
indebtedness, other than its liabilities under the contracts incorporated by reference in paragraphs 9
and 17 of “Part XII – Additional Information”;

(b)      has not granted any mortgage or charge over any of its assets; and

(c)      does not have any contingent liabilities or guarantees.

The Company’s capitalisation derived from the last published financial information at the date of this
Document is summarised in the table below:

Equity attributable to owners of the parent £000

Share capital                                                                                                                                               5,264
Share premium                                                                                                                                         92,715
                                                                                                                                                              –––––––
                                                                                                                                                                 97,979                                                                                                                                                              –––––––
Notes:

(1)   There has been no material change in the capitalisation of the Company since 30 June 2015.

(2)   Capitalisation does not include retained earnings.

Loansathome4u

At the date of this document, Loansathome4u:

(a)      does not have any secured, unsecured or unguaranteed indebtedness, including direct and contingent
indebtedness, other than its liabilities under the contracts incorporated by reference in paragraph 17
of “Part XII – Additional Information”;

(b)      has not granted any mortgage or charge over any of its assets; and

(c)      does not have any contingent liabilities or guarantees.

Loansathome4u has not in the past formed a separate legal group and therefore it is not meaningful to show
share capital or an analysis of reserves for Loansathome4u.

4.        Interest rate risks

The Company may incur indebtedness to finance and leverage a further acquisition and to fund its liquidity
needs. Such indebtedness may expose the Company to risks associated with movements in prevailing interest
rates. Changes in the level of interest rates can affect, among other things: (i) the cost and availability of debt
financing and hence the Company’s ability to achieve attractive rates of return on its assets; (ii) the
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Company’s ability to make a further acquisition when competing with other potential buyers who may be
able to bid for an asset at a higher price due to a lower overall cost of capital; (iii) the debt financing
capability of the companies and businesses in which the Company is invested; and (iv) the rate of return on
the Company’s uninvested cash balances. This exposure may be reduced by introducing a combination of
fixed and floating interest rates or through the use of hedging transactions (such as derivative transactions,
including swaps or caps). Interest rate hedging transactions will only be undertaken for the purpose of
efficient portfolio management, and will not be carried out for speculative purposes. See “Hedging
arrangements and risk management” below.

5.        Foreign currency risks

The functional and presentational currency of both the Company and Loansathome4u is U.K. Sterling. As a
result, following Readmission the Group’s consolidated financial statements will continue to carry the
Group’s assets in U.K. Sterling. However, the Group may in future acquire a target company or business that
denominates its financial information in a currency other than U.K. Sterling or that conducts operations or
makes sales in currencies other than U.K. Sterling. When consolidating a business that has functional
currencies other than U.K. Sterling, the Group will be required to translate, inter alia, the balance sheet and
operational results of such business into U.K. Sterling. This could lead to significant changes in the Group’s
reported financial results from period to period. Among the factors that may affect currency values are trade
balances, levels of short-term interest rates, differences in relative values of similar assets in different
currencies, long-term opportunities for investment and capital appreciation and political developments.

Any currency hedging undertaken by the Group will have the sole purpose of efficient cash management and
will mainly be carried out to seek to reduce the risk of currency fluctuations and the volatility of returns that
may result from such currency exposure. This may involve the use of foreign currency borrowings to finance
foreign currency assets, foreign exchange swaps or foreign exchange contracts and other similar
transactions. Spot, forward or option transactions may also be used as part of the currency hedging strategy.
Currency hedging transactions will not be carried out for speculative purposes.

6.        Hedging arrangements and risk management

The Group may use forward contracts, options, swaps, caps, collars and floors or other strategies or forms
of derivative instruments to limit its exposure to changes in the relative values of investments that may result
from market developments, including changes in prevailing interest rates and currency exchange rates, as
previously described. It is expected that the extent of risk management activities by the Group will vary
based on the level of exposure and consideration of risk across the business.

The success of any hedging or other derivative transaction generally will depend on the Group’s ability to
correctly predict market changes. As a result, while the Company may enter into such a transaction to reduce
exposure to market risks, unanticipated market changes may result in poorer overall investment performance
than if the transaction had not been executed. In addition, the degree of correlation between price movements
of the instruments used in connection with hedging activities and price movements in a position being
hedged may vary. Moreover, for a variety of reasons, the Group may not seek, or be successful in
establishing, an exact correlation between the instruments used in a hedging or other derivative transactions
and the position being hedged and this could create new risks of loss. In addition, it may not be possible to
fully or perfectly limit the Group’s exposure against all changes in the values of its assets, because the values
of its assets are likely to fluctuate as a result of a number of factors, some of which will be beyond the
Group’s control.

7.        Accounting policies and financial reporting

The Company’s financial year end is 31 December, and the first set of audited annual financial statements
will be for the period from incorporation to 31 December 2015. The Company will produce and publish half-
yearly financial statements as required by the Disclosure and Transparency Rules. The Company will present
its consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU.
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PART VII

                   FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE COMPANY                    

This Part has been incorporated by reference as detailed in the section of this Document entitled “Relevant
Documentation and Incorporation by Reference”.
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PART VIII

               FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON LOANSATHOME4U                

PART VIII (A)

Accountant’s report on the financial information on Loansathome4u

                                                                                                                                                           Hill House
1 Little New Street

London
EC4A 3TR

The Board of Directors                                                                                                                                       
on behalf of Non Standard Finance plc
5 Little Chester Street
London
SW1X 7AL

28 August 2015

Dear Sirs

Combined historical financial information on the home credit business of S&U (“Loansathome4u”)
for the three years ended 31 January 2015

We report on the combined historical financial information on the home credit business of S&U
(“Loansathome4u”) for the three years ended 31 January 2015 set out in Part VIII (B) of the prospectus dated
28 August 2015 of Non-Standard Finance plc (the “Company”) (the “Prospectus”). This combined historical
financial information has been prepared for inclusion in the Prospectus on the basis of the accounting
policies set out in note 1 to the combined historical financial information. This report is required by Annex
I item 20.1 of Commission Regulation (EC) No 809/2004 (the “Prospectus Directive Regulation) and is
given for the purpose of complying with that requirement and for no other purpose.

Responsibilities

The Directors of the Company are responsible for preparing the combined historical financial information
on the basis of preparation set out in note 1.2 to the combined historical financial information.

It is our responsibility to form an opinion on the combined historical financial information and to report our
opinion to you.

Save for any responsibility arising under Prospectus Rule 5.5.3R(2)(f) to any person as and to the extent there
provided, to the fullest extent permitted by law we do not assume any responsibility and will not accept any
liability to any other person for any loss suffered by any such other person as a result of, arising out of, or
in connection with this report or our statement, required by and given solely for the purposes of complying
with Annex I item 23.1 of the Prospectus Directive Regulation, consenting to its inclusion in the Prospectus.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our work in accordance with Standards for Investment Reporting issued by the Auditing
Practices Board in the United Kingdom. Our work included an assessment of evidence relevant to the
amounts and disclosures in the combined historical financial information. It also included an assessment of
significant estimates and judgments made by those responsible for the preparation of the combined historical

Ann I (20.1)

Ann I (2.1)

Ann I (20.4.1)

Ann I (20.5.1)

81



financial information and whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the entity’s circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our work so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we
considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the
combined historical financial information is free from material misstatement whether caused by fraud or
other irregularity or error.

Our work has not been carried out in accordance with auditing or other standards and practices generally
accepted in jurisdictions outside the United Kingdom, including the United States of America, and
accordingly should not be relied upon as if it had been carried out in accordance with those standards and
practices.

Opinion on combined historical financial information

In our opinion, the combined historical financial information gives, for the purposes of the Prospectus, a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of Loansathome4u as at 31 January 2013, 2014 and 2015 and of its profits,
cash flows and changes in net investment for the three years ended 31 January 2015 in accordance with the
basis of preparation set out in note 1.2 to the combined historical financial information.

Declaration                                                                                                                                                         

For the purposes of Prospectus Rule 5.5.3R(2)(f), we are responsible for this report as part of the Prospectus
and declare that we have taken all reasonable care to ensure that the information contained in this report is,
to the best of our knowledge, in accordance with the facts and contains no omission likely to affect its import.
This declaration is included in the Prospectus in compliance with Annex I item 1.2 of the Prospectus
Directive Regulation.

Yours faithfully

Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants

Deloitte LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales with registered number
OC303675 and its registered office at 2 New Street Square, London EC4A 3BZ, United Kingdom. Deloitte
LLP is the United Kingdom member firm of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited (“DTTL”), a UK private
company limited by guarantee, whose member firms are legally separate and independent entities. Please
see www.deloitte.co.uk/about for a detailed description of the legal structure of DTTL and its member firms.
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PART VIII (B)

Financial information on Loansathome4u

Combined Statement of Comprehensive Income                                                                                           

                                                                                                                     For the year ended 31 January
                                                                                                              2013                   2014                   2015
                                                                                  Notes                  £’000                  £’000                  £’000

Revenue                                                                                             34,087                34,597                38,298
Cost of sales                                                                     3                 (9,509)               (9,797)             (10,996)
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Gross profit                                                                                       24,578                24,800                27,302
Administrative expenses                                                                   (16,669)             (17,037)             (18,892)
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Operating profit                                                              5                  7,909                  7,763                  8,410
Profit before tax                                                                                  7,909                  7,763                  8,410
Tax charge                                                                        6                 (1,924)               (1,799)               (1,794)
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Profit and total comprehensive income for 

the year                                                                                            5,985                  5,964                  6,616                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
All activities derive from continuing operations.

Combined Balance Sheet                                                                                                                                  

                                                                                                                     For the year ended 31 January
                                                                                                              2013                   2014                   2015
                                                                                  Notes                  £’000                  £’000                  £’000
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment                                         8                  1,357                  1,412                  1,438
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
                                                                                                             1,357                  1,412                  1,438
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Current assets
Inventories                                                                                               115                     136                       59
Amounts receivable from customers                                9                33,495                34,042                34,622
Trade and other receivables                                                                     167                     259                     230
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
                                                                                                           33,777                34,437                34,911
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Total assets                                                                                        35,134                35,849                36,349
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables                                               10                 (1,030)               (1,234)               (1,383)
Current tax liabilities                                                                          (1,047)               (1,144)               (1,097)
Accruals and deferred income                                                               (264)                  (521)                  (608)
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
                                                                                                            (2,341)               (2,899)               (3,088)
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Non current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities                                                    11                    (103)                  (134)                  (126)
Total liabilities                                                                                    (2,444)               (3,033)               (3,214)
Net assets                                                                                            32,690                32,816                33,135
Net investment from S&U
Net investment                                                                12                32,690                32,816                33,135
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Net investment from S&U                                                               32,690                32,816                33,135                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
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Combined Statement of Changes in Net Investment from S&U                                                                  

                                                                                                                     For the year ended 31 January
                                                                                                              2013                   2014                   2015
                                                                                  Notes                  £’000                  £’000                  £’000

Balance at 1 February                                                                        33,845                32,690                32,816
Total comprehensive income for the year                                            5,985                  5,964                  6,616
Distributions paid                                                                                (4,924)               (5,664)               (6,734)
Other                                                                                                   (2,216)                  (174)                    437
At 31 January 2015                                                                            32,690                32,816                33,135

Combined Cash Flow Statement                                                                                                                     

                                                                                                                     For the year ended 31 January
                                                                                                              2013                   2014                   2015
                                                                                  Notes                  £’000                  £’000                  £’000

Net cash inflow from operating activities                      13                  7,717                  6,345                  6,782
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant 

and equipment                                                                                       48                       33                       34
Purchases of property, plant and equipment                                          (625)                  (540)                  (519)
Net cash used in investing activities                                                      (577)                  (507)                  (485)
Cash flows from financing activities
Distributions paid                                                             7                 (7,140)               (5,838)               (6,297)
Net cash used in financing activities                                                  (7,140)               (5,838)               (6,297)
Net movement in cash and cash equivalents                                               –                         –                         –
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year                                   –                         –                         –
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year                                             –                         –                         –                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Notes to the accounts                                                                                                                                        
For the years ended 31 January 2013, 2014 and 2015

1.        Accounting policies

1.1      Background

S&U is a public company incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act. S&U and
its subsidiaries jointly are referred to as the S&U Group. The address of the registered office of the
S&U Group is Royal House, Prince’s Gate, Horner Road, Solihull, West Midlands, B91 3QQ, which
is also S&U’s principal business address. All operations are situated in the United Kingdom.

On 7 July 2015 the Company, which has been established to acquire and operate one or more non-
standard consumer finance businesses, entered into an agreement to acquire the home credit
operations of the S&U Group, trading as Loansathome4u. The consideration for the acquisition was
payable in cash from the Company’s existing resources, and the sale was subject to approval by the
S&U Group’s shareholders and customary closing conditions. The conditions having been satisfied or
waived as appropriate, the Acquisition completed on 4 August 2015.

This Combined Historical Financial Information has been prepared in connection with this sale of the
operations of Loansathome4u. Certain principles, set out below in the ‘Principles applied in preparing
this Combined Historical Financial Information’, were agreed and applied as at 31 January 2015, in
order to identify the perimeter of the divested business. In particular, the operations to be sold are
defined as follows:

•          SD Taylor, a wholly owned subsidiary of S&U;

•          Certain assets, liabilities and operations of S&U, related to the home collected operations.
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The divested businesses above are hereinafter referred to as the “Loansathome4u” in this Combined
Historical Financial Information.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of this Combined Historical Financial
Information are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

1.2      Basis of preparation                                                                                                                               

The Loansathome4u business was not a separate legal entity or a separate group of entities for the
years ended 31 January 2015, 2014 and 2013. The Combined Historical Financial Information has
been prepared for the purposes of this Document and has been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Prospectus Directive Regulation, the Listing Rules and this basis of preparation.
This basis of preparation describes how the Combined Historical Financial Information has been
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”), as adopted by the
European Union, subject to:

•          the application of SIR 2000 as described below; and

•          the omission of earnings per share on the basis that such measure is not meaningful in the
context of the carve-out or combined financial information.

In other respects IFRS, as adopted by the European Union, have been applied.

IFRS as adopted by the EU does not explicitly provide guidance for the preparation of carve-out or
combined financial information, and accordingly, in preparing such financial information certain
accounting conventions commonly used for the preparation of historical financial information for
inclusion in investment circulars, as described in the Annexure to SIR 2000, Investment Reporting
Standard applicable to public reporting engagements on historical financial information (“SIR 2000”)
issued by the UK Auditing Practices Board, have been applied.

The Combined Historical Financial Information is presented in U.K. Sterling, which is the reporting
and functional currency of the Loansathome4u business. The Combined Historical Financial
Information is presented in thousands, except when otherwise indicated. Rounding differences might
occur.

The Combined Historical Financial Information has been prepared on a going concern basis and under
the historical cost conventions, unless stated otherwise.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of this Combined Historical Financial
Information are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless stated otherwise.

The Combined Historical Financial Information may not be indicative of the future performance of
Loansathome4u and does not necessarily reflect what its combined results of operations, financial
position and cash flows would have been, had the Loansathome4u business operated as an
independent group and had it presented stand-alone financial information during the periods
presented.

Principles applied in preparing the combined historical financial information

Intercompany transactions and transactions with related parties

As noted above, the Combined Historical Financial Information has been prepared on a basis that
combines the results, assets and liabilities of the Loansathome4u businesses. This is done by applying
the principles underlying the consolidation procedures of IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated Financial
Statements’ (“IFRS 10”) for each of the three years ended 31 January 2015, 2014 and 2013. All
intercompany transactions and balances within the operations of Loansathome4u have been
eliminated.
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In this Combined Historical Financial Information, all receivable and payable balances between S&U
and SD Taylor and the remaining subsidiaries of the S&U Group that are not related to the home credit
operations have not been included.

Cash management and financing

Historically Loansathome4u has been a self-funding and cash generative business with any annual
excess cash extracted and being transferred to the operations of subsidiaries of the S&U Group that
were not included in Loansathome4u. Therefore, none of the cash and cash equivalents, bank
overdraft and loan facilities, have been allocated to Loansathome4u in this Combined Historical
Financial Information. All of the existing issued guarantees associated with the external financing are
planned to be reallocated out of the divesting business and thus are not included in this Combined
Historical Financial Information. Junior preference share capital, classified as a financial liability in
the S&U Group’s financial statements, has also been excluded.

Management and related centralised head office function

Certain head office costs associated with central running of the S&U Group have not been included
in the Combined Historical Financial Information as they will not be transferring with
Loansathome4u. These head office costs are separately identifiable and are mainly represented by the
salary expense of eight out of ten directors not involved exclusively with running the operations of
Loansathome4u and miscellaneous administrative costs carried to support the head office operations.

The miscellaneous administrative costs have been linked by the Finance employees to the internal cost
centres related to the head office and head office support based on the pre-existing cost allocation
methodology of the S&U Group when those costs were incurred; therefore, the related financial data
items have been extracted directly from the accounting system to provide the allocation.

The expenses allocated represent management’s best estimate and are not necessarily indicative of the
expenses that would have been incurred had Loansathome4u performed these functions as a stand-
alone entity, nor are they indicative of expenses that will be charged or incurred in the future. It is not
practicable to estimate the amount of expenses Loansathome4u would have incurred for the periods
presented had it not been managed centrally in each of those periods.

Income tax

During the periods presented in this Combined Historical Financial Information, the legal entities
containing the operations of the Loansathome4u business have operated as separate taxpayers.
Therefore, tax charges and tax balances in this Historical Combined Financial Information are based
on actual taxation after taking account of the tax effect of the adjustments related to the allocations of
central costs. Certain specific calculations and allocations were made to reflect salary and other
administrative expenses that are transferred out of Loansathome4u, therefore increasing current
income tax liability reflected in the Combined Historical Financial Information.

The tax charges recorded in the combined income statements are not necessarily representative of the
tax charges that may arise in the future.

Other assets and liabilities

Property, plant and equipment related to the central head office function were transferred out of the
Combined Historical Financial Information of Loansathome4u. The allocation has been performed on
a basis of specific item-by-item analysis.

The allocation of the trade and other receivables and trade and other payables has been made on the
basis of specific analysis of each balance receivable or payable to supplier and attribution of cost to
the cost centres in the management accounting system. The residual amount not specifically allocated
has been transferred out of Loansathome4u.
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Tax receivables and payables, other than income tax, have been attributed to Loansathome4u based
on the estimates prepared. PAYE liabilities arising on the share options of one of the directors, whose
services are not exclusively attributable with Loansathome4u, are not included in this Combined
Historical Financial Information.

Other assets and liabilities recorded in the combined balance sheet are not necessarily representative
of the other assets and liabilities that would have resulted at the end of the periods presented had
Loansathome4u performed as a stand-alone entity.

1.3      Revenue recognition

Interest income is recognised in the combined income statement for all loans and receivables
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method (EIR). The EIR is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash flows of the loan back to the present value of the advance.
Acceptance fees charged to customers and any direct transaction costs are included in the calculation
of the EIR. Under IAS 39 credit charges on loan products continue to accrue at the EIR on all impaired
capital balances throughout the life of the agreement irrespective of the terms of the loan and whether
the customer is actually being charged arrears interest. This is referred to as the gross up adjustment
to revenue and is offset by a corresponding gross up adjustment to the loan loss provisioning charge
to reflect the fact that this additional revenue is not collectable.

1.4      Amounts receivable from customers

All customer receivables are initially recognised at the amount loaned to the customer plus direct
transaction costs. After initial recognition the amounts receivable from customers are subsequently
measured at amortised cost.

The directors assess on an ongoing basis whether there is objective evidence that a loan asset or group
of loan assets is impaired and requires a deduction for impairment. A loan asset or a group of loan
assets is impaired only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the loan. Objective evidence may include evidence that a
borrower or group of borrowers is experiencing financial difficulty, default or delinquency in
repayments. Impairment is then calculated by estimating the future cash flows for such impaired
loans, discounting the flows to a present value using the original EIR and comparing this figure with
the balance sheet carrying value. All such impairments are charged to the income statement. For all
accounts which are not impaired, a further incurred but not reported provision (IBNR) is calculated
and charged to the income statement based on management’s estimates of the propensity of these
accounts to default from conditions which existed at the balance sheet date.

Key assumptions in ascertaining whether a loan asset or group of loan assets is impaired include
information regarding the probability of any account going into default and information regarding the
likely eventual loss including recoveries. These assumptions and assumptions for estimating future
cash flows are based upon observed historical data and updated as management considers appropriate
to reflect current and future conditions. All assumptions are reviewed regularly to take account of
differences between previously estimated cash flows on impaired debt and the eventual losses.

1.5      Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any provision for
impairment. Certain freehold property is held at previous revalued amounts less accumulated
depreciation as the S&U Group has elected to use these amounts as the deemed cost as at the date of
transition to IFRS under the transitional arrangements of IFRS 1.
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Depreciation is provided on the cost or valuation of property, plant and equipment in order to write
such cost or valuation over the expected useful lives as follows:

Freehold buildings 2% per annum straight line
Computers 20% per annum straight line
Fixtures and fittings 10% per annum straight line or 20% per annum reducing balance
Motor vehicles 25% per annum reducing balance

Freehold land is not depreciated.

1.6      Tax

Current tax is provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the combined historical financial
information. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax
liability is settled. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

1.7      Pensions                                                                                                                                                   

Any defined benefit schemes within the S&U Group were transferred out of Loansathome4u.
Employees of Loansathome4u are members of the several defined contribution schemes into which
fixed contributions are paid and the pension charge represents the amount payable by Loansathome4u
for the financial year.

1.8      Leases

Rental costs under operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight line basis.

1.9      Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key accounting judgements which the Directors have made in the process of applying the
accounting policies relating to Loansathome4u and which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the combined historical financial information are the judgements relating to
revenue recognition and impairment applied as in 1.3 and 1.4 above. The Directors consider that there
are no key sources of estimation uncertainty other than those inherent in the consumer credit market
in which Loansathome4u operates.

1.10    Preference shares

The issued 6% preference share capital of SD Taylor is valued at par and included in the net
investments from S&U.

1.11    Adoption of new and revised standards

In the current year and in accordance with IFRS requirements, certain new and revised Standards and
Interpretations have been adopted but these have had no significant effect on the amounts reported in
this historical financial information.

New and amended standards adopted by Loansathome4u:

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
IAS 32/IFRS 7 (amendments) Offsetting Financial Assets and Liabilities
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At the date of authorisation of this combined historical financial information the following Standards
and Interpretations which have not been applied in this combined historical financial information were
in issue but not yet effective:

IFRS 9 Financial instruments
IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
IAS 19 (amendments) Employee benefits

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of these Standards and Interpretations in future years will
have no material impact on the combined historical financial information of Loansathome4u other
than the adoption of IFRS 9 which may have a material impact on the financial assets reported by
Loansathome4u. It is not practical to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of IFRS 9 until more
detailed guidance becomes available nearer the proposed date and a more detailed review is
undertaken.

2.        Segmental analysis                                                                                                                                  

All Loansathome4u’s assets and liabilities, revenue and profit before tax are attributable to the provision of
consumer credit.

No geographical analysis is presented because all operations are situated in the United Kingdom.

3.        Cost of sales

                                                                                                                     For the year ended 31 January
                                                                                                              2013                   2014                   2015
                                                                                                            £’000                  £’000                  £’000

Loan loss provisioning charge                                                             7,648                  7,735                  8,418
Other cost of sales                                                                                1,861                  2,062                  2,578
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
                                                                                                             9,509                  9,797                10,996                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
4.        Information regarding employees                                                                                                         

                                                                                                              2013                   2014                   2015
Average number of persons employed

Management and administration                                                             281                     283                     292                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
                                                                                                              2013                   2014                   2015
                                                                                                             £’000                  £’000                  £’000
Wages and salaries                                                                               5,735                  5,926                  6,564
Social security costs                                                                                558                     558                     643
Pension costs                                                                                             66                       71                       55
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
                                                                                                             6,359                  6,555                  7,262                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
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5.        Operating profit

                                                                                                                     For the year ended 31 January
                                                                                                              2013                   2014                   2015
                                                                                                             £’000                  £’000                  £’000

Operating profit is stated after charging/(crediting):
Depreciation and amortisation:

Owned assets                                                                                       414                     448                     440
Staff costs                                                                                             6,359                  6,555                  7,262
Rentals under operating leases                                                                      

Other operating leases                                                                         326                     320                     350
Loss on sale of fixed assets                                                                       34                         4                       19
Rentals received/receivable under operating leases                               (153)                  (142)                  (135)                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
The analysis of auditor’s remuneration is as follows:

                                                                                                                     For the year ended 31 January
                                                                                                              2013                   2014                   2015
                                                                                                             £’000                  £’000                  £’000

Fees payable to the S&U Group’s Auditor attributable 
to Loansathome4u for the audit of the S&U Group’s 
annual financial statements                                                                   24                       23                       19

Fees payable to the S&U Group’s Auditor attributable to 
Loansathome4u for other services to the S&U Group                         19                       17                       19

                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Total audit fees                                                                                         43                       40                       38
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Audit related assurance services                                                               10                         9                       12
Taxation compliance services                                                                     8                         4                       16
Other services                                                                                            29                       29                       48
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Total non audit fees                                                                                 47                       42                       76                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Total                                                                                                          90                       82                     114                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
6.        Tax

                                                                                                                     For the year ended 31 January
                                                                                                              2013                   2014                   2015
                                                                                                             £’000                  £’000                  £’000

Corporation tax at 21.3% (2014: 23.2%; 2013: 24.3%) based 
on the profit for the year 2013: 24.3%) based on the profit 
for the year                                                                                       1,922                  1,801                  1,791

Current tax adjustment in respect of prior years                                       17                        (1)                      (4)
Deferred tax timing differences – origination and reversal                     (15)                      (1)                        7
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
                                                                                                             1,924                  1,799                  1,794                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
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The actual tax charge for the current and the previous year is below the standard rate for the reasons set out
in the following reconciliation.

                                                                                                                     For the year ended 31 January
                                                                                                              2013                   2014                   2015
                                                                                                             £’000                  £’000                  £’000

Profit on ordinary activities before tax                                                7,909                  7,763                  8,410
Tax on profit on ordinary activities at standard rate of 21.3% 

(2014: 23.2%; 2013: 24.3%)                                                            1,922                  1,801                  1,791
Factors affecting charge for the year:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes                                                   –                         –                         –
Effects of change in tax rates                                                                   (15)                      (1)                        7
Adjustment in respect of prior years                                                         17                        (1)                      (4)
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Total tax charge for the year                                                                1,924                  1,799                  1,794                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
The main rate of corporation tax was reduced from 26% to 24% with effect from 1 April 2012, to 23% with
effect from 1 April 2013, and to 21% with effect from 1 April 2014. The tax rates applicable to the years
ended 31 December 2013, 2014 and 2015 are therefore the blended rates of 24.3%, 23.2% and 21.3%
respectively.

The Finance Act 2013 enacted a reduced tax rate of 20% with effect from 1 April 2015. The effect of this
proposed tax rate reduction will be reflected in future years.

7.        Distributions
                                                                                                                     For the year ended 31 January
                                                                                                              2013                   2014                   2015
                                                                                                             £’000                  £’000                  £’000

Preference dividend                                                                                     2                         2                         2
Other distributions                                                                                4,924                  5,662                  6,732
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Total distributions                                                                                 4,926                  5,664                  6,734                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
8.        Property, plant and equipment
                                                                             Freehold                                                                                
                                                                             land and                 Motor              Fixtures                           
                                                                            buildings              vehicles         and fittings                   Total
                                                                                  £’000                  £’000                  £’000                  £’000
Cost or valuation
At 1 February 2012                                                      380                  2,058                  1,076                  3,514
Additions                                                                          –                     537                       88                     625
Disposals                                                                          –                    (238)                        –                    (238)
                                                                           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
At 1 February 2013                                                      380                  2,357                  1,164                  3,901
Additions                                                                          –                     502                       38                     540
Disposals                                                                          –                      (93)                        –                      (93)
                                                                           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
At 1 February 2014                                                      380                  2,766                  1,202                  4,348
Additions                                                                          –                     412                     107                     519
Disposals                                                                          –                    (273)                        –                    (273)
                                                                           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
As at 31 January 2015                                                  380                  2,905                  1,309                  4,594
                                                                           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
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                                                                             Freehold                                                                                
                                                                             land and                 Motor              Fixtures                           
                                                                            buildings              vehicles         and fittings                   Total
                                                                                  £’000                  £’000                  £’000                  £’000
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 February 2012                                                      164                  1,281                     841                  2,286
Charge for the year                                                           6                     326                       82                     414
Eliminated on disposals                                                   –                    (156)                        –                    (156)
                                                                           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
At 1 February 2013                                                      170                  1,451                     923                  2,544
Charge for the year                                                           6                     357                       85                     448
Eliminated on disposals                                                   –                      (56)                        –                      (56)
                                                                           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
At 1 February 2014                                                      176                  1,752                  1,008                  2,936
Charge for the year                                                           6                     343                       91                     440
Eliminated on disposals                                                   –                    (220)                        –                    (220)
                                                                           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
As at 31 January 2015                                                  182                  1,875                  1,099                  3,156
                                                                           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Net book value
At 31 January 2015                                                      198                  1,030                     210                  1,438                                                                           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
At 31 January 2014                                                      204                  1,014                     194                  1,412                                                                           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
At 31 January 2013                                                      210                     906                     241                  1,357                                                                           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
9.        Amounts receivable from customers
                                                                                                              2013                   2014                   2015
                                                                                                             £’000                  £’000                  £’000

Credit receivables                                                                               50,891                51,963                52,979
Less: Loan loss provision                                                                 (17,396)             (17,921)             (18,357)
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Amounts receivable from customers                                                  33,495                34,042                34,622                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Analysed as
– due within one year                                                                         33,249                33,808                34,437
– due in more than one year                                                                    246                     234                     185
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Amounts receivable from customers                                                  33,495                34,042                34,622                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Analysis of overdue
Not impaired
Neither past due nor impaired                                                            16,154                18,276                19,587
Past due up to 3 months but not impaired                                           8,922                  7,497                  7,077
Past due over 3 months but not impaired                                             6,900                  6,872                  6,312
Impaired
Past due up to 3 months                                                                       1,114                  1,053                  1,094
Past due up to 6 months                                                                          276                     240                     417
Past due over 6 months or default                                                           129                     104                     135
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Amounts receivable from customers                                                  33,495                34,042                34,622                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
All loans are unsecured home collected credit loans. The credit risk inherent in amounts receivable from
customers is reviewed under impairment as per note 1.4 and under this review the credit quality of assets
which are neither past due nor impaired was considered to be good. The above analysis of when loans are
due is based upon original contract terms which are not rescheduled – the carrying amount of amounts
receivable from customers whose terms have been renegotiated that would otherwise be past due or impaired
is therefore £nil (2014: £nil, 2013: £nil).
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Analysis of movements on loan loss provisions

                                                                                                                                                                   £’000

At 1 February 2012                                                                                                                                  16,923
Charge for year                                                                                                                                           7,648
Amounts written off during year                                                                                                              (4,375)
Unwind of discount                                                                                                                                   (2,800)
                                                                                                                                                            ––––––––
At 1 February 2013                                                                                                                                  17,396
Charge for year                                                                                                                                           7,735
Amounts written off during year                                                                                                              (4,350)
Unwind of discount                                                                                                                                   (2,860)
                                                                                                                                                            ––––––––
At 1 February 2014                                                                                                                                  17,921
Charge for year                                                                                                                                           8,418
Amounts written off during year                                                                                                              (5,418)
Unwind of discount                                                                                                                                   (2,564)
                                                                                                                                                            ––––––––
At 31 January 2015                                                                                                                                  18,357                                                                                                                                                            ––––––––
There has been no material change in the average discount rate used during the years to 31 January 2015 and
31 January 2014.

10.      Trade and other payables
                                                                                                              2013                   2014                   2015
                                                                                                             £’000                  £’000                  £’000

Trade creditors                                                                                         236                     390                     278
Other creditors                                                                                         794                     844                  1,105
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
                                                                                                             1,030                  1,234                  1,383                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
11.      Deferred tax

                                                                                                   Accelerated        Revaluation                           
                                                                                            tax depreciation         of property                   Total

At 1 February 2012                                                                                   19                      (32)                    (13)
(Charge)/credit to income                                                                        (95)                        5                      (90)
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
At 1 February 2013                                                                                  (76)                    (27)                  (103)
(Charge)/credit to income                                                                        (33)                        2                      (31)
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
At 1 February 2014                                                                                (109)                    (25)                  (134)
Credit to income                                                                                          6                         2                         8
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
At 31 January 2015                                                                                (103)                    (23)                  (126)                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
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12.      Net investment

This Combined Historical Financial Information is prepared in accordance with IFRS and on a combined
basis as described in Note 1 above. Accordingly, the equity is not recorded on the combined balance sheet.
Share capital of SD Taylor is included in the Net Investments from S&U, while share capital of S&U is
transferred out. Share capital of SD Taylor comprised of the following:

                                                                                                              2013                   2014                   2015
                                                                                                             £’000                  £’000                  £’000

Called up, allotted and fully paid
15,000 Ordinary shares of £1 each                                                           15                       15                       15
30,000 6% Cumulative preference shares of £1 each                               30                       30                       30
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
                                                                                                                  45                       45                       45                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
The 6% cumulative preference shares enable the holder to receive a cumulative preferential dividend at the
rate of 6% on paid up capital and the right to a return of capital at either a winding up or a repayment of
capital. The cumulative preference shares carry no voting rights so long as the dividends are not in arrears.

Other changes to the Combined Statement of Changes in Net Investments from S&U represent the effect
deriving from the carve-out primarily arising from the tax effects adjustments.

13.      Reconciliation of profit before tax to net cash from operating activities

                                                                                                              2013                   2014                   2015
                                                                                                             £’000                  £’000                  £’000

Profit before tax                                                                                    7,909                  7,763                  8,410
Tax paid                                                                                               (2,070)               (1,670)               (1,849)
Depreciation on plant, property and equipment                                      414                     448                     440
Loss on disposal of plant, property and equipment                                  34                         4                       19
(Increase)/decrease in amounts receivable from customers                 1,288                    (547)                  (580)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories                                                             14                      (22)                    (77)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables                                    92                      (92)                      29
Increase in trade and other payables                                                       268                     204                     149
Increase/(decrease) in accruals and deferred income                            (232)                    257                       87
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Net cash inflow from operating activities                                            7,717                  6,345                  6,782                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
14.      Contingent liabilities

Part of the S&U Group’s business is regulated by consumer credit legislation, which contains very detailed
and highly technical requirements. In 2014, the S&U Group commissioned an external review of its
compliance with this legislation. The S&U Group has identified some areas of potential non-compliance,
although these are not considered to be material. While there is a risk that an eventual outcome may differ,
the S&U Group considers that no material present obligation in relation to non-compliance with consumer
credit legislation is likely.

The S&U Group has entered into cross-guarantee arrangements with respect to the loans and bank overdrafts
of its subsidiaries, including entities, whose operations comprised the Loansathome4u business. The
maximum exposure under this arrangement at 31 January 2015 was £54,500,000 (2014: £32,351,000;
2013: £20,574,000). As discussed in Note 1 these arrangements and associated guarantees are planned to be
reallocated from Loansathome4u.

15.      Related party transactions

Significant related parties of Loansathome4u include all entities within S&U Group not transferred out with
Loansathome4u, the directors that remain with Loansathome4u (“key management personnel”) and
shareholders of the S&U Group.

94



There have been no material transactions between Loansathome4u and entities within the S&U Group not
transferred out with Loansathome4u.

Short-term employee benefits of the key management personnel for the year ended 31 January 2015
comprised £386,000 (2014: £352,000; 2013: £304,000). Post-employment benefits for the year ended
31 January 2015 comprised £31,000 (2014: £30,000; 2013: £18,000). Share based payment for the year
ended 31 January 2015 comprised £64,000 (2014 and 2013: nil).

All related party transactions are considered to be on arm’s-length terms and in the ordinary course of
business.

16.      Financial commitments

Capital commitments

At 31 January 2015, 31 January 2014 and 31 January 2013, Loansathome4u had no capital commitments
contracted but not provided for.

Operating lease commitments

At 31 January 2013, 31 January 2014 and 31 January 2015, Loansathome4u business had outstanding
commitments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

                                                                                                              2013                   2014                   2015
                                                                                                             £’000                  £’000                  £’000

Within one year                                                                                       128                     151                     226
In the second to fifth years inclusive                                                      206                     205                     385
After five years                                                                                            –                         –                         –
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
                                                                                                                334                     356                     611                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
17.      Financial instruments

The principal financial instruments of Loansathome4u are amounts receivable from customers and other
receivables and payables amounts.

The business objectives of Loansathome4u rely on maintaining a well spread customer base of carefully
controlled quality by applying strong emphasis on good credit management, both through strict lending
criteria at the time of underwriting a new credit facility and continuous monitoring of the collection process.
The home collected credit hire purchase debts are secured by the goods.

The table below analyses the assets and liabilities of Loansathome4u into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining year at the balance sheet date (to contractual maturity).

The average effective interest rate on financial assets of Loansathome4u at 31 January 2015 was estimated
to be 72% (2014: 67%, 2013: 67%). The average effective interest rate on financial liabilities of
Loansathome4u at 31 January 2015 was estimated to be 4% (2014: 4%, 2013: 4%).

Currency and credit risk

Loansathome4u has no material exposure to foreign currency risk. The credit risk inherent in amounts
receivable from customers is reviewed under impairment as per note 1.4. It should be noted that the credit
risk at the individual customer level is limited by strict adherence to credit control rules which are regularly
reviewed. As confirmation required under IFRS 8, no individual customer contributes more than 10% of the
revenue for Loansathome4u. Trade and other receivables of Loansathome4u are considered to have no
material credit risk as all material balances are due from highly rated banking counterparties.
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Interest rate risk

There is considered to be no material interest rate risk in trade and other receivables and trade and other
payables due to the short-term and non-interest bearing nature of these financial assets and liabilities.
Amounts receivable from customers are not subject to material interest rate risk as interest rates are fixed for
these financial assets.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

The fair values of amounts receivable from customers and other assets and liabilities are considered to be not
materially different from their book values. No assets or liabilities are held on the balance sheet at fair value.

Capital risk management

The objective of capital risk management is to maintain a conservative gearing level with respect to market
conditions, whilst taking account of business growth opportunities in a capital efficient manner. The gearing
level has been the key measure at the S&U Group and was maintained at the S&U Group level rather than
individual entities. The S&U Group gearing level complied with the capital risk management objectives of
the S&U Group at 31 January 2015, 2014 and 2013.

Liquidity risk

The liquidity risk of Loansathome4u is shown in the following tables which measure the cumulative liquidity gap.

                                                                         More than        More than                                                                           
                                                                                1 year             2 years                                                                           
                                                                               but not              but not                                          Non-                         
                                                  Less than         more than         more than        More than             interest                         
                                                       1 year             2 years             5 years             5 years             bearing                 Total
At 31 January 2013                         £’000                £’000                £’000                £’000                £’000                £’000

Financial assets                             33,249                   246                       –                       –                       –              33,495
Other assets                                            –                       –                       –                       –                1,639                1,639
                                             –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––
Total assets                                    33,249                   246                       –                       –                1,639              35,134
                                             –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––
Net investments from S&U                                                                                                             (32,690)            (32,690)
Total liabilities                                        –                       –                       –                       –               (2,444)              (2,444)
                                             –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––
Total liabilities and 

shareholders’ funds                            –                       –                       –                       –             (35,134)            (35,134)
                                             –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––
Cumulative gap                             33,249              33,495              33,495              33,495                       –                     –                                             –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––
                                                                         More than        More than                                                                           
                                                                                1 year             2 years                                                                           
                                                                               but not              but not                                          Non-                         
                                                  Less than         more than         more than        More than             interest                         
                                                       1 year             2 years             5 years             5 years             bearing                 Total
At 31 January 2014                         £’000                £’000                £’000                £’000                £’000                £’000

Financial assets                             33,808                   234                       –                       –                       –              34,042
Other assets                                            –                       –                       –                       –                1,807                1,807
                                             –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––
Total assets                                    33,808                   234                       –                       –                1,807              35,849
                                             –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––
Shareholders’ funds                                –                       –                       –                       –             (32,816)            (32,816)
Other liabilities                                       –                       –                       –                       –               (3,033)              (3,033)
Total liabilities and 

shareholders’ funds                            –                       –                       –                       –             (35,849)            (35,849)
                                             –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––
Cumulative gap                             33,808              34,042              34,042              34,042                       –                       –                                             –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––
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                                                                         More than        More than                                                                           
                                                                                1 year             2 years                                                                           
                                                                               but not              but not                                          Non-                         
                                                  Less than         more than         more than        More than             interest                         
                                                       1 year             2 years             5 years             5 years             bearing                 Total
At 31 January 2015                         £’000                £’000                £’000                £’000                £’000                £’000

Financial assets                             34,437                   185                       –                       –                       –              34,622
Other assets                                            –                       –                       –                       –
                                                                                                                                                            1,727                1,727
                                             –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––
Total assets                                    34,437                   185                       –                       –                1,727              36,349
                                             –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––
Shareholders’ funds                                –                       –                       –                       –             (33,135)            (33,135)
Other liabilities                                       –                       –                       –                       –               (3,214)              (3,214)
                                             –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––
Total liabilities and 

shareholders’ funds                            –                       –                       –                       –             (36,349)            (36,349)
                                             –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––
Cumulative gap                             34,437              34,622              34,622              34,622                       –                       –                                             –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––
The gross contractual cash flows payable under financial liabilities are analysed as follows:

                                                                                                   More than        More than                                                  
                                                                                                         1 year             2 years                                                  
                                                                                                        but not              but not                                                  
                                                Repayable          Less than         more than         more than        More than                         
                                               on demand               1 year             2 years             5 years             5 years                 Total
At 31 January 2013                         £’000                £’000                £’000                £’000                £’000                £’000

Trade and other payables                1,294                       –                       –                       –                       –                1,294
Tax liabilities                                          –                1,047                       –                       –                       –                1,047
Deferred tax liabilities                            –                       –                   103                       –                       –                   103
                                             –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––
At 31 January 2013                         1,294                1,047                   103                       –                       –                2,444                                             –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––
                                                                                                   More than        More than                                                  
                                                                                                         1 year             2 years                                                  
                                                                                                        but not              but not                                                  
                                                Repayable          Less than         more than         more than        More than                         
                                               on demand               1 year             2 years             5 years             5 years                 Total
At 31 January 2014                         £’000                £’000                £’000                £’000                £’000                £’000

Trade and other payables                1,755                       –                       –                       –                       –                1,755
Tax liabilities                                          –                1,144                       –                       –                       –                1,144
Deferred tax liabilities                            –                       –                   134                       –                       –                   134
                                             –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––
At 31 January 2014                         1,755                1,144                   134                       –                       –                3,033                                             –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––
                                                                                                   More than        More than                                                  
                                                                                                         1 year             2 years                                                  
                                                                                                        but not              but not                                                  
                                                Repayable          Less than         more than         more than        More than                         
                                               on demand               1 year             2 years             5 years             5 years                 Total
At 31 January 2015                         £’000                £’000                £’000                £’000                £’000                £’000

Trade and other payables          1,991                     –                     –                     –                     –              1,991
Tax liabilities                                    –              1,097                     –                     –                     –              1,097
Deferred tax liabilities                     –                     –                 126                     –                     –                 126
                                             –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––
At 31 January 2015                   1,991              1,097                 126                     –                     –              3,214                                             –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––         –––––––
18.      Events after the balance sheet date

There were no significant events after the balance sheet date.
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PART IX

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA FINANCIAL INFORMATION

PART IX (A)

   Accountant’s report on the unaudited pro forma statement of net assets    

Hill House
1 Little New Street

London
EC4A 3TR

The Board of Directors
on behalf of Non-Standard Finance plc
5th Floor
6 St Andrew Street
London
EC4A 3AE

28 August 2015

Dear Sirs

Non-Standard Finance plc (the “Company”)

We report on the pro forma financial information (the “Pro forma financial information”) set out in Part IX
(B) of the prospectus dated 28 August 2015 (the “Prospectus”), which has been prepared on the basis
described in the notes to Part IX (B), for illustrative purposes only, to provide information about how the
transaction might have affected the financial information presented on the basis of the accounting policies to
be adopted by the Company in preparing the financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2015.
This report is required by the Commission Regulation (EC) No 809/2004 (the “Prospectus Directive
Regulation”) and is given for the purpose of complying with that requirement and for no other purpose.

Responsibilities

It is the responsibility of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”) to prepare the Pro forma financial
information in accordance with Annex II items 1 to 6 of the Prospectus Directive Regulation.

It is our responsibility to form an opinion, as to the proper compilation of the Pro forma financial information
and to report that opinion to you in accordance with Annex II item 7 of the Prospectus Directive Regulation.

Save for any responsibility arising under Prospectus Rule 5.5.3R (2)(f) to any person as and to the extent
there provided, to the fullest extent permitted by law we do not assume any responsibility and will not accept
any liability to any other person for any loss suffered by any such other person as a result of, arising out of,
or in connection with this report or our statement, required by and given solely for the purposes of complying
with Annex I item 23.1 of the Prospectus Directive Regulation, consenting to its inclusion in the Prospectus.

In providing this opinion we are not updating or refreshing any reports or opinions previously made by us
on any financial information used in the compilation of the Pro forma financial information, nor do we accept
responsibility for such reports or opinions beyond that owed to those to whom those reports or opinions were
addressed by us at the dates of their issue.

Ann II (7)

Ann III (10.2)
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Basis of Opinion

We conducted our work in accordance with the Standards for Investment Reporting issued by the Auditing
Practices Board in the United Kingdom. The work that we performed for the purpose of making this report,
which involved no independent examination of any of the underlying financial information, consisted
primarily of comparing the unadjusted financial information with the source documents, considering the
evidence supporting the adjustments and discussing the Pro forma financial information with the Directors.

We planned and performed our work so as to obtain the information and explanations we considered
necessary in order to provide us with reasonable assurance that the Pro forma financial information has been
properly compiled on the basis stated and that such basis is consistent with the accounting policies of the
Company.

Our work has not been carried out in accordance with auditing or other standards and practices generally
accepted in jurisdictions outside the United Kingdom, including the United States of America, and
accordingly should not be relied upon as if it had been carried out in accordance with those standards or
practices.

Opinion

In our opinion:

(a)      the Pro forma financial information has been properly compiled on the basis stated; and

(b)      such basis is consistent with the accounting policies of the Company.

Declaration                                                                                                                                                         

For the purposes of Prospectus Rule 5.5.3R(2)(f), we are responsible for this report as part of the Prospectus
and declare that we have taken all reasonable care to ensure that the information contained in this report is,
to the best of our knowledge, in accordance with the facts and contains no omission likely to affect its import.
This declaration is included in the Prospectus in compliance with Annex I item 1.2 of the Prospectus
Directive Regulation.

Yours faithfully

Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants

Deloitte LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales with registered number
OC303675 and its registered office at 2 New Street Square, London EC4A 3BZ, United Kingdom. Deloitte
LLP is the United Kingdom member firm of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited (“DTTL”), a U.K. private
company limited by guarantee, whose member firms are legally separate and independent entities. Please
see www.deloitte.co.uk/about for a detailed description of the legal structure of DTTL and its member firms.

Ann I (1.2)
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PART IX (B)

                           Unaudited pro forma financial information                            

1.        Introduction

The unaudited pro forma statement of net assets and unaudited pro forma income statement (together the
“pro forma financial information”) have been prepared on the basis of the notes set out below, in accordance
with item 20.2 of Annex I and items 1 to 6 of Annex II to the Prospectus Directive Regulation, and in
accordance with the accounting policies to be applied by the Company in its financial statements for the
period ending 31 December 2015. The unaudited pro forma statement of net assets has been prepared to
illustrate the effect of the following transaction as if it had occurred on 30 June 2015. The unaudited pro
forma income statement has been prepared to illustrate the effect of the transaction as if it had taken place
on 8 July 2014 (being the date of incorporation of the Company).

The pro forma financial information has been prepared for illustrative purposes only and, because of its
nature, addresses a hypothetical situation and, therefore, does not represent the Company’s actual financial
position or results.

For the purpose of the preparation of the pro forma financial information, the Company has attributed the
excess of the purchase price paid over the book value of Loansathome4u’s net assets entirely to goodwill.
On apportionment of the purchase price, fair values ascribed to intangible assets, in-process research and
development, Property, Plant and Equipment, inventory and any other assets acquired or liabilities assumed,
may result in material changes to the goodwill and the net asset position as recorded in this pro forma
financial information for the Group.

In addition, the pro forma financial information does not purport to represent what the Company’s financial
position actually would have been if the transactions had been completed on the dates indicated and does not
purport to represent the results of operations for any future period or the financial condition at any future
date.

Ann I (20.4.3)

Ann I (20.2)

Ann I (20.4.3)

Ann II (2)
Ann II (3)
Ann II (4)
Ann II (5)
Ann II (6)

Ann II (1)
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2.        Unaudited pro forma financial information

                                                                                                                                                            Pro forma
                                                             Net assets of                                                                       net assets of
                                                            the Company                                                                     the Company
                                                            as at 30 June         Net assets of                                            at 30 June
                                                                        2015(1)  Loansathome4u(2)        Adjustments(3)                    2015(4)

                                                                        £’000                     £’000                     £’000                     £’000

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment                              56                     1,438                            –                     1,494
Goodwill                                                                 –                            –                   49,365                   49,365
                                                                  ––––––––              ––––––––              ––––––––              ––––––––
                                                                              56                     1,438                   49,365                   50,859
                                                                  ––––––––              ––––––––              ––––––––              ––––––––
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents                             97,304                            –                  (82,500)                  14,804
Inventory                                                                 –                          59                            –                          59
Amounts receivable from customers                     –                   34,622                            –                   34,622
Trade and other receivables                                314                        230                            –                        544
                                                                  ––––––––              ––––––––              ––––––––              ––––––––
Total assets                                                    97,674                   36,349                  (33,135)                100,888
                                                                  ––––––––              ––––––––              ––––––––              ––––––––
Current liabilities
Current tax liabilities                                          298                     1,097                            –                     1,395
Accruals and deferred income                                –                        608                            –                        608
Trade and other payables                                        –                     1,383                            –                     1,383
                                                                  ––––––––              ––––––––              ––––––––              ––––––––
                                                                            298                     3,088                            –                     3,386
                                                                  ––––––––              ––––––––              ––––––––              ––––––––
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities                                            –                        126                            –                        126
                                                                  ––––––––              ––––––––              ––––––––              ––––––––
                                                                                –                        126                            –                        126
                                                                  ––––––––              ––––––––              ––––––––              ––––––––
Total liabilities                                                   298                     3,214                            –                     3,512
                                                                  ––––––––              ––––––––              ––––––––              ––––––––
Net assets                                                      97,376                   33,135                  (33,135)                  97,376                                                                  ––––––––              ––––––––              ––––––––              ––––––––
Notes:

(1) The financial information as at 30 June 2015 has been extracted, without material adjustment, from the audited financial
information of the Company as set out in “Part VII – Financial Information on the Company” that has been incorporated by
reference.

(2) The financial information as at 31 January 2015 has been extracted, without material adjustment, from the audited financial
information of Loansathome4u as set out in “Part VIII – Financial Information on Loansathome4u”.

(3) The adjustment reflects consideration of £82.5 million paid by the Company and the recognition of £49.4 million goodwill
representing the difference between the consideration paid and net assets of Loansathome4u.

(4) This pro forma financial information does not constitute financial statements within the meaning of section 434 of the Companies
Act. No adjustment has been made to reflect the trading results of the Group since 30 June 2015 or any other change in financial
position in that period.
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                                                                          Company                                                                                   Pro forma
                                                                     consolidated       Loansathome4u                                      income statement
                                                             income statement                 combined                                        of the Company
                                                                   for the period    income statement                                               for the year 
                                                           from incorporation         for year ended                                                         ended
                                                                to 30 June 2015(1)  31 January 2015(2)          Adjustments(3)        30 June 2015(4)

                                                                                 £’000                        £’000                        £’000                        £’000

Revenue                                                                  –                   38,298                            –                   38,298

Cost of sales                                                            –                  (10,996)                           –                  (10,996)

Gross profit                                                             –                   27,302                            –                   27,302

Administrative Expenses                                   (910)                 (18,892)                           –                  (19,802)
Operating Loss/profit                                      (910)                    8,410                            –                     7,500

Interest Receivable and
Similar Income                                                 53                            –                         (45)                           8

Interest Payable and Similar
Charges                                                              (1)                           –                            –                           (1)

Loss/profit on ordinary
activities before tax                                     (858)                    8,410                         (45)                    7,507

Tax on Profit/(loss) on
Ordinary Activities                                             –                    (1,794)                           –                    (1,794)

Loss for the period                                          (858)                    6,616                         (45)                    5,713
                                                                  ––––––––              ––––––––              ––––––––              ––––––––
Total comprehensive loss/profit

for the period                                               (858)                    6,616                         (45)                    5,713                                                                  ––––––––              ––––––––              ––––––––              ––––––––
Notes:

(1)   The financial information for the period ended 30 June 2015 has been extracted, without material adjustment, from the audited
financial information of the Company as set out in “Part VII – Financial Information on the Company” that has been incorporated
by reference.

(2)   The financial information for the period ended 31 January 2015 has been extracted, without material adjustment, from the audited
financial information of Loansathome4u as set out in “Part VIII – Financial Information on Loansathome4u”.

(3)   The adjustment made to Interest Receivable and Similar Income represents the estimated reduction in interest on cash held by
the Company assuming consideration of £82.5 million was paid at the beginning of the financial period.

(4)   This pro forma financial information does not constitute financial statements within the meaning of section 434 of the Companies
Act. No adjustment has been made to reflect the trading results of the Group since 30 June 2015 or any other change in financial
position in that period.
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PART X

REGULATION

Background to non-standard consumer finance regulation

Non-standard consumer finance is the provision of secured and unsecured credit to consumers otherwise
than through mainstream financial institutions. Consumer finance is subject to extensive regulation in the
U.K. and the intensity of regulatory supervision has been increasing. Businesses wishing to operate
successfully in this regulatory environment have therefore needed to make considerable investment in risk
and compliance processes, systems and controls, and management.

As is the case across much of the U.K. financial services industry, the consumer finance sector is currently
undergoing, and may in the future undergo, a number of significant regulatory changes. The regulatory
regime applicable to this sector changed with effect from 1 April 2014 when responsibility for the regulation
of consumer credit transferred from the OFT to the FCA.

As a result of the change in regime, the regulatory requirements and expectations applicable to the consumer
finance sector have become more aligned with the financial regulatory requirements and expectations
applicable to other core regulated sectors of the U.K. financial services industry. This reflects the new
FCA-headed regulatory framework and the FCA’s supervisory and enforcement powers being more
extensive than the OFT’s previous powers in relation to consumer credit. For example, the FCA’s supervisory
and enforcement toolkit includes powers to issue greater fines, to undertake regular on-site visits, to ban
activities or products being sold, to issue public notices and to instigate investigatory action.

Under FSMA, a firm must be authorised to carry on “regulated activities” by way of business in the U.K.
From 1 April 2014 “regulated activities” have included entering into a regulated credit agreement (which
would be expected to include any agreement for the provision of non-standard financing to a customer) as
lender, entering into a regulated hire agreement as owner, and exercising, or having the right to exercise, the
lender’s rights and duties under a regulated credit agreement or the owner’s rights under a regulated hire
agreement, together with certain other ancillary activities relating to consumer finance.

Since 1 April 2014, an “interim permission” regime under FSMA has been in operation, allowing consumer
credit firms which held a valid licence from the OFT under the CCA as at 31 March 2014 to apply to
continue to carry on the regulated credit activities which were covered by their CCA licence without having
immediately to seek authorisation under FSMA. Such firms are nevertheless required to apply for
authorisation under FSMA during a three month application period notified to each firm by the FCA (with
a longstop date of 31 March 2016), if those firms want to continue conducting regulated consumer credit
activities. Certain firms will now have applied for authorisation, while others may be in the process of
preparing to submit their applications in due course.

From March 2016, when the European Mortgage Credit Directive (MCD) is implemented in the U.K.,
second charge mortgage lending will become regulated under the existing FCA regulated mortgages regime,
rather than the consumer credit regime. As such, any firm which offers second charge mortgages will need
to have an authorisation granted by the FCA to carry on regulated mortgage business. Firms which conducted
second charge mortgage business prior to 1 April 2014 are currently able to operate with an interim consumer
credit permission and, in common with other consumer credit firms, are required to apply for full
authorisation within a specific application time-window notified to them by the FCA. Second charge
mortgage firms which have interim permission and which have not yet applied for full authorisation have
been granted the ability to extend their interim permission until March 2016, so that they can apply for the
relevant regulated mortgage permissions at the appropriate time. Second charge mortgage firms which have
already applied to the FCA for full authorisation may need to submit a further application to add the
necessary regulated mortgage permissions. Any firm which does not currently hold an interim permission
and wishes to conduct second charge mortgage business would have to apply for a full credit permission,
which would have to be converted into a second charge mortgage permission with effect from March 2016.
Firms with permission to conduct second charge mortgage business are subject to the same high level
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standards as consumer credit firms but, from March 2016, will become subject to slightly different
requirements in other areas (such as those relating to conduct of business).

Every firm which is authorised by the FCA, including those with an interim permission, must comply with
high level standards set by the FCA. These standards include:

(a)      the FCA’s Principles for Businesses, which are general statements of the fundamental obligations that
firms regulated by the FCA must comply with under the regulatory system. They are regarded by the
FCA as the basis for most of its other more detailed rules and guidance and include, for example,
requirements for a firm to treat its customers fairly, to conduct its business with integrity and to deal
with its regulators in an open and cooperative way; and

(b)      the rules in the FCA’s Senior Management Arrangements, Systems and Controls sourcebook, which
require firms to organise and control their affairs responsibly and effectively, and impose, among other
things, general organisational requirements relating to governance, requirements relating to the skills,
knowledge and expertise of staff, outsourcing responsibilities relating to outsourcing, record-keeping
requirements and rules relating to conflicts of interests.

Consumer credit firms must also comply with detailed conduct of business provisions. These require such
firms, among other things:

(a)      to conduct a creditworthiness assessment of a customer before entering into an agreement with them;

(b)      to be transparent when dealing with debtors;

(c)      to treat debtors fairly;

(d)      to exercise forbearance and consideration, particularly towards debtors experiencing difficulty;

(e)      to act proportionately when recovering debts;

(f)       to establish and implement clear, effective and appropriate policies and procedures for engaging with
debtors and other relevant parties; and

(g)      to establish and implement clear, effective and appropriate policies and procedures for identifying and
dealing with particularly vulnerable debtors.

The FCA undertakes monitoring of authorised firms and may ask to perform on-site visits to ensure that the
business of such firms is compliant with all the applicable requirements. The FCA is likely to take a targeted
and risk-based approach to supervision, focusing on those firms which it considers are the most at risk of
harming customers. The FCA is also likely to be proactive in pursuing possible regulatory failures and poor
practices, for example by initiating its own investigations where consumer experience is such to suggest that
such an investigation is merited. Where consumer detriment is found, the FCA will use its powers of
intervention, which might include taking enforcement action and/or securing redress for consumers.

Serious or systematic failure to adhere to the standards set by the FCA would be likely to result in it taking
enforcement action. This could involve the FCA imposing a fine, making a statement of public censure or,
in more serious cases, seeking to vary, suspend or withdraw the firm’s authorisation to conduct regulated
activities. The FCA may also take enforcement action against individuals under the “approved persons”
regime described below.

Contents of agreements

Certain consumer and consumer hire agreements are regulated agreements for the purposes of FSMA and
the CCA. The CCA and relevant secondary legislation made under that Act specify content and execution
requirements for regulated consumer agreements, pre-contractual information and notices sent to customers
under such agreements. If an agreement which is regulated for the purposes of the CCA or FSMA has not
been drafted or executed in accordance with the provisions of the relevant consumer credit rules, the
legislation provides that such an agreement will in certain cases not be enforceable or otherwise will only be
enforceable once a court order has been obtained.
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The timing and contents of certain notices which must be sent out to customers under regulated consumer
credit and consumer hire agreements are also set out in secondary legislation. If those content and timing
notifications are not complied with, the agreement itself is unlikely to be enforceable before a compliant
notice is sent and the customer is not liable to pay any interest and charges that accrue until a correct notice
is sent out.

The CCA also provides the court with wide-ranging powers if they find that there is an unfair relationship
between a credit provider and its customer. If such an unfair relationship is found the court would have the
power to order that no payments needed to be made under the agreement or that payments should be
dramatically reduced. Due to the nature of the customers of non-standard consumer finance firms, it is
possible that not every customer will immediately understand the nature of the product with which they are
provided and if non-standard consumer finance firms do not ensure their customers have understood their
products and details of the payments made under those products, they are at risk of there being an unfair
relationship even if, on a technical level, they may have complied with their other regulatory and legal
obligations.

Approved persons

FSMA provides that individuals performing certain “controlled functions” at an FCA-authorised firm must
be approved as individuals before beginning to perform those functions and the firm itself must take
reasonable care to ensure that this is the case.

The approved persons regime will not apply to a firm which only has interim permission to conduct
consumer credit activities and is not FCA-authorised in respect of any of its other business activities. Some
of the controlled functions which are likely to be relevant for a consumer credit firm working within the non-
standard consumer credit sector, once the ‘interim permissions’ regime mentioned above has expired, are:

•          CF1 – the director function;

•          CF2 – the non-executive director function;

•          CF3 – the chief executive function;

•          CF11 – the money laundering reporting officer function; and

•          CF28 – the systems and controls function.

The FCA may approve an individual to carry out a controlled function only if it is satisfied that he or she is
a “fit and proper” person to perform that function. FSMA provides that in making that determination, the
FCA may have regard to an individual’s training, competence and qualifications.

If a firm fails to take reasonable care to ensure that it does not employ unapproved persons to carry out
functions for which they require approval, the FCA can carry out an investigation and take enforcement
action against the firm concerned. Enforcement action could result in a fine or, for serious breaches, the
suspension of permission to carry on regulated activities.

If an individual performs a function for which they should have been approved (and knew that they should
have been approved) but were not, the FCA can impose a financial penalty of such an amount as it considers
appropriate on that person.

An approved person must also comply with the FCA’s Statements of Principle and Code of Practice for
approved persons (“APER”). APER sets out a number of high level statements of principle for approved
persons including, for example, requirements that approved persons act with integrity, due skill, care and
diligence.

If an approved person fails to comply with APER, or is knowingly concerned in a contravention by the
authorised firm of any requirement imposed on it by or under FSMA, the FCA may (i) fine the approved
person, (ii) suspend or impose limitations or restrictions on the approval of that person for such period as the
FCA considers appropriate and/or (iii) issue a public statement concerning the misconduct of that person.
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Change in control

Any firm which is fully authorised by the FCA, which would be likely to include any non-standard consumer
finance entity which the Company identified as a potential acquisition target, will be subject to the change
in control regime under Part XII of FSMA. The change of control regime under Part XII of FSMA will not
apply to a firm which only has interim permission to conduct consumer credit activities and is not FCA
authorised in respect of any of its business activities.

Any change in control of an FCA-authorised firm will require pre-approval from the FCA. A failure to obtain
such approval will be a criminal offence. This means that before it could acquire 20 per cent. or more of the
shares or voting rights of a regulated non-standard consumer finance entity (or the parent undertaking of such
an entity), the Company would have to obtain the FCA’s approval of that acquisition. If the target firm also
had other permissions which were not consumer finance related (such as a permission to arrange deals in, or
advise on, investments), then it is likely that the applicable threshold would be 10 per cent. In these
circumstances, similar pre-approval would also be required before a person would be able to increase any
such holding in a regulated non-standard consumer finance entity or a parent undertaking of a regulated non-
standard consumer finance entity from below 30 per cent. to 30 per cent. or more and from below 50 per
cent. to 50 per cent. or more. If the Company were itself to become the parent undertaking of a regulated
firm, then it is possible that any person who wished to acquire 20 per cent. (or, in some cases, 10 per cent.)
or more of the Shares or the voting rights in the Company would require FCA approval before doing so.

The FCA has up to 60 working days, extendable by up to 20 working days (up to 30 working days if the
acquirer is not an EEA entity or is not itself subject to regulation), to determine any such application, such
time limits applying from the date it acknowledges it has all the information it requires to process the
application. This can have a significant influence on the timing of any corporate transaction involving a
target that is an FCA-authorised entity.

Regulatory trends

The FCA has stated that it is particularly concerned about consumers taking on unaffordable amounts of
debt, and its stated priorities include:

(a)      tackling risks in the “payday lending” sector (see below);

(b)      addressing issues with credit cards (including carrying out a proposed market study (the terms of
reference for which were published on 25 November 2014) to assess competition in the credit card
market and whether consumers have access to products which are affordable and offer good value for
money);

(c)      improving financial promotions across the consumer credit market;

(d)      improving the quality of debt management services; and

(e)      enhancing standards for logbook loans.

The FCA has already made rules, which came into force on 2 January 2015, which prevent credit brokers
from charging fees, except in specific circumstances, and impose new transparency requirements.

The FCA has also visited the largest home credit firms to get a better understanding of the risks in that
market.

The FCA, in its Business Plan for 2015 to 2016, announced that it will launch two further thematic reviews
into debt collection, and the role of staff remuneration and incentives in driving the way firms treat their
customers.

High-cost short-term finance (payday lending)

In June 2013, the OFT made a market investigation reference of the payday lending sector to the Competition
Commission (as it then was). The reference was made as a result of the OFT’s review of the compliance by
the U.K. payday lending sector with the CCA and other relevant legislation and OFT guidance. The CMA
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took over the investigation from the Competition Commission in April 2014, when it took over all the
functions of the Competition Commission.

On 9 October 2014, the CMA published its provisional decision on the package of remedies required to
remedy the structural features of the market which it had previously found prevent or distort competition,
resulting in an adverse effect on competition. The CMA published its final report in February 2015,
confirming it will go ahead with the implementation of the proposed remedies. The proposed remedies
include: (a) measures to promote the use of effective price comparison websites (PCWs); (b) a
recommendation to the FCA to take steps to improve the disclosure of late fees and other additional charges;
(c) a recommendation to the FCA to work with lenders and other market participants to help customers shop
around without unduly affecting their ability to access credit; (d) a recommendation to the FCA to take
further steps to promote real-time data sharing between lenders; (e) a requirement for lenders to provide
existing customers with a summary of the cost of borrowing; and (f) a recommendation to the FCA to take
steps to increase transparency around the role of lead generators. The CMA published the Payday Lending
Market Investigation Order 2015 on 13 August 2015. Certain provisions have immediate effect, while others
(such as the requirements for lenders to provide payday loan customers with a summary of the cost of
borrowing) will come into force at later dates. In addition, the precise nature of the requirements concerning
publication of information on price comparison websites, and the timescales for such publication, remains
subject to further FCA standards or rules, which are to be made in due course. This order does not affect
Loansathome4u (as home credit agreements are carved out of the definition of payday loans for this
purpose).

The FCA has already made rules which cover the activity of firms which engage in ‘high-cost short-term’
lending. The rules, which were not contained within the previous consumer finance regulatory regime
supervised by the OFT, include requirements that when a firm engages in high-cost short-term lending (also
referred to as payday lending):

(a)      there is a limit of two unsuccessful attempts on the use of a continuous payment authority to pay off
a loan and a ban on part payments;

(b)      there is a limit of two on the number of times a loan can be refinanced;

(c)      high-cost short-term credit providers must provide an information sheet to their customers, including
information on free debt advice, before a loan is refinanced; and

(d)      a risk warning must be included on all high-cost short-term credit adverts.

The FCA has published the results of an in-depth thematic review into the way in which payday lenders and
other providers of high-cost short-term financing collect debts and manage debtors in arrears and
forbearance. The review found a number of failings across firms and emphasised that prior to applying for
authorisation firms should ensure that (a) their systems are fit for purpose, (b) they have established and
implemented clear, effective and appropriate policies and procedures, (c) their staff are adequately trained,
and (d) steps have been taken to provide redress to customers affected by any past unfair treatment of
customers.

On 11 November 2014, the FCA published final rules to protect customers from excessive charges under
high-cost short-term credit agreements. These rules came into effect on 2 January 2015. The rules impose a
cap on interest and fees payable under a high-cost short-term agreement of 0.8 per cent. of the amount
borrowed per day, a £15 cap on default charges and a total cost cap of 100 per cent. of the amount borrowed.

107



PART XI

TAXATION

General

The following statements are intended only as a general guide to certain U.K. tax considerations and do not
purport to be a complete analysis of all potential U.K. tax consequences of acquiring, holding or disposing
of Ordinary Shares. They are based on current U.K. tax law as applied in England and Wales and what is
understood to be the current practice of HMRC as at the date of this Document, both of which may change,
possibly with retroactive effect. The statements may not apply to certain Shareholders, such as dealers in
securities, insurance companies and collective investment schemes, or Shareholders whose opportunity to
acquire their Ordinary Shares arose (or was deemed to arise) from their or another’s employment. They relate
(except where stated otherwise) to persons who are resident and, in the case of individuals, domiciled in (and
only in) the U.K. for U.K. tax purposes and to whom “split year” treatment does not apply, who are the
absolute beneficial owners of their Ordinary Shares (and any dividends paid on them) and who hold their
Ordinary Shares as an investment (other than in a tax exempt wrapper such as an individual savings account).

Prospective investors should consult their own independent professional advisers on the potential tax
consequences of subscribing for, purchasing, holding or selling Ordinary Shares under the laws of their
country and/or state of citizenship, domicile or residence including the consequences of distributions by the
Company, either on a liquidation or distribution or otherwise.

1.        Dividends

(a)      Withholding at source

The Company will not be required to withhold at source on account of U.K. tax when paying
dividends.

(b)      Individual Shareholders

An individual Shareholder who is resident in the U.K. (for U.K. tax purposes) and who receives a
dividend from the Company will generally be entitled to a tax credit which such a Shareholder may
set off against his total income tax liability on the dividend. The tax credit will be equal to 10 per cent.
of the aggregate of the dividend and the tax credit (together the “gross dividend”), which is also equal
to one-ninth of the cash dividend received.

An individual Shareholder who is liable to income tax only at the basic rate will be subject to tax on
the dividend at the rate of 10 per cent. of the gross dividend but the tax credit will satisfy in full such
Shareholder’s liability to income tax on the dividend. An individual Shareholder who is liable to
income tax at the higher rate or the additional rate will be liable to income tax on the gross dividend
at the rate of 32.5 per cent. or 37.5 per cent. respectively to the extent that such sum, when treated as
the top slice of that Shareholder’s income, falls above the threshold for higher rate or additional rate
income tax. After taking into account the 10 per cent. tax credit, a higher rate tax payer will therefore
have to account for additional tax equal to 22.5 per cent. of the gross dividend (which is also equal to
25 per cent. of the net cash dividend received). An individual paying additional rate income tax will
have to account for additional tax equal to 27.5 per cent. of the gross dividend, after taking into
account the 10 per cent. tax credit, (which is also equal to approximately 30.6 per cent. of the net cash
dividend received).

An individual Shareholder cannot claim payment of the tax credit from HMRC, even if the tax credit
exceeds the liability of the Shareholder to pay income tax on the dividend in question.

An individual Shareholder who has ceased to be resident for tax purposes in the U.K. or is treated as
resident outside the U.K. for the purposes of a double tax treaty (“Treaty non-resident”) for a period
of five years or less and who receives or becomes entitled to dividends from the Company during that
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period of temporary non-residence may, if the Company is treated as a close company for U.K. tax
purposes and certain other conditions are met, be liable for income tax on those dividends on his or
her return to the U.K.

Individual Shareholders who are not resident in the U.K. for tax purposes should consult their own
advisers concerning their tax liabilities on dividends received. They should note that they will not
generally be entitled to claim payment of any part of their tax credit from HMRC under any double
taxation treaty or otherwise or that such claim may be negligible.

The Chancellor announced in his Budget of 8 July 2015 substantial changes in relation to the taxation
of dividends for individuals. If these changes are enacted, from 6 April 2016 the dividend tax credit
will be abolished and replaced with a new tax-free dividend allowance of £5,000 and the dividend tax
rates will become 7.5 per cent. for basic rate taxpayers, 32.5 per cent. for higher rate tax payers and
38.1 per cent. for additional rate taxpayers. 

(c)      Other Shareholders

Shareholders who are within the charge to U.K. corporation tax will be subject to corporation tax on
dividends paid by the Company, unless the dividends fall within an exempt class and certain other
conditions are met. Whether an exempt class applies and whether the other conditions are met will
depend on the circumstances of the particular Shareholder, although it is expected that the dividends
paid by the Company would normally be exempt. Shareholders within the charge to U.K. corporation
tax will not be able to claim repayment of tax credits (if applicable) attaching to dividends.

U.K. pension funds and charities are exempt from tax on dividends which they receive but they are
not entitled to claim payment of any dividend tax credit.

2.        Chargeable gains

For the purpose of U.K. tax on chargeable gains, the amounts paid by a Shareholder for Ordinary Shares will
generally constitute the base cost of his holdings in each type of security. If a Shareholder who is resident in
the U.K. (for U.K. tax purposes) disposes of all or some of his Ordinary Shares, a liability to tax on
chargeable gains may arise. This will depend on the base cost which can be allocated against the proceeds,
the Shareholder’s circumstances and any reliefs (such as the annual exempt amount for individuals, being
£11,100 at the date of this Document) to which he is entitled. In the case of corporate Shareholders,
indexation allowance may apply to any amount paid for the Ordinary Shares.

The current rate of capital gains tax for individuals liable to income tax at the higher or additional rate is
28 per cent. Individuals whose taxable income for the year in question is less than the upper limit of the basic
rate income tax band (£31,785 for 2015/16) are subject to capital gains tax at the rate of 18 per cent., except
to the extent that the aggregate of their total taxable income and chargeable gains (less allowable deductions)
in that year exceeds the upper limit of the basic rate income tax band. Any such excess over the upper limit
is subject to tax at the rate of 28 per cent. For trustees and personal representatives, the rate of capital gains
tax is 28 per cent.

Corporate Shareholders are subject to tax on capital gains at the prevailing rate of corporation tax applicable
to them. The main rate of corporation tax is currently 20 per cent. but this should fall to 19 per cent. for the
2017, 2018 and 2019 financial years and then to 18 per cent. for the 2020 financial year if the Finance Bill
published on 15 July 2015 is enacted.

In certain circumstances, and subject to the conditions for the exemption being met, a corporate Shareholder
may qualify for the substantial shareholding exemption, which exempts from corporation tax gains on the
disposal of shares; where the exemption applies, a loss on disposal will not be allowable for tax purposes.

Shareholders who are not resident in the U.K. for tax purposes will not generally be subject to U.K. taxation
on chargeable gains arising from the sale or other disposal of their Ordinary Shares unless they are carrying
on a trade, profession or vocation in the U.K. through a branch or agency or, in the case of a corporate
Shareholder, a permanent establishment with which their Ordinary Shares are connected.
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An individual Shareholder who has ceased to be resident for tax purposes in the U.K. or is treated as resident
outside the United Kingdom for the purposes of a double tax treaty for a period of five years or less (or, for
departures before 6 April 2013, ceases to be resident or ordinarily resident or becomes Treaty non-resident
for a period of less than five tax years) may be liable to U.K. capital gains tax on chargeable gains realised
during their period of non-residence on their return to the U.K., subject to any available exemptions or
reliefs.

3.        U.K. stamp duty and Stamp Duty Reserve Tax (“SDRT”)

The statements below apply to any purchasers of Ordinary Shares irrespective of their residence and are
intended as a general guide to the current position. They do not apply to certain categories of person such as
intermediaries or other persons (such as charities) who are not liable to stamp duty or SDRT, or to certain
categories of person who may, although not primarily liable for the tax, be required to notify and account for
it under the Stamp Duty Reserve Tax Regulations 1986, as amended.

The statements below do not apply to similar duties or taxes which are imposed in or by other jurisdictions.

In relation to stamp duty and SDRT:

(i)      The allocation, allotment and issue of the Ordinary Shares will not give rise to a liability to stamp duty
or SDRT.

(ii)     Any subsequent conveyance or transfer on sale of the Ordinary Shares in certificated form will usually
be subject to stamp duty on the instrument of transfer at a rate of 0.5 per cent. of the amount or value
of the consideration (the amount payable being rounded up, if necessary, to the nearest multiple of
£5). An exemption from stamp duty is available on an instrument transferring shares where the
amount or value of the consideration is £1,000 or less, and it is certificated on the instrument that the
transaction effected by the instrument does not form part of a larger transaction or series of
transactions in respect of which the aggregate amount or value of the consideration exceeds £1,000.

(iii)    A transfer of Ordinary Shares effected on a paperless basis through CREST (where there is a change
in the beneficial ownership of the shares) will generally be subject to SDRT at the rate of 0.5 per cent.
(the amount payable being rounded up to the nearest penny) of the amount or value of the
consideration payable.

Special rules apply where shares are issued or transferred to, or to a nominee or agent for, either a person
whose business is or includes issuing depository receipts within section 67 or section 93 of the Finance Act
1986 or a person providing a clearance service within section 70 or section 96 of the Finance Act 1986, under
which SDRT or stamp duty may be charged at 1.5 per cent. of the amount or value of the consideration
payable. Following litigation, HMRC have confirmed that they will no longer seek to apply the 1.5 per cent.
SDRT charge on the issue of shares into a clearance service or depository receipt arrangement on the basis
that the charge is not compatible with EU law. HMRC’s view is that the 1.5 per cent. SDRT or stamp duty
charge will, however, continue to apply to transfers of shares into a clearance service or depository receipt
arrangement unless they are an integral part of an issue of share capital. This view is currently being
challenged in further litigation.

Inheritance tax

The Ordinary Shares will be assets situated in the U.K. for the purposes of U.K. inheritance tax. A gift or
settlement of such assets by, or on the death of, an individual holder of such assets may (subject to certain
exemptions or reliefs) give rise to a liability to U.K. inheritance tax even if the holder is neither domiciled
in the U.K. nor deemed to be domiciled there under certain rules relating to long residence or previous
domicile. For inheritance tax purposes, a transfer of assets at less than full market value may be treated as a
gift and particular rules apply to gifts where the donor reserves or retains some benefit.
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PART XII

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

1.        Responsibility

The Directors, whose names appear on page 47, and the Company accept responsibility for the information
contained in this Document. To the best of the knowledge of the Directors and the Company (who have each
taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case), the information contained in this Document is in
accordance with the facts and contains no omission likely to affect its import.

2.        The Company

The Company was incorporated as a private company limited by shares under the laws of England and Wales
under the Companies Act 2006, on 8 July 2014, with number 09122252, under the name Non Standard
Finance Limited.

On 20 August 2014, the Company changed its name to Non-Standard Finance Limited and on 4 December
2014, the Company was re-registered as Non-Standard Finance plc, a public company limited by shares.

The Company is not regulated by the FCA or any financial services or other regulator. The Company is
subject to the Listing Rules and the Disclosure and Transparency Rules (and the resulting jurisdiction of the
U.K. Listing Authority) to the extent such rules apply to companies with a Standard Listing pursuant to
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

The principal legislation under which the Company operates, and pursuant to which the Ordinary Shares
have been created is the Companies Act 2006.

The Company is domiciled in England and Wales, its registered office is at 5th Floor, 6 St Andrew Street,
London, EC4A 3AE, United Kingdom, its telephone number is +44 (020) 7832 8921 and its fax number is
+44 (020) 7832 4901.

As at 26 August 2015, the latest practicable date prior to publication of this Document, the Company had
two wholly-owned subsidiaries: NSF Subsidiary and NSF Subsidiary II. NSF Subsidiary II acquired the
entire issued share capital of SD Taylor and became its holding company on 4 August 2015.

The liability of the members of the Company is limited.

3.        Share capital

On 8 July 2014, the Company issued one ordinary share of £1 to John van Kuffeler. On 5 November 2014,
the share capital was sub-divided into 20 Ordinary Shares of £0.05 each. On 2 December 2014, the share
capital was increased by the issuance of 999,980 Ordinary Shares of £0.05 each at par to John van Kuffeler.
On 4 February 2015, the share capital was further increased by the issuance of 1,960,527 Ordinary Shares
of £0.05 each at a premium of £0.33 each to John van Kuffeler, Nicholas Teunon, Miles Cresswell-Turner,
Robin Ashton and Charles Gregson. On 19 February 2015, the share capital was further increased by: (i) the
issuance of 102,283,168 Ordinary Shares of £0.05 each at a premium of £0.95 each to the investors in the
2015 Placing; and (ii) the issuance of 27,500 Ordinary Shares of £0.05 each at a premium of £0.95 each to
Charles Gregson and 13,250 Ordinary Shares of £0.05 each at a premium of £0.95 each to Heather
McGregor in lieu of their first year’s fees in accordance with the terms of their letters of appointment.

The issued share capital of the Company at the date of this Document is as follows:

Issued and
Credited as Fully Paid

Class of Share                                                                                                        Number       Amount Paid up

Ordinary                                                                                                          105,284,445         £5,264,222.25
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The Ordinary Shares rank in full for all dividends or other distributions hereafter declared, made or paid on
the ordinary share capital of the Company and rank pari passu in all other respects with all other Ordinary
Shares.

Following Readmission, the Ordinary Shares will be admitted to a Standard Listing on the Official List. A
Standard Listing will afford investors in the Company a lower level of regulatory protection than that
afforded to investors in companies with Premium Listings on the Official List, which are subject to additional
obligations under the Listing Rules.

It should be noted that the U.K. Listing Authority will not have authority to (and will not) monitor the
Company’s compliance with any of the Listing Rules and/or any provision of the Model Code which the
Company has indicated herein that it intends to comply with on a voluntary basis, nor to impose sanctions
in respect of any failure by the Company to so comply.

The pre-emption rights contained in the Companies Act 2006 (whether to issue equity securities or sell them
from treasury) have been disapplied: (i) for the purposes of, or in connection with, the 2015 Placing;
(ii) generally, for such purposes as the Directors may think fit, up to an aggregate amount of 5 per cent. of
the value of the Ordinary Shares on (or immediately after) Admission; (iii) for the purposes of issues of
securities offered to Shareholders on a pro rata basis; and (iv) for the purposes of issues of Ordinary Shares
to satisfy rights relating to the Founder Shares, such disapplications to expire at the conclusion of the annual
general meeting of the Company following the Acquisition (in respect of (i) to (iii)) and on 12 February 2020
(in respect of (iv)). Otherwise, Shareholders will have pre-emption rights which will generally apply in
respect of future share issues for cash. No pre-emption rights exist in respect of future share issues wholly
or partly other than for cash.

Except as stated in this Document or any document incorporated herein by reference:

(a)      the Company does not have in issue any securities not representing share capital; and

(b)      there are no outstanding convertible securities issued by the Company;

(c)      no person has any preferential subscription rights for any share capital of the Company;

(d)      no share or loan capital of the Company is currently under option or agreed conditionally or
unconditionally to be put under option; and

(e)      no commissions, discounts, brokerages or other special terms have been granted by the Company
since its incorporation in connection with the issue or sale of any share or loan capital of the Company.

4.        Articles of Association

This section has been incorporated by reference as detailed in the section of this Document entitled
“Relevant Documentation and Incorporation by Reference”.

5.        Founder Shares

This section has been incorporated by reference as detailed in the section of this Document entitled
“Relevant Documentation and Incorporation by Reference”.

6.        Directorships and partnerships

In addition to their directorships of the Company, the Directors are, or have been, members of the
administrative, management or supervisory bodies (“directorships”) or partners of the following companies
or partnerships, at any time in the five years prior to the date of this Document.
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Current Directors

John Philip de Blocq van Kuffeler (Chairman)

Current directorships and partnerships Former directorships and partnerships

Nicholas John Teunon (Chief Financial Officer)

Current directorships and partnerships Former directorships and partnerships

Miles Marius Cresswell-Turner (Director)

Current directorships and partnerships Former directorships and partnerships

Charles Henry Gregson (Non-Executive Director)

Current directorships and partnerships Former directorships and partnerships

Robin Ashton (Non-Executive Director)

Current directorships and partnerships Former directorships and partnerships

Marlin Financial Group Limited
Hyperion Insurance Group Limited
Provident Financial plc
The Public Catalogue Foundation

Parchester Limited
Paratus AMC Limited

Marlin Financial Group Limited
FTSE International Limited

Duke Street V Limited
Duke Street General Partner Limited
DS Opportunities GP LLP
Duke Street LLP

Marlin Financial Group Limited
Marlin Financial Intermediate Limited
Pensions Administration Limited
Plan Insure Limited
Yorkshire Investment Consultants Limited
U.K. Portfolio Management Limited
Ashcourt Rowan Corporate Solutions Limited
Rochberie Consulting Limited
DS Aslan Holdings Limited
DS Aslan Acquisitions Limited
DS Aslan Midco Limited
Plan Invest Group Limited
Yorkshire Investment Group Limited

Woodcote Grove Estate Limited
Caledonia Investments Plc
The Public Catalogue Foundation
Arabian Racing Organisation Limited
ICAP Plc
eMedia Asia Limited
Outdoor Installations Ltd
UBM Trustees Ltd
United Trustees Ltd
PA Trustees Limited
University of Chichester’s Multi-Academy

Trust

Homecare Insurance Limited
Card Protection Plan Limited
CPP Group Plc
St. James’s Place Plc
International Personal Finance Plc
Petscreen Limited
PR Newswire Europe Limited
PRN Business Consulting (Shanghai) Ltd
The Starting Price Regulatory Commission

Ltd

Leeds Building Society
Shawbrook Group PLC

Apple Holdco Limited
Albemarle & Bond Holdings PLC
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Heather McGregor (Independent Non-Executive Director)

Current directorships and partnerships Former directorships and partnerships

7.        Directors’ confirmations

Save as disclosed in this Document, at the date of this Document none of the Directors:

(i)       has any convictions in relation to fraudulent offences for at least the previous five years;

(ii)      has been associated with any bankruptcy, receivership or liquidation while acting in the capacity of a
member of the administrative, management or supervisory body or of senior manager of any company
within the previous five years; or

(iii)     has been subject to any official public incrimination and/or sanction of him by any statutory or
regulatory authority (including any designated professional bodies) or has ever been disqualified by a
court from acting as a director of a company or from acting as a member of the administrative,
management or supervisory bodies of an issuer or from acting in the management or conduct of the
affairs of any issuer for at least the previous five years.

Save as set out under the heading “Part IV – The Directors – Conflicts of Interest”, none of the Directors has
any potential conflicts of interest between their duties to the Company and their private interests or other
duties they may also have.

8.        Directors’ interests

The interests of the Directors and their connected persons in the share capital of the Company, following
Readmission, all of which are beneficial, are as follows (including their holdings of Founder Shares):

                                                                                                Percentage of issued
                                                                     Number of            Ordinary Shares on                          Number of
Director                                              Ordinary Shares                       Readmission                  Founder Shares

John van Kuffeler                                          2,114,474                                   2.0%                                       30
Charles Gregson                                               223,553                                   0.2%                                       10
Miles Cresswell-Turner                                   490,132                                   0.5%                                       25
Nicholas Teunon                                                30,921                                   0.0%                                       15
Robin Ashton                                                   128,947                                   0.1%                                       20
Heather McGregor                                             13,250                                   0.0%                                         0

9.        Directors’ terms of employment

This section has been incorporated by reference as detailed in the section of this Document entitled
“Relevant Documentation and Incorporation by Reference”.

Taylor Bennett Limited
Russetsand Ideas Limited
Taylor Bennett Holdings Limited
Graduatejobsnetwork limited
The U.K. Career Academy Foundation

Belvoir Castle Cricket Trust
Osborne McGregor Limited
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10.      Major Shareholders and other interests

So far as the Company is aware, as at 26 August 2015 (the latest practicable date prior to the publication of
this Document), the following persons had a notifiable interest in the issued share capital of the Company:

                                                                                                              No of Ordinary                Percentage of
                                                                                                                            Shares            issued Ordinary
Shareholder                                                                                                                                               Shares

Woodford Investment Management LLP                                                    20,552,520                            19.5%
Invesco Asset Management Limited                                                           20,000,000                               19%
Marathon Asset Management                                                                        5,641,062                            5.36%
Legal & General                                                                                            4,100,000                            3.89%

Following Readmission, the Directors expect that a number of persons will have an interest, directly or
indirectly, in at least 3 per cent. of the voting rights attached to the Company’s share capital. Such persons
will be required to notify such interests to the Company in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 5 of
the Disclosure Rules, and such interests will be notified by the Company to the public.

As at 26 August 2015 (the latest practicable date prior to the publication of this document), the Company
was not aware of any person or persons who, directly or indirectly, jointly or severally, exercise or could
exercise control over the Company nor is it aware of any arrangements, the operation of which may at a
subsequent date result in a change in control of the Company.

Those interested, directly or indirectly, in 3 per cent. or more of the issued share capital of the Company do
not now, and, following Readmission, will not, have different voting rights from other holders of Ordinary
Shares.

11.      Pension arrangements

Save for the pension contributions incorporated by reference in paragraph 9 of this Part, there are no pensions
or other similar arrangements in place with the Directors nor are any such arrangements proposed.

12.      Employees and properties

The Company                                                                                                                                                      

The Company has not had any employees since incorporation and does not own any premises. Details of the
employment arrangements of the Executive Directors are incorporated by reference in paragraph 9 of this
Part.

Loansathome4u                                                                                                                                                  

As at the date of this Document, Loansathome4u employed over 300 people throughout England, Wales and
Scotland and operated through approximately 530 self-employed agents. Loansathome4u has properties
throughout England, Wales and Scotland, comprising 38 leasehold properties (including its head office in
Solihull) and five freehold properties.

13.      Working capital

The Company is of the opinion that the working capital available to the Group is sufficient for the Group’s
present requirements, that is for at least the 12 months from the date of this Document.

14.      Significant change

The Company

Save for the Acquisition, the expenses incurred in connection with the Acquisition and the incorporation of
NSF Subsidiary II (all of which have caused a significant change in the financial position and trading
position of the Group), there has been no significant change in the trading or financial position of the Group
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since 30 June 2015, being the date as at which the financial information contained in “Part VII – Financial
Information on the Company” has been prepared.

Loansathome4u

Save for the transfer of assets under the Business Transfer Agreement, there has been no significant change
in the financial or trading position of Loansathome4u since 31 January 2015, the date to which
Loansathome4u’s latest audited financial information was prepared.

15.      Litigation                                                                                                                                                 

The Company

There are no governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings (including any such proceedings which are
pending or threatened of which the Company is aware) since the Company’s incorporation which may have,
or have had in the recent past, significant effects on the financial position or profitability of the Group.

Loansathome4u

There are no governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings (including any such proceedings which are
pending or threatened of which the Company is aware) during the year preceding the date of this Document,
which may have, or have had in the recent past, significant effects on the financial position or profitability
of the Group.

16.      City Code                                                                                                                                                 

This section has been incorporated by reference as detailed in the section of this Document entitled
“Relevant Documentation and Incorporation by Reference”.

17.      Material contracts

The Company

This section has been incorporated by reference as detailed in the section of this Document entitled
“Relevant Documentation and Incorporation by Reference”.

The following are the additional contracts (not being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of
business) that have been entered into by the Company during the two years prior to the date of this Document
which: (i) are, or may be, material to the Company; or (ii) contain obligations or entitlements which are, or
may be, material to the Company as at the date of this Document.

17.1    Acquisition Agreement

Further details of the Acquisition Agreement are set out in “Part I – Description of the Acquisition”.

Loansathome4u

The following are all the contracts (not being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business)
that have been entered into by Loansathome4u during the two years prior to the date of this Document
which: (i) are, or may be, material to Loansathome4u; or (ii) contain obligations or entitlements which
are, or may be, material to Loansathome4u as at the date of this Document.

17.2    Business Transfer Agreement

Further details of the Business Transfer Agreement are set out in “Part I – Description of the
Acquisition”.

17.3    Transitional Services Agreement

Further details of the Transitional Services Agreement are set out in “Part I – Description of the
Acquisition”.
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18.      Related party transactions

From 8 July 2014 (being the Company’s date of incorporation) up to and including the date of this
Document, the Company has not entered into any related party transactions other than the Directors’
Employment Contracts and Letters of Appointment referred to in paragraph 9 above.

A description of the related party transactions that Loansathome4u has entered into for the three financial
years ended 31 January 2015 is given in paragraph 15 of “Part VIII (B) – Financial information on
Loansathome4u”. Other than the continuation of the arrangements disclosed therein, there have been no
additional related party transactions by Loansathome4u during the period between 31 January 2015 (being
the date to which the financial information set out in “Part VIII (B) – Financial information on
Loansathome4u” has been prepared) and the date of this Document.

19.      Accounts and annual general meetings

This section has been incorporated by reference as detailed in the section of this Document entitled
“Relevant Documentation and Incorporation by Reference”.

20.      Issues of new shares

This section has been incorporated by reference as detailed in the section of this Document entitled
“Relevant Documentation and Incorporation by Reference”.

21.      General                                                                                                                                                    

By a resolution of the Directors passed on 10 December 2014, Deloitte LLP, whose address is 2 New Street
Square, London EC4A 3BZ, United Kingdom, was appointed as the first auditor of the Company. Deloitte
LLP is registered to carry out audit work by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.

Deloitte LLP has given and has not withdrawn its consent to the inclusion in this Document of its
accountant’s reports in “Part VIII (A)” and “Part IX (A)” in the form and context in which they are included
and has authorised the contents of those reports for the purposes of Rule 5.5.3R(2)(f) of the Prospectus
Rules.

A written consent under the Prospectus Rules is different to a consent filed with the SEC under section 7 of
the U.S. Securities Act. As the Ordinary Shares have not been and will not be registered under the U.S.
Securities Act, Deloitte LLP has not filed a consent under section 7 of the U.S. Securities Act, which is
applicable only to transactions involving securities registered under the U.S. Securities Act.

22.      Other information

22.1    There are no patents or other intellectual property rights, licences or particular contracts which are of
fundamental importance to the Company’s business.

22.2    Except for the Acquisition, there are no significant investments in progress.

22.3    No exceptional factors have influenced the Company’s activities.

22.4    UBS Limited is acting as financial adviser to the Company in relation to Readmission and has given
and not withdrawn its written consent to the issue of this Document with the inclusion of its name and
references to it in the form and context in which they appear.

22.5    The expenses of Readmission and the issue of this Document are estimated at £1.6 million (inclusive
of amounts in respect of VAT) and are payable by the Company.

22.6    The information in this Document that is sourced from third parties has been accurately reproduced
and, as far as the Company is aware and able to ascertain from information published by that third
party, no facts have been omitted which would render the reproduced information inaccurate or
misleading.
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23.      Availability of this Document

Following publication, copies of this Document are available for viewing free of charge at
www.nonstandardfinance.com (subject to applicable securities laws and certain restriction applicable to
persons resident or located outside of the United Kingdom).

Copies of this Document may be collected, free of charge during normal business hours, from the office of
the Company.

24.      Documents for inspection

Copies of the following documents may be inspected at the registered office of the Company, 5th Floor,
6 Andrew Street, London, EC4A 3AE, United Kingdom, and at the offices of Slaughter and May,
One Bunhill Row, London EC1Y 8YY, United Kingdom during usual business hours on any day (except
Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays) from the date of this Document until Readmission:

(i)       the Memorandum of Association and Articles of the Company;

(ii)      the accountant’s report by Deloitte LLP on the historical financial information of Loansathome4u as
at 31 January 2015 set out in “Part VIII – Financial Information on Loansathome4u”;

(iii)     the accountant’s report by Deloitte LLP on the unaudited pro forma statements of profit and loss and
net assets set out in “Part IX – Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information”;

(iv)     the Placing Prospectus;

(v)      the Interim Financial Statements; and

(vi)     this Document.
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PART XIII

DEFINITIONS

The following definitions apply throughout this Document unless the context requires otherwise:

“2015 Placing” means the placing of the Ordinary Shares with investors on
19 February 2015;

“Acquisition” means the acquisition of Loansathome4u by the Company in
accordance with the terms of the Acquisition Agreement;

“Acquisition Agreement” means the agreement entered into on 7 July 2015 between the
Company and S&U in respect of the sale and purchase, subject to
satisfaction of certain conditions, of the entire issued share capital
of SD Taylor, and thereby the Loansathome4u business, details of
which are set out in “Part I – Description of the Acquisition”;

“Adjusted Issue Price” means the Placing Price as adjusted appropriately for matters such
as any subsequent consolidation or subdivision of the Ordinary
Shares or issue of Ordinary Shares by capitalising the Company’s
profits or reserves and as reduced by the Value Return (if any) and
by the Discount Value (if any), such adjustment to be determined
and approved by the Board;

“Admission” means the admission of the Ordinary Shares to the standard segment
of the Official List and to trading on the Main Market for listed
securities of the London Stock Exchange on 19 February 2015;

“APER” means the FCA’s Statements of Principle and Code of Practice for
approved persons;

“APR” means annual percentage rate;

means the articles of association of the Company in force from time
to time;

“Business Day” means a day (other than a Saturday or a Sunday) on which banks are
open for business in London;

“Business Transfer Agreement” means the agreement entered into on 7 July 2015 between S&U and
SD Taylor in respect of the transfer of the home credit business of
S&U, and thereby the portion of the Loansathome4u business not
previously owned by SD Taylor, details of which are set out in
“Part I – Description of the Acquisition”;

“CCA” means the Consumer Credit Act 1974;

means in relation to a share or other security, a share or other
security, title to which is recorded in the relevant register of the
share or other security concerned as being held in certificated form
(that is, not in CREST);

“Chairman” means John van Kuffeler;

“Articles of Association” or
“Articles”

“certificated” or “in certificated
form”
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“Change of Control” means:

(a) the acquisition of Control following Admission by any
person or party (or by any group of persons and/or parties
who are acting in concert); or

(b) the removal of any of the Founders from the Board of
Directors or, as the case may be, the non-reappointment of
any such person to the Board of Directors following any
retirement by rotation (other than in any case with his prior
written consent);

“Chief Financial Officer” means Nicholas Teunon;

“City Code” means the City Code on Takeovers and Mergers;

“CMA” means the U.K. Competition and Markets Authority;

“CML” means The Council of Mortgage Lenders;

“Companies Act 2006” means the Companies Act 2006 of the United Kingdom, as
amended;

“Company” means Non-Standard Finance plc, a public company limited by
shares incorporated in England under the Companies Act 2006, with
number 09122252;

“Completion” means completion of the Acquisition, which occurred on 4 August
2015;

“Control” means: (i) the power (whether by way of ownership of shares,
proxy, contract, agency or otherwise) to: (a) cast, or control the
casting of, more than 50 per cent. of the maximum number of votes
that might be cast at a general meeting of the Company; or
(b) appoint or remove all, or the majority, of the Directors or other
equivalent officers of the Company; or (c) give directions with
respect to the operating and financial policies of the Company with
which the Directors or other equivalent officers of the Company are
obliged to comply; and/or (ii) the holding beneficially of more than
50 per cent. of the issued shares of the Company (excluding any
issued shares that carry no right to participate beyond a specified
amount in a distribution of either profits or capital), but excluding
in the case of each of (i) and (ii) above any such power or holding
that arises as a result of the issue of Ordinary Shares by the
Company in connection with an acquisition;

“CREST” or “CREST System” means the paperless settlement system operated by Euroclear
enabling securities to be evidenced otherwise than by certificates
and transferred otherwise than by written instruments;

“CREST Manual” means the compendium of documents entitled “CREST Manual”
issued by Euroclear from time to time and comprising the CREST
Reference Manual, the CREST Central Counterparty Service
Manual, the CREST International Manual, the CREST Rules, the
CSS Operations Manual and the CREST Glossary of Terms;

“CRESTCo” means CRESTCo Limited, the operator (as defined in the
Uncertificated Regulations) of CREST;
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means the directors of the Company, whose names appear on
page 47, or the board of directors from time to time of the Company,
as the context requires, and “Director” is to be construed
accordingly;

means the employment contracts and letters of appointment for
each of the Directors, details of which are set out in “Part XII –
Additional Information”;

means the disclosure and transparency rules of the U.K. Listing
Authority made in accordance with section 73A of FSMA as
amended from time to time;

“Discount Value” means in respect of each and any rights issue by the Company the
theoretical ex-rights price per share in respect of that rights issue
less the price per share at which Ordinary Shares are offered
(subject to customary exclusions) to holders of Ordinary Shares
pursuant to that rights issue, multiplied by the number of shares
issued pursuant to the rights issue and divided by the total number
of Ordinary Shares in issue immediately prior to that rights issue;

“Document” means this prospectus;

“EEA” means the European Economic Area;

“EEA States” means the member states of the European Union and the European
Economic Area, each an “EEA State”;

“ERISA” means the U.S. Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974,
as amended;

“ERISA Plan” means a plan subject to Title I of ERISA or section 4975 of the U.S.
Tax Code;

“EU” means the Member States of the European Union;

“Euroclear” means Euroclear U.K. & Ireland Limited;

“Executive Directors” means John van Kuffeler and Nicholas Teunon;

“Exercise Date” means the date on which Subscription Rights are exercised;

“FCA” means the U.K. Financial Conduct Authority;

“Founders” means John van Kuffeler, Nicholas Teunon, Charles Gregson, Miles
Cresswell-Turner and Robin Ashton;

“Founder Shares” means the class of shares in NSF Subsidiary, details of which are set
out in “Part IV – The Directors, the Board and Corporate
Governance” and incorporated by reference in paragraph 5 of
“Part XII – Additional Information”;

“FSMA” means the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 of the U.K., as
amended;

“general meeting” means a meeting of the Shareholders of the Company or a class of
Shareholders of the Company (as the context requires);

“Group” means the Company, any subsidiary and any company or business
they acquire (directly or indirectly) from time to time;

“Directors” or “Board” or 
“Board of Directors”

“Directors’ Employment Contracts
and Letters of Appointment”

“Disclosure and Transparency
Rules”
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“HMRC” means HM Revenue & Customs;

“IASB” means the International Accounting Standards Board;

“IFRS” means the International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted
by the EU;

“Interim Financial Statements” means the audited interim condensed consolidated financial
statements of the Company up to 30 June 2015, published on
27 August 2015;

“Listing Rules” means the listing rules made by the U.K. Listing Authority under
section 73A of FSMA as amended from time to time;

“London Stock Exchange” or “LSE” means London Stock Exchange plc;

“Main Market” means the regulated market of the LSE for officially listed
securities;

means the memorandum of association of the Company in force
from time to time;

“Model Code” means the Model Code on directors’ dealings in securities set out in
Annex 1 to Chapter 9 of the Listing Rules;

“Mortgage Credit Directive” means Directive 2014/17/EU of the European Parliament and of the
Council of 4 February 2014 on credit agreements for consumers
relating to residential immovable property;

“Net Proceeds” means the funds received on closing of the 2015 Placing less any
expenses paid or payable in connection with Admission, the 2015
Placing and the incorporation (and initial capitalisation) of the
Company;

“NSF Subsidiary” means Non-Standard Finance Subsidiary Limited, a private
company limited by shares incorporated in England under the
Companies Act 2006, with number 09281088, being a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company;

“NSF Subsidiary II” means Non-Standard Finance Subsidiary II Limited, a private
company limited by shares incorporated in England under the
Companies Act 2006, with number 9702872, being a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company;

“Official List” means the official list maintained by the U.K. Listing Authority;

“OFT” means the U.K. Office of Fair Trading;

“ordinary resolution” means a resolution passed at a meeting of the Shareholders duly
convened and passed by a simple majority of the votes cast, whether
on a show of hands or on a poll;

“Ordinary Shares” means the ordinary shares of £0.05 par value in the capital of the
Company;

“Performance Condition” means the condition for exercising the conversion rights in relation
to the Founder Shares, which is satisfied:

(A) any time after such period within the five year period from
satisfaction of the Significant Acquisition Condition, the
price per Ordinary Share has reached (for any 20 Business

“Memorandum of Association” or
“Memorandum”

122



Days out of 30 successive Business Days) a closing price
(such closing price, the “Threshold Price”) equal to the
higher of (i) an equivalent of a compound rate of return from
completion of an acquisition on the Adjusted Issue Price
equal to 8.5 per cent. per annum accrued daily and
compounded quarterly or (ii) an amount equal to a 25 per
cent. increase in the Adjusted Issue Price; or

(B) any time after the occurrence of a Change of Control in
relation to the Company, subject (where the Change of
Control results from an offer to holders of the Ordinary
Shares) to that offer being at a price per Ordinary Share equal
to (or greater than) the Threshold Price;

“Placing Agreement” means the placing agreement dated 16 February 2015 between the
Company, the Directors and the Placing Agents, details of which are
set out in “Part XII – Additional Information”;

“Placing Price” means £1.00 per Ordinary Share;

“Placing Prospectus” means the prospectus published by the Company on 16 February
2015 in connection with the 2015 Placing;

“Plan Asset Regulations” means the regulations promulgated by the U.S. Department of
Labor at 29 CFR 2510.3-101, as modified by section 3(42) of
ERISA;

“Plan Investor” means (i) any “employee benefit plan” that is subject to Part 4 of
Subtitle B of Title I of ERISA, (ii) a plan, individual retirement
account or other arrangement that is subject to section 4975 of the
U.S. Tax Code, (iii) entities whose underlying assets are considered
to include “plan assets” of any plan, account or arrangement
described in preceding sub-clause (i) or (ii);

“PRA” means the U.K. Prudential Regulation Authority;

“Premium Listing” means a premium listing under Chapter 6 of the Listing Rules;

“Priority Return Sum” means the total subscription price paid to the Company by the
holders of Ordinary Shares for the Ordinary Shares in issue on (or
immediately following) Admission, after deduction of the total
expenses incurred (or to be incurred) by the Company in connection
with Admission, the 2015 Placing and the incorporation of the
Company less the aggregate amount of Value Return in respect of
those Ordinary Shares, to the extent such assets are available in the
Company;

“Prohibited Person” means any person whose legal or beneficial ownership of Ordinary
Shares, in the opinion of the Directors, would or would reasonably
be likely to: (i) require the Company to register as an “investment
company” under the U.S. Investment Company Act; (ii) require the
Company to register under the U.S. Exchange Act or result in the
Company not being considered a “foreign private issuer” as such
term is defined in Rule 3b-4(c) under the U.S. Exchange Act;
(iii) result in a Plan Investor holding shares in the Company; or
(iv) subject the Company to regulation in the United States as a
bank, bank holding company or other financial institution;
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“Prospectus Directive” means Directive 2003/71/EC (and any amendments thereto,
including Directive 2010/73/EU, to the extent implemented in the
relevant member state), and includes any relevant implementing
measures in each EEA State that has implemented Directive
2003/71/EC;

“Prospectus Rules” means the prospectus rules of the U.K. Listing Authority made in
accordance with section 73A of FSMA, as amended from time to
time;

“QIB” means a qualified institutional buyer as defined in Rule 144A;

“Readmission” means the readmission of the Ordinary Shares to a Standard Listing
and to the London Stock Exchange’s main market for listed
securities;

“Registrar” means Computershare Investor Services PLC or any other registrar
appointed by the Company from time to time;

“Registrar Agreement” means the registrar agreement dated 4 February 2015 between the
Company and the Registrar, details of which are incorporated by
reference in “Part XII – Additional Information”;

“Regulation S” means Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act;

“reverse takeover” means a transaction defined as a reverse takeover under Chapter 10
of the Listing Rules;

“Rule 144A” means Rule 144A under the U.S. Securities Act;

“S&U” means S&U plc, a public company limited by shares incorporated
in England under the Companies Act 2006, with number 00342025;

“S&U Group” means S&U and its subsidiaries;

“SD Taylor” means S.D. Taylor Limited, a private company limited by shares
incorporated in England under the Companies Act 2006, with
number 00550055;

“SEC” means the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission;

“Shareholders” means the holders of the Ordinary Shares;

“Significant Acquisition Condition” means the condition for exercising the conversion rights in relation
to the Founder Shares, which is satisfied once the Company,
together with any subsidiary thereof, has made acquisition(s) with
an aggregate value of at least £50 million as described in “Part II –
Information on the Company and Industry Overview”;

“SMEs” means small- and medium-sized enterprises;

“Standard Listing” means a standard listing under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules;

“Takeover Panel” means the U.K. Panel on Takeovers and Mergers;

“Transfer Time” means 5.00 p.m. on 31 July 2015;

“Transitional Services Agreement” means the agreement entered into on 4 August 2015 between S&U
and SD Taylor in respect of the provision of certain IT services to
SD Taylor for the period of 9 months following Completion, details
of which are set out in “Part I – Description of the Acquisition”;
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“TUPE” means The Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment)
Regulations 2006;

“U.K. Corporate Governance Code” means the U.K. Corporate Governance Code issued by the Financial
Reporting Council in the U.K. from time to time;

“U.K. Listing Authority” or “UKLA” means the FCA in its capacity as the competent authority for listing
in the U.K. pursuant to Part V of FSMA;

means, in relation to a share or other security, a share or other
security, title to which is recorded in the relevant register of the
share or other security concerned as being held in uncertificated
form (that is, in CREST) and title to which may be transferred by
using CREST;

“United Kingdom” or “U.K.” means the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland;

“United States” or “U.S.” has the meaning given to the term “United States” in Regulation S;

“U.S. Exchange Act” means the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended;

“U.S. Investment Company Act” means the U.S. Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, and
related rules;

“U.S. Person” has the meaning given to the term “U.S. Person” in Regulation S;

“U.S. Securities Act” means the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended;

“U.S. Tax Code” means the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended;

“Value Return” means the aggregate of:

(a) the cumulative amount paid by (or at the direction or request
of) the Company in the period since Admission on (or in
respect of or (directly or indirectly) as a result of the holding
of)) an Ordinary Share (or, as the case may be, to the holder
of an Ordinary Share), whether in the form of a return,
repayment or distribution of capital or in the form of a
dividend which (when declared or paid) is expressed to be
(or constitutes) a dividend that is being declared or paid
above anticipated normal dividend levels for the Company;

(b) (to the extent not taken into account in the calculation of the
Adjusted Placing Price) the cumulative value (including any
redemption or repurchase premium) of any bonus share (or
shares) issued to (or to the order of and subject in any case to
customary securities laws restrictions or exclusions) a holder
of an Ordinary Share; and

(c) (to the extent not falling within (a) or (b) above) the
cumulative value of any consideration (whether in the form
of cash, securities or otherwise and including any deferred
consideration) received by, or issued or allotted to, a holder
of an Ordinary Share (subject in any case to customary
securities laws restrictions or exclusions) as a (direct or
indirect) result of any disposal by the Company (or by any
subsidiary of the Company, including without limitation the
company) of any business (or assets), or shares or securities
(whether in a subsidiary of the Company or otherwise), to
any party;

“uncertificated” or “in
uncertificated form”
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“VAT” means (i) within the EU, any tax imposed by any Member State in
conformity with the Directive of the Council of the European Union
on the common system of value added tax (2006/112/EC), and
(ii) outside the EU, any tax corresponding to, or substantially
similar to, the common system of value added tax referred to in sub-
clause (i) of this definition;

“voting rights” means all the voting rights attributable to the capital of a company
which are currently exercisable at a general meeting.

References to a “company” in this Document shall be construed so as to include any company, corporation
or other body corporate, wherever and however incorporated or established.
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